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SENATOR RICHARD VAN WAGNER (Chairman): Okay. I'd 
like to call this public hearing to order. Unfortunately, 
we' re starting about 15 minutes late. 
up shortly, as will Senator Contillo. 

Senator Dalton will be 

Let me first outline, very briefly, what the purpose 
of this hearing is, so that everyone has a clear idea of the 
direction that -- at least as the Chairman of this Conunittee --
I would 1 ike to see us try to move in. ' As you know, we have 
set in New Jersey now, iti law, by statute, a deadline under 
which we in New Jersey intend to come out of the ocean. The 
purpose of today's hearing is .to hear from various panels who 
will tell us of the various alternatives that are now available 
so that we can meet that deadline. 

We are not .proceeding on any assumption whatsoever, at 
least as far as the Chair is concerned, that there will be an 
extsnsion of that deadline.· _The purpose of thi~ meeting is to 
explore alternatives toward meeting that deadline. 

I realize that many may say that's unrealistic, and 
perhaps so. It is my own considered opinion that in the last 
several years, at least, we have not explored sufficiently-
enough alternatives that are available in _many cases that are 
proven technologies and are available to· us for the purpose of 
meeting this important goal of getting out bf the ocean. 

I'd like to start today with a panel composed of the 
Clean Sludge Coalition, and that would be: Ms. Cindy Zipf, Dr. 
Rod Fujita -- if I say anything wrong, please tell me -- Dr. 
Mel Finstein, and Don Clark. If you would each please identify 
your connection, and if you have to bring additional chairs up, 
do so. 
CINDY Z 1·p F: Thank_you, Mr. Chairman, for holding this 
hearing, and Senator Van Wagner, I know that you and I have 
worked very hard together to set the date for this hearing, and 
to convene this meeting. We '.re delighted for the opportunity 
to speak here today. 
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My job is to give you an overview of the Clean Sludge 
Coalition and what our task has been, and the issue of sewage 
sludge as far as the Clean Sludge Coalition is concerned. 

What has brought us here, as you so very well know, is 
a 20-year battle to end ocean disposal of sewage sludge. By 
the end of this day, over 26,000 tons of sludge will be dumped 
at the 106-mile sludge dump located off Cape May, New Jersey. 
New York and New Jersey now dump 9'.s million tons of sludge in. 
this environmental!~ sensitive, economically important, marine 
ecosystem. Citizens and legislators have fought to end ocean 
dumping, and at long las~, a New Jersey and a Federal ban will 
end ocean dumping by New Jersey on March 17, 1991. The 
question is: Will New Jersey meet the deadline, and what will 
they do with their sludge? 

In early 1989 a core group including local, State, 
regional, national, ·and international organizations formed a 
coalition to insure that New Jersey and N~w York would meet the 
deadlines to stop ocean dumping and that the dumpers would 
implement sound environmental alternatives. In other words, 
insure that the cleanup of our ocean does not result in the 
contamination of our air or land. 'rhe Clean Sludge Coalition 
meets monthly to discuss and review alternatives, and briefs 
interested officials on the issues. ·The Clean Sludge Coalition 
held an alternatives conference, and participated in the EPA's 
Sludge Round Table. The Clean Sludge Coalition has met also 
with Constantine Sidamon-Eristoff, EPA Region II Administrator, 
with encouraging support. 

New Jersey dumps 34% of all sludge dumped at the 
106-mile site. It is ·50% of all the sludge generated in New 
Jersey. The six New. Jersey sludge dumpers are: Bergen County 
Utilities . Authority, Joint Meeting of Essex and Union, 
Linden-Roselle Sewerage Authority, Middlesex County Utilities 
Authority, and Rahway Vall~y Sewerage Authority. New Jersey is 
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now facing the same cha 11 enge met by 
Philadelphia, Camden, Boston, and many others: 
their sludge? 

After careful consideration, the 

cities such as 
What to do with 

Clean Sludge 
Coalition is convinced that the most viable alternatives for 
all ocean dumpers is to implement beneficial reuse, not 
incineration. 

As a result of the New Jersey legislation banning the 
ocean . dumping of sludge, the New Jersey Department of 
Environmental Protection issued a report which described, 
specifically, what the ocean dumpers were planning to do to 
cease ocean dumping. New Jersey ocean dumpers have a two-phase 
plan: The short-term plan, in order to meet the March 17 
deadline, and the long-term plan, what they will ultimately do 
with their sludge. This is a copy of the report, here, that 
was issued to all of you by the DEP. 

The Clean Sludge Coalition finds the report to be 
shortsighted and unacceptable. New Jersey• s waste management 
hierarchy identifies incineration as a last resort; however, 
the long-term plans .for_ almost· ~11 of. the. sludge dumpers call 
for incineration. It is the Clean Sludge Coalition's opinion 
that a serious examination into beneficial reuse options was 
not undertaken by New Jersey sludge dumpers, and it seems the 
New Jersey DEP did not require it. If the proposed plans are 

·.implemented, the end of ocean dumping wi 11 result in 
contamination of our air_. This is unacceptable,· and the['.e are 
alternatives. 

It would be useful for us to briefly review the six 
ocean dumpers· plans for short-term, and for long-term. The 
short-term, again, is to meet the March 17 deadline. All but 
two of the dumpers will rely on out-of-state landfilling. 
Middlesex County and Rahway Valley are implementing beneficial 
reuse options for the short-term. Passaic Valley, Bergen, 
Linden-Roselle, and Joint Meeting, will depend on out-of-state 
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landfilling. To depend on finding a host state is risky 
business. It is 10 months until March 17, and none of these 
dumpers have yet found a willing state. It is possible that 
they won't find a host state, and there are no backup plans. 

As for the long-term, all but Middlesex County plan to 
incinerate their waste. This option is a grave mistake, both 
economically and environmentally. Be assured that because of 
the adverse environmental impacts, incineration will be fought 
by environmental concerns. The City of Newark already 
authorized $1 million to fight the incinerator proposed by 
Passaic Valley. 

The best 
beneficial reuse. 

long-term alternative is 
New York City is well on 

implementing.these beneficial reuse options. 

to implement 
their way to 

Our pane 1 here today brings you the best in s 1 udge: 
"Everything you wanted to know about sludge, but ·were afraid to 
ask." There is· nothing scary about sludge. It is a wonderful 
organic material that is used beneficially in many ways 
throughout the nation, and it is cheaper than incineration. 
What makes s~udge manag~ment .difficult is the industrial 
components dumped by industry into the sludge. Better 
implementation of the pretreatment program by the dumpers would 
clean up sludge quickly, and the sludge would meet beneficial 
reuse quality. 

The pan.el will discuss- the concerns of incineration 
and the merits of beneficial reuse in detail. Dr .. Rod Fujita, 
of the Environmental Defense Fund will discuss the concerns of 
incineration. Nina Sankovitch, an attorney with the Natural 
Resources Uefense Council will discuss beneficial sludge 
alternatives used in other cities and what New York has done, 
the economic merits of its use, and market strategies for this 
region. Dr. Melvin Finstein, Professor at Rutgers University, 
is an expert on sludge and will discuss the viability and the 
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merits of composting. Don Clark, Executive Secretary of the 
Cornucopia Network will discuss the demand and many uses for 
sludge composting on land. 

The Clean Sludge Coalition is dedicated to 
environmentally sound land-based alternatives; meaning an end 
to ocean dumping and the implementation of beneficial reuse. 

We call on the Legislature to help insure that 
cleaning up the ocean doesn't mean contaminating the air. 
Sludge dumpers can clean up the sludge and implement 
alternatives. 

Specifically we're calling on the Committee to: one, 
pass legislation to stop sludge incinerators until a thorough 
review of beneficial reuse options are explored, and two, to 
require New Jersey DEP to redo its ~eport to the Legislature 
because it relies on incineration and did not include a 
thorough, meaningful exploration of beneficial reuse options. 

We also look forward to working with this Committee in 
any way possible to continue our effort to implement beneficial 
reuse. 

I do have several samples here for the Committee to 
look at: I have sewerage sludge product ·that· s been turned 
into compost; a pelletizing product called Enviro-Gro; and the 
third one is Chem-fix, which is a soil product which Middlesex 
County is going to be implementing. 

I' 11 hand it over now to Dr. Rod Fuji ta. Thank you 
very much for the opportunity to testify today. 
R 0 D F U J I T A, Ph.D.: Good morning. My name is Rod 
Fujita. I'm a staff scientist with the Environmental Defense 
Fund. I also thank you for this opportunity to present some 
perspectives on sewage sludge management for New Jersey. I'm a 
biologist with research experience in geochemistry and 
ecology. I also serve on the Steering Committee of the Clean 
Sludge Coalition, have been studying the effects of ocean 
dumping of sludge on marine life, and have been evaluating 
land-based sludge management options. 
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There are a number of strong reasons for putting an 
end to ocean dumping as soon as possible: One is that it poses 
a great risk to the marine environment. Another is that it 
provides little incentive to reduce inputs of toxic metals and 
organic compounds into the municipal sewage systems. Yet 
another is that it represents a tremendous waste of nutrients 
and organic carbon that are ultimately derived from fossil 
fuels and soils. 

Reasonable alternatives will redress all three of 
these major problems. However, five of the six sewerage 
authorities which are currently ocean dumping in New Jersey 
plan to incinerate their sludge. Incineration solves none of 
these problems. In fact, it brings the risks' associated with 
the toxins of sewage sludge closer to home. Gasification, a 
new untested technology under consideration by the Passaic 
Valley Sewerage Corrunission, may prove to pose_ less risks than 
incineration, but fails to address the problems of wasting 
resources and also fails to provide incentives to reduce toxin 
inputs. 

What are the risks associated with sludge 
incineration? They include incinerator breakdown, failure of 
pollution control equipment, large capitalization and 
maintenance costs, and risks to public and environmental 
heal th. Multiple hearth incinerators which are used to bur·n 
80% of the sludge incine~ated in the U.S. are notoriously 
unreliable. The effectiveness of state-of-the-art, and even 
conventional air pollution equipment has yet to be demonstrated. 

These incinerators are also extremely energy 
intensive, requiring between $1200 to $7700 per dry ton· in 
energy costs. They perform very badly when used 
intermittently, for example in communities with no capacity to 
store sludge. Fluidized bed incinerators, the other major 
technology available, produces large amounts of particulate 
pollution which ~dmage air pollution equipment. They are also 
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subject to jamming problems and breakdowns in temperature 
control which also have adverse effects on pollution control 
equipment. The very fine particulates produced by incinerators 
capture organic toxins and metals and make them more available 
to people's respiratory systems, resulting in chronic 
bronchitis and aggravating asthma and emphysema, particularly 
in children, smokers, and the elderly. 

Sludge incinerators produce significant amounts of 
dioxins and fur ans I among the most toxic compounds on _earth, 
The combined effects of air pollution control failures and the 
emission of toxic, extremely fine particles, enhances the risks 
that dioxins and furans will enter food chains or be inhaled 
directly. Sludge incinerators also produce sulfur dioxide, 
nitrogen oxides, and carbon monoxide, which, of course, 
exacerbate existing air pollution problems in New Jersey. 

Becaµse public opposition to incineration is strong 
throughout the State, Passaic Valley is considering 
gasification as an alternative. First and foremost, we should 

. . 
recognize that this technology has not been tested at the 
municipal scale. Although gasification appears likely to 
result in low sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxide, and carbon 
monoxide emissions, we simply do not know what other products 
may be emitted. Like incineration, gasification is essentially 
a disposal _technology and wastes the nutrients and organic 
matte~ that New Jersey soils are starved of. Likewise, 
gasification, 11ke incineration, requires very high initial 
investment. Sewerage sludge has a much higher value when 
converted into a soil amendment than when it is used to produce 
energy. 

Gasification and incineration share another serious 
shortcoming. They both detract from the need to reduce the 
loadings of toxic metals and organic compounds in the municipal 
systems. Sewerage plants appear to be a major source of 
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volatile organic carbons or voes, and airborne toxic compounds, 
emitting more than 10, ooo tons of voes per year in the New 
York/New Jersey region. 

The entire State of New Jersey has large areas which 
are out of compliance with the Clean Air Act for ozone. Large 
reductions in voes, NOx, and airborne toxins will be needed to 
attain compliance. Therefore there is a pressing need to 
control voe and airborne toxic emissions from sewage plants. 
Strong incentives should be provided to sewerage authorities to 
enforce pretreatment laws and to industries to reduce the 
amounts of toxins they use in industrial processes. However, 
technologies such as incineration and gasification are 
perceived to be able to destroy and stabilize toxins. Even 
though this perception .is false, it removes incentives to cut 
toxin inputs. Municipal waste incineration detracts from 
recyc1 ing and source ··reduction in much the· same way. 

If beneficial use is a top priority for the management 
of sewage sludg~, as it sh?uld be, then cle~rly, incineration. 
and ga$ification should receive low priority. Incineration and 
gasification are essentially ways to dispose of sludge and do 
not provide any.beneficial use. 
human ·health by exacerbating 
introducing new toxins into 

They pose substant1al risk to 
air pollution problems and 

the environment. They waste 
nutri~nts and organic carbon that should be returned to the 
soil. 

So let's talk about some real solutions to the 
problems posed by ocean dumping, not technology that will just 
.perpetuate and add to them. Thank you very much. 

I'd like to introduce Nina Sankovitch from the Natural 
Resources Defense Council. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Could I interrupt for about 30 
seconds? Senator Rice is here. He did want to address the 
Committee on this issue. He has to go on to another committeo 
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of which he is a member, the Budget Conunittee, so if you would, 
I would like to have him give his testimony, with your 
indulgence. Senator? 
S E N A T 0 R R 0 N A L D L. R I C E: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. Let me just thank the speakers· also for being so 
kind. I'll be very brief. 

Just sitting here listening to the speakers who have 
just previously spoken, I don• t disagree that there must be 
alternatives evaluated to address this sludge situation. 
Certainly the 
have to be 
perspective. 

economics of the whole situation are going to 
looked at from an objective and reasonable 

I just want to go on record to say that this issue is 
not going to go away just at this hearing, and there are those 
who will be hearing from me later. I just hope that 
representing one district -- Passaic Valley happens to be one 
of the authorities in my area, along with Joint Meeting -- that 
we have no problem with alternatives. The concern is what it 
is going to cost, and how do we reach those solutions? I just 
don't want l~gislators and special interest groups in this 
State not to be. cognizant of the needs of others in this State. 

It disturbs me to read in the South Jersey press when 
folks tell us that they really don't care about my district. 
It's not a district issue, sludge; it's a people issue, a 
statewide issue. It's a taxpayers' issue. I'm asking that 
whatever we come up with_ in terms· of a compromise, that 
everybody be looked at as a State, as a whole, as one united 
New Jersey. I just wanted to indicate that there was a real 
tug of war about approving $100 million to clean the ocean up, 
but I voted in the affirmative· on that. I wasn't happy doing 
that, but I didn't see it as a district need. I saw it as a 
New Jersey need, and a people's need. 

The people I represent don• t go to the beach that 
much. They can't afford to. There are beach fee concerns 
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right now that are going to impact on people whom I represent. 
There was talk in the past, and there was legislation in the 
past of taxing the hotels in my city at a time when Newark and 
other communities around me, Elizabeth etc., were trying to 
grow economically. Newark had a 6% · sales tax, and al 1 of a 
sudden the State wants to tax every hotel with the revenues 
going directly to clean the ocean. The point I'm making is 
that when we look at the cleanup of sludge, we need to look at 
the economic impact with this billion-dollar State deficit a?d 
make certain that all of us are given a reasonable opportunity 
to address it. 

Finally, I want to say that under the former 
administration, communications with the State DEP and others as 
they relate to the authorities -- particularly in my area --
have not been the best. I can rec al 1 many times cal 1 ing the 
State and writing the State about answers to questions. You 

-
know, Passaic Valley said, "Well, can we do A, B, C, or can we 
not do A, · B, C?" They just wanted· a yes or no answer to move 
forward. We could not get that. I hope that this 
administration is more sensitive to strict communication, 
constant. communication, i( we are to address this problem in a. 
reasonable amount of time. 

I ·just want to go on record to make those factors 
known. My gut feeling is that most of the speakers here are 
going to be speaking on alternatives and what happens if you 
can't meet those al_ternatives by certain deadlines, etc. If 
they are going to speak, I just want to make sure that we are 
including the process of recognition, because the greatest 
impact economically on this sludge piece, as it stands right 
now, is going to be in the area that I represent in terms of 
dollars. Believe me, Newark cannot go beyond its $16 tax rate 
this year that we are projecting without some State help. 

I just want to thank you once again for giving me the 
opportuu.i ty to have a few words to say for the record. I can 
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assure this Committee and those who are here that they will 
hear from me again on this issue unless we can come to some 
compromising solution to the problems that impact on the people 
whom I represent. 

Thank you very much. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Thank you, Senator. Nina? 

NIN A SANK 0 VI TC H, ESQ.: Hi. Thank you for this 
opportunity to speak this morning. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Just so everyone knows, unles~ 

there's a question from the Cammi ttee, we' re just going to 
proceed and listen, okay? 

SENATOR DALTON: Mr. Chairman, if I could just-- For 
all the speakers, through you, we have a deadline that's 
nine-and-a-half months away. I would hope that what we would 
hear is viable alternatives -- viable alternatives that can be 
implemented in nine-and-a-half months. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Yeah, I thank you for saying 
that, Senator. It• s helpful to know of the shortcomings of 
many of the alternatives. It is better for us to know the 
longcomings of those that we can put into place. The objective 
of this hearing is what we are going.ta do. Thank you, and I 
see that you've covered that in your testimony, which I am 
happy to see, thank you. 

MS. SANKOVITCH: My name is Nina Sankovi tch. I am a 
coastal attorney· with the Natural Resources Defense Council in 
New York City. NRDC is a member of the Clean Sludge Coalition. 

The State of New Jersey has placed beneficial reuse 
alternatives for sludge management at the top of its sludge 
management hierarchy, consistent with its solid waste 
management hierarchy. Di?posal of sludge through. incineration 
is at the very bottom of the hierarchy. Beneficial reuses 
include: 

* The direct application of wet sludge or dewatered 
sludge to agricultural land, forest land, or land requiring 
revegetation, such as strip mines. 
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* The use of composted sludge and pelletized sludge on 
farmlands as well as on sod farms, nurseries, public parks, 
golf courses, cemeteries, university lands, and airport lands. 

* The use of composted sludge as landfill cover or to 
establish vegetation after a landfill has been closed. 

Sludge contains exactly those components and nutrients 
needed by soil to retain moisture, slow> the release of 
nutrients and metals, improve soil aeration and texture, and 
support those soi 1 microbes which protect plants from O.isease 
and enhance plant nutrient uptake. In short, these materials, 
which inc 1 ude organic carbon, nitrogen, phosphorus, and 
potassium, enhance overall plant growth while maintaining soil 
quality. 

·Beneficial reuse of sludge is a viable.alternative for 
the New Jersey ocean dumpers both in the short-term, and in the 

,long-term. For all the current ocean d~pers, with perhap~ the 
exception of Linden-Roselle, a strengthened pretreatment 
program whereby industries are prevented from discharging heavy 
metals and other toxics into the sewer lines, could quickly and 
easily result> in sludge that is clean eno':lgh to meet even the 
strictest New Jersey regulations for land application. 
Linden-Roselle may take a little longer to clean up, but again, 
it is possible. Beneficial reuse is something that is possible 
in the short-t~rm for all six dumpers., 

In addition to being environmentally sound, beneficial 
,reuse makes economic sense. For example, a 1988 study 
performed for Nassau County, New York, demonstrated that 
in-vessel composting averages a cost of $300 to $400 per dry 
ton; pelletizing averages $400 per dry ton; while incinerating 
averages $700 to $8QO per dry ton. 

Forty percent of the sludge produced nationwide is 
beneficially reused through land application and through 
distribution and marketing of sludge compost or tertilizer 
products. Over 115 municipalities nationwide compust their 

12 



sludge, including: Phoenix, Philadelphia, Seattle, Denver, Los 
Angeles, and Washington, D.C. Municipalities that pelletize 
their sludge include: Milwaukee, Hartford, Connecticut, 
Youngstown, Ohio, and very soon, Boston. 

Both composting and pelletizing facilities produce 
soil conditioner or fertilizer products. These products have 
been successfully marketed by municipalities around the 
country, lowering costs even further. 

For example, in Milwaukee, 160 dry tons are thermally/ 
dried per day, producing a pellet fertilizer called 
Milorganite. Milorganite generates approximately $5 million 
per year in revenue. Milwaukee had to aggressively market its 
sludge, first offering it to anyone who would come get it and 
then raising the price as interest in the product grew. 

In Montgomery County, Maryland, the sewerage 
authority'~ in-house marketing staff began marketing their· 
sludge compost at trade shows, offering it at a ~ery low 
price. ·Today, most of their product is bought in bulk by 
landscapers, with·the remaining sold under the name, "Compro." 
Compro has proved so popular· there is a waiting list for 
customers. 

A thermal drying facility in Georgia produces sludge 
pellets that have been so successful as a fertilizer that the 
product has . been patented. The producers keep high quality as 
the priority, with the result. that· although no profits are 
turned~ all operating costs are covered. 

Successful marketing of sludge produces not only 
steady customers and lower operating costs, but serves the much 
needed role bf educating the general public about s1udge and 
the many benefits of its use. An informed public will more 
readily accept the sit:lng ot' sludge processing facilit.ies and 
will stop discharging household hazardous wastes down the 
drains in the interests of producing quality sludge products. 
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New York City is currently investigating alternatives 
for sludge management, finding itself under the Federal 
deadline for ocean dumping. The City has hired a consultant 
and initiated an in-depth review of the quality of its sludge, 
the methods of managing sludge, the potential for marketing 
sludge products, and the potential concerns the public has 
regarding sludge. 

Twenty-three tasks are involved in coming up with New 
York City's long-term plan for sludge, including a two-yolume 
report on alternatives to sludge management. This report 
identifies everything from gasification to composting to post 
lime stabilization to biobricks sludge bricks used in 
construction. This report also evaluates potential markets for 
sludge, and finds that among New York City controlled markets, 
in such uses as daily cover for municipal landfills, airport 
use, .and use in City parks, twice the volume of sludge compost 
that New York City· could produce would be u~ilized. This 
amount is just below twice the volume of the sludge produced by 
all six New· Jersey ocean dumpers. Private markets in the New 
York metropolitan area,· such as nurseries, golf courses, 
cemeteries, landscapers, and farmers could double the amount 
demanded. This report didn't ·even look at the private and 
public markets in central, western, and southern New Jersey. 

In addition to these 23 tasks, New York City will set 
up demonstration projects, a composting project will begin 
this summer has set up an active Citizens Advisory 
Committee, and has set up an active Technical Advisory 
Committee made up of experts in beneficial reuse management of 
sludge ·from around the country, including Milwaukee, Boston, 
and Los Angeles. 

In contrast, the six current New Jersey ocean dumpers 
have displayed little imagination and even less concern for the 
public interest in developin9 sludge management plans by 
quickly settling on first landfilling and then incinerating 
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their sludge. Only Middlesex County, with its plan to 
chemically fix its sludge for use as landfill cover, and more 
recently, Rahway, with its plan to pelletize its sludge in the 
short-term, have demonstrated any awareness of the beneficial 
uses of sludge and the economic value of sludge as a product. 
The other ocean dumpers persist in viewing sludge as a waste 
to be disposed of. 

There are steps that can be taken by the New Jersey 
Legislature that could turn these recalcitrant dumpers around 
and get them looking into beneficial reuse alternatives. 

First, legislation could be passed requiring the six 
ocean dumpers to perform a complete review of alternatives to 
ocean dumping, including analysis of environmental impacts, 
economic costs, public acceptance, and long-term operating 
feasibility. This review would enable the dumpers to make an 
environmentally and economically s~und decision for long-term 
management of sludge on land, and would allow both the 
Legislature and the public to understand and endorse the final 
sludge management plan. 

Second, the Legislature could require the Department 
of Environmental Protection to actively oversee and coordinate 
the review of alternatives undertQ.ken by the ocean dumpers, 
with the goals of: 

a) ensuring compliance with 
managaement hierarchy of New Jersey: 

b) facilitating the use of sludge 
various permitting processes; 

the 

on 

solid waste 

land through. the 

c) developing public education literature; and 
d) coordinating implementation efforts of the ocean 

dumpers. 
In addition, DEP should be required to take an active 

role in developing public mar~ets for the sludge; for example, 
utilizing sludge compost on parklands and airport lands. 
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Finally, the Legislature could require DEP to hold 
public hearings and allow for a public comment period on the 
long-term sludge management plans. The plans should be subject 
to approval by the Legislature, with a report to be submitted 
to the Governor. 

Thank you for this opportunity. I now introduce Dr. 
Melvin Finstein, of Rutgers. 

SENATOR DALTON: Mr. Chairman, through you--
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Yes? 
SENATOR DALTON: The testimony that you out 1 ine 1 ays 

out a number of things that we should be doi.i.1g. We face a 
deadline of March 1991 nine-and-a-half months. Do you 
propose that we are able, as a State, to effect, or to 
implement to.: A) study and investigate, and B) implement this 
by the March 1991 deadline? 

MS. SANKOVITCH: Well, what has to be done by the 
March 1991 deadline is the ending of ocean dumping, which means 
that an interim plan has to be produced for all six ocean 
dumpers by that time. Rahway, just in the last couple of 
months, changed ·its course and has decided to pelletize its 
sludge. That decision could be made by Passaic Valley. Sludge 
is clean enough at this time. to be pelletized as a fertilizer 
and for the other ocean dumpers. For Linden-Roselle only, is 
that a problem. 

Now, this pro·ces.s that I've outlined, of doing a 
review of all alternatives, is primarily for the long-term 
plan. That could be done now. They aren't planning on 
beginning their incinerators until 1996 or '95, so this 
alternative review process is not something out of this world. 
It is something that could be started now so that their 
long-term plan is environmentally sound. The interim plan, 
hopefully, will also be environmentally sound, but the 
important thing is to meet that deadline and.get them on a good 
course for the long-term plan. 
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SENATOR VAN WAGNER: I don't think you answered his 
question. We understand that. What we are saying from a 
practical point of view-- Perhaps you' re not the person we 
should ask, but we're asking, is it possible, long-term, 
short-term, or interim, to, in fact, begin to implement the 
kinds of suggestions you made within a three-, six-, eight-, or 
nine-and-a-half month period? 

MS. SANKOVITCH: Yes, it is. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: And have them in place at that 

point in time--
MS. SANKOVITCH: Yes, it is. Middlesex--
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: --so that the major portion of 

this material is, in fact, being disposed of in a safe 
alternatively, environmentally sound fashion? 

MS. SANKOVITCH: Yes. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Yes? 
MS. SANKOVITCH: Middlesex County is already on its 

way to using it beneficially in the short-term. Rahway, as I. 
said, made its decision in the last two months to do that. 
That same decision could be undertaken . by .the. other ocean 
dumpers without any financial loss, without any problem with 
their sludge quality. The only exception, as I say, is 
Linden-Roselle. So the short-term date can be met in an 
environmentally sound way by the five other ocean dumpers, if 
they c~oose to do so. It's feasible. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Senator Cantillo? 
SENATOR CONTILLO: I heard you just say that the 

sludge from the Passaic Valley sewer is currently clean? 
MS. SANKOVITCH: According to their own data, that 

they've shared with us. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Okay. That's in conflict with the 

information that they've given me. The problem that they are 
having -- which seems to impede all the processes -- is that 
their sludge has to be pretreated before it comes to them. 
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Until that happens, until the sludge that goes into the sewer 
system is pretreated, it's not going to be safe to dump it in 
the ocean, it's not going to be safe to compost it, and it's 
certainly not going to be safe to burn it. It seems to me 
whatever solution we come upon, it's going to require 
extensive, expensive, and time-consuming pretreatment. 

Now, I sat through this hearing a number of years 
ago. Those who were pressing for this March 17 deadline -- and 
I voted against it, by the way -- said to me, "We know that 
that ' s not going to happen. Al 1 we want to do is, when the 
Federal deadline is over and when ·New York gets out of the 
ocean, that New Jersey should also get out of the ocean, but 
unless we hold your hand to the fire, you won't get out at the 
Federal date." 

I told you at that time that once you put that date in 
place, no one's going to back off of it. We have an.artificial 
dat~ now that's different from New York's, and my understa~ding 
was that -- you're from New York, aren't you? -- that New York 
has entered into some consent agreements with EPA to extend 
further down the road, and ·t?-ey've_ given you a plan. But 
again, this is·n' t going to work unless they pretreat. Now they 
have imposed enough time in here--

You know, it seems to me if we're going to go and take 
our sludge from this area and ship it to another state-- It's 
~nvironmental ly unsound to dump that. sludge in the ocean. We 
all agree with that. 13ut it's just as environmentally _unsound 
to put that sludge in the ground iri another state. Just 
because it' s not our State, doesn't mean it's okay to do it. 
The only problem with that is, we spent $100 million just to 
ship it out for the year, and the next year, and the next 
year. Shouldn't that money be better spent on developing 
pretreatment? Shouldn't that money be better spent to say, 
"Extend the ban," at least to match the Federal ban, and let 
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them use that money, and take it from the users of the system, 
increase their fees, and make them pretreat, because until you 
pretreat, you can't compost? 

MS. SANKOVITCH: You raised a number of points, and 
first I would like to say that I completely agree. 
Pretreatment is essential, but as you yourself just said, the 
cost of pretreatment should be borne by those who are dumping 
their waste into the sewer lines, and there should be a 
stronger pretreatment program. That does require money, but 
the data that Passaic Valley has ·Shared with us has shown that 
their sludge is clean. Today they're--

SENATOR CONTILLO: Do you have that with you? 
MS. SANKOVITCH: I don't have that with me, but 

Sheldon Lipke is here and he can--
SENATOR CONTILLO: Because I have seen data contrary 

to that. 
MS. SANKOVITCH: Well, we have been shown data-- We 

have been told by Mr. Lipke that· their sludge is clean, so--
SENATOR CONTILLO: I don't accept that. I reject that. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Well, they're here, so we can 

hear--
MS. SANKOVITCH: They're here, so we'll find out what 

the truth is on that. Pretreatment can bring about changes 
within nine months if it's a strong pretreatment program. To 
say extend the deadline, I don't· think will work, because 
again, you're giving them more time, and they'll just wait up 
to the last minute as they've done before. 

As far as New York City' s consent decree, it' s the 
same process that New Jersey entered into, a consent decree. 
New York City will dump until June of 1992, but for the six 
months after the dumping deadline they' 11 pay the very high 
penalties that are in the Federal Act. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: But that money is then turned back 
to them for mitigation. That was the stupidity of this State; 
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putting an artificial date down that our fines will not be used 
for mitigation if we were to-- We can't even enter into an 
agreement with them because we have an artificial State--

MS. SANKOVITCH: But the amount of sludge that New 
York City has to work with is equal to all amounts of the six 
ocean dumpers here. So, their task is actually monumental, and 
their sludge from some treatment plants is quite dirty. So 
their task in many ways is much more difficult than that facing 
each of the individual six ocean dumpers in New Jersey. 

SENATOR DALTON: Why would you say that? 
MS. SANKOVITCH: Because they have 14 treatment 

plants, they come up with as much sludge as all six New Jersey 
dumpers do. Many of the treatment plants come up with a sludge 
that is very dirty that will have to be cleaned up, and they 
have a small area in which to site facilities. So they have a 
more difficult problem. 

SENATOR DALTON: I guess one of the key issues on 
pretreatment is everyone seems to have a different 
perspective. You' re sitting here saying that every authority 
save one · in our State can go ahead and can move into 
alternatives almost irnmediate1y, and the information that 
Senator Cantillo gets, and we get individually, doesn't 
corroborate that fact,· so that's number one. 

Number two is that if you have a nine-and-a-half month 
deadline, are you going to impose ·a successful pretreatment 
program during that interim period of time, and also implement 
it, and then also implement alternatives? 

They' re the big questions out there. They' re, 
obviously, more than. the million dollar questions that we are 
wrestling with right now. 

You seem to hold New York out as a model. 
reject that, period. 

I would 

MS. SANKOVITCH: In terms of how they're running their 
program this time around, they've ivolved the public. They've 
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asked for help from other cities which have done beneficial 
reuse with urban areas with dirty sludge which had to clean up 
their sludge. In that sense I'm holding them out as models. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: And when will they be out of the 
ocean? 

MS. SANKOVITCH: In June, 1992. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: June, 1992? Again, have they not 

entered into consent agreements with the EPA to extend past 
that date? 

MS. SANKOVITCH: No. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: They have not? 
MS. SANKOVITCH: No. 
SENATOR DALTON: That's 15 months after we' re out of 

the ocean. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Again, contrary to what I've heard. 
MS. SANKOVITCH: Right. We have someone here from EPA 

who can talk about the decrees. I have personally seen the 
data of Joint Meeting of Essex and Union--

SENATOR DALTON: Did you go in front of New York and 
say that they should be out by March of 199~? 

MS. SANKOVITCH: That wasn • t the date they agreed to 
in their consent decree. 

SENATOR DALTON: Did you ever press for that before a 
Federal agency or before a state agency in New York? 

MS. SANKOVITCH: We pressed that they meet the Federal 
deadline. 

SENATOR DALTON: That's ironic because folks are here 
pressing us to go March 1991, ·prior to the Federal deadline. 
The real irony is, then you're saying they have 15 months more, 
and you're holding them out as a model, and we're scurrying. 

MS. SANKOVITCH: I believe that their tasks'· again, 
are different in terms of the amount of sludge that they have 
to -work wl th and the -di f fer-en-tl;1tants that -they nave. - If you --
were to take each New Jersey ocean dumper as itself, and each 
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ocean dumper were to investigate alternatives and enforce a 
pretreatment program, many of the problems that we' re talking 
about here wouldn't be problems. There is someone here to 
testify today who is a private composting firm. There are a 
lot of firms like that out there which can take sludge and turn 
it into a beneficial product. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: 
because we understand that 

Why don't I make a suggest ion, 
we're talking about beneficial 

reuse? As you can see, there are members of the Committee who 
perhaps took some issue with whether or not we should have New 
York City as our model, which is obviously a sore point. So, 
rather than belabor that, why don't we move on to Dr. Finstein, 
and see what he has to say, and then we can get on with--
M E L V I N S. F I N S T E I N, Ph.D.: May I use this? 

SENATOR V"AN WAGNER: That is not a loud speaker 
microphone. It is a public record microphone. 

DR. FINSTEIN: Fine. Thank you very much, Senator Van 
Wagner. I have submitted a package- of scientific and technical 
reprints that will_ support my testimony today. 

As a prcif essor in the Department of Environmental 
Sciences at Cook College, Rutgers University, it is especially 
gratifying for me to testify before this Senate Committee. Our 

.department at Rutgers was, in fact, established by -an Act of 
the New Jersey State Legislature. This was in 1920, some 70 
years ago. As such, our departmental ·program is· the first of 
its kind. All would agree in 1990 that this was a farsighted 
legislative act. A little bit of that history is documented in 
one of the reprints that I submitted. 

I joined the department some 25 years ago, as a 
professor. My own scientific discipline is microbiology. 
Early on, I was attracted to the investigation of the unusual 
microbial ecosystem commonly called "composting." This quest, 
pursued through field and laboratory research with a number of 
valued coworkers, has proved very rewarding. Few things could 
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be more rewarding and satisfying than to get to understand the 
inner workings of a complex, yet in some ways simple, 
ecosystem; the composting system. This is hinted at in a 
recent sununary report which you have a copy of entitled, 
"Activities on Composting as a Waste Treatment Technology," 
written by invitation of a prominent waste management journal. 

To some extent, this information has been applied to 
the pressing problem of sludge management to good effect, and I 
will develop that specific c'ase shortly. At the same time, 
there is a serious a most serious gap between what is 
understood at the practical working level, and what is usually 
done in practice; that is, how to design and operate a sludge 
composting facility to get the job done at a minimal 
construction and operating cost with the most rapid possible 
construction and which leads to the prevention of odors among 
other necessary operational factors. This ~is very well 
understood. 

Although this understanding inex~rably enters into 
practice, it does so at an agon~zingly slow pace. In fact, 
there is a serious gap between science and practice in this 
field of composting, which I shall return to. shortly. 

I hope to explain how composting could make a decisive 
contribution to the realization of the intention embodied in 
both State and Federal laws. 

To avoid s~me con.fusion that has already crept into 
the discussion, at this point I should clearly distinguish 
between composting, and compost. I would make the distinction 
between the process and the process residue; between the verb 
and the noun. All waste treatment processes, whether physical, 
chemical, or biological result in residues. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Doctor, could I ask you a 
question? Would you mind if I asked you to do something? 

DR. FINSTEIN: Not at all. 
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SENATOR VAN WAGNER: We have a long list of people and 
I would like to get to the specific areas of recorrunendation. I 
don't mean to interrupt you or shorten--

DR. FINSTEIN: Well, I'd be willing to do that, 
Senator. I wi 11 comment that a big problem that has gotten us 
to where we are today--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: All right. You may crystallize 
on that, if you would? 

DR. FINSTEIN: A big problem, and where that has 
gotten us into the jam that we're in today, is a neglect of the 
scientific underpinnings of the technology that people would 
use. I will jump immediately to a case in point. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Say that in a more--
DR. FINSTEIN: I will develop it this way: The 

.SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Let's say I ·.was out on the stump 
and I was sitting· in front ·of an audience, and I was to say to 
them, "Here's the basic problem." Explain it to me as you just 
put it. 

DR. FINSTEIN: Well, we' re not out on a stump and I 
was hoping for a more considered evaluation, but let me develop 
the case of-~ 

SENATOR 
evaluation. 

VAN WAGNER: You' 11 get a considered 

DR. ~INSTEIN? --the Sussex County Municipal Utilities 
Authqrity. The Sussex County· Municipal Utilities Authority 
constructed a composting facility that came into operation in 
mid-1984. I was coml?letely unaware of this facility at the 
time. It had six troubled months of operation. It failed 
outright in January of 1985. It was shut down. The symptom of 
that failure was odor. 

p::ivate 
t .rough 

We then became involved through the insistence of a 
citizen, not through the regulatory process, and then 
a request of the Board of Freeholders of Sussex 
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County. We set up, as a public service, a demonstration of a 
rational composting process, design and operation, which is not 
part of the establishment system or the regulatory system. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Why would you say that? 
DR. FINSTEIN: Well, that's a question-- Allow me to 

finish the development. 
Basically what this amounted to was that we educated 

the personnel at the facility as to the cause and effect 
relationships which govern the behavior of the composting 
system.· They did not understand these relationships prior to 
that period. 

The 
reconstruct--

personnel were 
This happened to 

then 
be a 

in a position to 
structurally simple 

facility. They were then in a position to reconstruct that 
facility in-house, rather cheaply, to bring it into operation; 
to partially bring it into _a rational condition, start up their 
facility, and they did so in mid-1986. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: So, what you're saying, in 
essence--

DR. FINSTEIN: The facility--
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: --is that your research_ led you 

to believe that it was a behavioral, or a structural management 
problem, rather than necessarily a techrtological problem?. 

DR. FINSTEIN: Well, as I was hoping to develop, the 
composting microbial ecosystem works or does not work based on 
the activity of the microbes, on the decompqs it ion of the 
sludge. 

The New Jersey State guidance in this area is 
thoroughly confused, and that leads to a minimal rate of 
activity, where what you want is a maximal rate. Sussex County 
was brought to the point -- was brought from a minimal rate of 
activity to a moderate rate of activity. That earned them an 
EPA award in 1988. 
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SENATOR VAN WAGNER: What do you mean by, "rate of 
activity"? 

DR. FINSTEIN: Sludge composting works by having the 
indigenous microbes decompose the ·Naste. The rate at which 
this decomposition takes place determines the difference 
between failure, success, and mediocre performance. Unless the 
system is designed and operated to foster maximal rate of 
activity, it drifts toward a minimal rate. How to make it 
operate at a high rate is very well understood, very well 
proven in routine practice in some places, and in fact, leads 
to f ac i 1 i ty design that is cheap in terms of construct ion, in 
terms of operation, and in terms of the time required to build 
the facility. 

Among other things, we have put these matters into a 
document, and you have a copy of this. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Would you say that again in a--
Micro--. What is that called? 

DR. FINSTEIN: Composting is a microbial system·. The 
workers are microbes, indigenous microbes, the same kind of· 
organisms that are found in garden soil. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: So, bear with me, 9kay? 
DR. FINSTEIN: Yes, by all means. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: So you understand how my 

considered evaluation comes about, okay? 
DR. FINSTEIN: Yes. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: In other ~ords, by introducing 

certain kinds of processes into a system, the sludge materials 
are broken down so that they become basically, less harmful? 

DR. FINSTEIN: Let's take this example: With a well 
designed facility--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Well, let me finish now. The 
rate or speed of that activity is what--

DR. FINSTEIN: Yes, that's correct. The rate is the 
critical factor -- the rate of activity, t __ e rate of microbial 
decomposition. 

26 



SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Microbial decomposition? 
DR. FINSTEIN: That's correct. There are hundreds of 

considerations in the design of a composting facility. The key 
consideration is the rate of microbial decomposition, which has 
simply been ignored by the regulatory system and by the 
consulting industry, with some rare exceptions. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. Go ahead. 
DR. FINSTEIN: Now, given a facility which can be 

built rather quickly and rather cheaply, given a facility which 
pushes toward a maximal rate, the following can be 
accomplished: Let's say we come in with 100 pounds of sludge 
cake, as produced at the sewage treatment facility. In 
approximately 10 days of composting in a properly designed 
facility, you end up with 30 pounds of dry, stabilized, 
sanitized, processed residue. This is done by decomposing 
exactly the kinds of mate~ials you want to ~ecompose in the 
sludge, the putrescible materials, and, to a significant 
extent, industrial organic compounds. The decomposition of 
these materials in a properly designed composting facility . 
drives the vaporization of water. You do not burn fossil 
fuel. You do not put it into what I would call biodegrad~ble 

cement. You decompose the organic material at the expense of 
the water in the sludge, which is a major part of the problem. 

So, you come in with 100 pounds of sludge cake; you 
come out with 30 pounds of processed residue which is 

. . 

stabilized, sanitized, and. dry. That does not mean that you 
have 30% of the problem left over, because the 30 pounds of the 
processed residue is storable, transportable, and amenable to 
final disposition. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: How do you get t~e 100 pounds of 
dry cake? 

DR. FINSTEIN: Well, that's before the composting 
operation. All of the facilities, no matter what--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Is that after you dewater? 
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DR. FINSTEIN: Yes, mechanical dewatering; belt filter 
presses, usually. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Oh, okay. 
DR. FINSTEIN: Mechanical dewatering, that's correct. 

This is a precursor to almost any of these processes. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Could I ask the professor a 

question? 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Yes. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: How do the microbes react to the 

arsenic, and the cadmium, and the chromium, and the copper, and 
the lead, and the mercury? 

DR. FINSTEIN: The dirtiness of sludge is irrelevant 
to composting. The microbes are not affected whatsoever. The 
presence of these materials has a strong bearing on how sludge 
can be used, how it should be used, how it should not be used. 
The presence of these metals is irrelevant to the processing. 
The composting system is extremely resilient. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: But the residue still has these 
items in it? 

DR. FINSTEIN: Well, the residue will have metals in 
it. It probably will not have industrial organic compounds. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: But, I read you a list. I read you 
a· list. Those items on the list will remain in more 
concentrated form as a percentage of the compost than it was in 
the original--

DR. FINSTEIN; That's correct. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: But isn't that really the problem 

we have? If it wasn't for the pr.esence of these metals -- or 
whatever they're called, we could probably dump the material on 
the ground or burn it or put it in th~ ocean without major 
problems to the environment. 

DR. FINSTEIN: No, sir. No, sir. The presence of 
these metals is a universal problem. Regardless of what you do 
with the sludge, whatever technology you use, in whatever 
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manner the final residue is disposed of, these metals are a 
problem. I'm very glad to learn that there are significant 
strides being made in the rebuilding of these metals. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Pretreatment? 
DR. FINSTEIN: Pretreatment, and probably a better 

term is, "pollution prevention." 
SENATOR CONTILLO: That's correct. We are involved 

with that also. 
DR. FINSTEIN: But the presence of the metals is 

irrelevant to the composting. It's no more relevant to the 
composting than it is to the incineration. I mean, just simply 
the process, it is not relevant. ' It is highly relevant to the 
residues, whether those residues be emissions in the 
atmosphere, whether those residues be biologically stabilized 
residues, or heat-dried residues, which are obtained through--

SENATOR CONTILLO: Woul_d these metals not prevent the 
use of th~ residue as fertilizer? 

DR. FINSTEIN: - Yes, they would, but I don· t think--
You see, that! s part of the problem ·of confusing composting 
with compos~. The purpose _of setting up a sludge ·composting 
facility is not to produce fertilizer, sir. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: It's to reduce the volume. 
DR. FINSTEIN: The purpose is to stabilize the sludge, 

which includes volume and mass and pathogen reduction, that's 
correct. All technologies leave you with residues that must be 
managed, and composting is no exception. The strength of 
composting is how it stabilizes the sludge so effectively if 
the facility is properly designed; cheaply, efficiently. That 
is the strength.of composting. 

The ultimate disposition of the residue-- I'm afraid 
that this term, "beneficial use," can become· a slogan that can 
obscure the rather important details. For example, a very 
beneficial use of composted process residue would be as 
material for the final cover of landfills. We have no end of 
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landfills in this State needing final cover. Now that is quite 
a different beneficial use than putting it on agricultural land. 

I think that no sludge derived product, compost or 
otherwise, should be indiscriminately or even put on food chain 
crop lands. There are plenty of other uses. I would keep it 
out of food chain crop lands, whether it's heat dried, whether 
it's composted, or whatever the use is. So these are separate 
issues that simply have to be disentangled, or otherwise the 
evaluation cannot go forward in a considered manner. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Doctor, I wonder if I could ask 
you to sum up? The panel's been on for an hour. 

DR. FINSTEIN: Yes,' 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: We do have a lot of people who 

are waiting to testify. 
·DR. FINSTEIN: Yes, well--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: The DEP has arrived. The EPA is 
here. We have some people from--

DR. FINSTEIN: Well, I did hand out a number of 
reprints_. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Yeah, we can--
DR. FINSTEIN: I do have a copy for each of you _of an 

op-ed article in The Trenton Times, of December 8, 19.87, that I 
wrote pointing out one aspect of the difficulty with the DEP 
guidance in this area. This is available to all of you. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. I'd like to get_ their view 
now, and then we _can--

DR. FINSTEIN: Sure, I would end up by saying that we 
did-- One of the documents that you have is entitled the 
following, sir. It is put out by the Rutgers Cooperative 
Extension, Publication E-136: "Elements of a Request for 
Proposal RFP for Sludge and· Municipal Solid Waste 
Composting Facilities, Scientific and Technical Aspects." we· 
wrote this-- This is based on a body of undisputed scientific 
and technical literature. The p~rpose of this document was to 
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give the raw ammunition to authorities to devise their own 
scientifically and technically valid RFPs for composting 
facilities. This is the point at which the system currently 
fails. The RFPs that go out, to the extent that they go out 
for composting facilities, are devoid of scientific and 
technical content. Hence the initial failure at Sussex, and it 
was the science and technology that resulted in the turnaround 
at that particular facility. 

Thank you very much. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Would you remain, though, 

because--
DR. FINSTEIN: Yes, I certainly will. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: You should know -- anybody who is 

here today -- that I hope to develop a continuum of dialogue 
through · a working committee type o'f system which will 
ultimately bring together what we are talking about today. 

I may disagree with you, necessarily, on your 
legislative recommendations because I don't think they are 
going to be necessary. I think we can accomplish that which is 
in those without fighting the battle of whether we can require 
som~body to do something. 

I 1 d like to ask the DEP if they would come forward now 
-- I think that they have arrived. And perhaps joining them in 
order to, unless he feels uncomfortable-- I understand the DEP 
is here? 
ASSISTANT COMM. JOHN s. KEITH: Yes. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: If you would come up. Would you 
mind if you were joined by Mr. Bruce Kiselica? He's with the 
Ocean Program Section, Region II of the U.S. EPA. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Certainly. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: And maybe he can come forward. 

You can bring a chair up, if you like. What I am going to try 
to do is consolidate as much as possible so no one is precluded 
from getting their remarks in, but at the same time--

Okay, let me first-- This is John Keith, right--

31 

New Jersey State Library 



ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Yes. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: --Assistant Commissioner for 

Environmental Management and 
that pronounced right? 

Control. And, is it Kiselica? Is 

B R U C E K I S E L I C A: 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: 

H E L E N P E T T I T: 

That's correct. 
And you are? 
Helen Pettit. 

Bureau of Pretreatment and Residuals. 
I'm Chief of the 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. You did not hear some of 
the testimony that came from the first panel' that testified, 
and I must apologize to Mr. Don Clark, who is here. Don, you 
will get an opportunity. I just wanted to get some dialogue. 

Summing up: It has been stated not in any 
accusatory fashion -- but just simply stated that we here in 
New Jersey, and particularly the DEP, have not moved 
aggressively enough in areas such as pretreatment, aI).d have· 
also not provided, perhaps, some guidance ·to the six 
authorities which are required to meet these deadlines, for 
them to implement other than incineration and gasification 
programs. 

That is not to put you on the defensive. As I said, 
it was not said in an accusatory fashion at all; just simply 
stated. And that the areas of the beneficial reuse of sludge 
as alternatives to ocean dumping really have not -- from a 
process point of view, management· point of view, and a· 
technological point of view -- been sufficiently ·explored . 

. . 
· You• re on. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: I would like to 
address-- Again, my name is John Keith, Assistant Commissioner 
for Environmental Management and Control. I'd like to address 
four different areas in my testimony today. 

The first is some comments on the general departmental 
policies, specifically as they relate to the beneficial use and 
reuse of sludge. Second is a status report, more or less, on 
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where the six authorities that dump sludge in the ocean are and 
what their plans are. The third is comments about pretreatment 
programs specifically related to the six authorities. And the 
fourth is some comments about alternatives and technologies, or 
the technology options available, and some comments about the 
advantages and disadvantages of those. 

The Department policy on sludge management as defined 
in the Sol id Waste Management Act, it mandates, to the extent 
possible, the ~eneficial use and reuse of sludge. That was 
reiterated on the November 4, 1987 promulga_tion of the New 
Jersey Statewide Sludge Management Plan. Our basic set of 
priorities within the Department at this time -- and I won't 
speak for all time past; this is for this time -- for sludge 
management is: First, that we must elimi~ate ocean dumping, 
and we cannot extend the March 17 deadline. Second, that 
landfill disposal_of sludge is an unacceptahle practice for the 
long-term, and i~ should be related to only emergency or 
overriding circumstances; it's not a long-term option. Third,· 
that the hierarchy that's to. be followed for sludge management 
-- very similar to the h~erarchy that we would. exl?ect for· sol id 
waste is first to improve quality· and reduce quantity, 
second to recycle and extract some sort of value from the 
product, and third is to market the product in a reusable 
fashion. And finally, as the last alternative, incineration or 
land disposal; land dispo.sal, as opposed to beneficial use as 
fertilizer -- .land disposal being landfilling. 

That is consistent, as I say, with our solid waste 
hierarchy. It is the Department's policy that New Jersey 
should be self-sufficient in sludge disposal as well as waste 
management. We cannot continue to rely on out-of-state 
alternatives that in the long-term could leave us with no 
options if other states figure out ways to exclude our sludge 
and waste. I think that's well known enough that we don't have 
to go into that. 
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New Jersey has had a beneficial use initiative for 
some time. In 1985 we became the only State to embrace the 
beneficial use concept in adopting, on March 15 of 1985, the 
concept that land disposal -- landfilling, I should say -- is 
for emergency and overriding uses only. The Sludge Management 
Plan in 1987 initiated a program to require long-term sludge 
planning for all new or expanding ~reatment plants 
incorporating the beneficial use hierarchy that I mentioned 
before. Since that time_ we have had a number of specific 
accomplishments for beneficial use projects, such things as the 
Camden County Municipal Utilities Authority in-vessel 
composting project, and a similar one for the Musconetcong 
Sewer age Authority. We• ve instituted reed beds -- which is a 
land disposal type alternative, where the reeds eat the sludge 
-- at a number of small facilities throughout the State. There 
are a number of other projects· where we've actually 
demonstrated-that we can reuse the material. 

The status of the six ocean dumpers, the six utilities 
where sludge continues_ going in-- First, the Department has 
entertained, and will continue to entertain and evaluate, 

- -

alternatives other than those specifically proposed and on the 
books _ at this time by the authorities. However, that being 
said, we c_armot entertain any plans that would extend ocean 
dumping. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Do you have an ongoing proactive, 
manageme~t program for technically as~isting the six 
authorities in reviewing th~ alternatives that they can 
explore, and a fast track process for approval? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Since there are six 
authorities, we are dealing with them. You know, we don't have 
a huge unit--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Do- you have that, what I just 
asked you about? 

ASSISTANT COMMI~SIONER KEITH: Yes. 
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SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Do you have it? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Yes, but let me go into 

it. Perhaps the first example is Bergen County. Their interim 
program is for dewatering and then hauling to an out-of-state 
landfill. They have proposed to go into a joint venture with 
Passaic Valley. There are problems with Passaic Valley that I 
will get into when I talk about them. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: How far along is that in terms of 
the agreements, and what steps are you taking to solve the 
problems? · 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Bergen County 
originally proposed 
fac-ility in Little 

to have on-site dewatering at their 
Ferry. They signed an agreement to 

accomplish that. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Right. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Sometime last £°all they 

decided at their own option that they wanted to explore a joint 
venture with Passaic Valley. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Right. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: At that point they 

slowed down, or ceased work on. the~r original alternative of 
sludge centrifugation at Little Ferry and fell behind in their 
mi lest ones. We have recently had a number of ·meetings . with 
Bergen County to. see what we are going to do about this. The 
problem has arisen that there is a serious air emission problem 
with the Passaic Valley Sewerage Authority. There Zinpro, a 
sludge management process, is a major contributor of volatile 
organic substances in the State, to the tune of 1100 to 1300 
tons per year. It's a very large number. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Who is this? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Passaic Valley. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Who is contributing? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Pardon? 
SENATOR VAN· WAGNER~ Who is contributing to that 

problem, did you say? 
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ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: The Passaic Valley 
Zinpro sludge. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: What is that, again? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Zinpro, a wet air 

oxidation sludge process. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Zinpro? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Right. It's a 

technology. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. :And that's creating an air 

emissions smell. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That device oxidizes 

sludge, reducing the volume of it, but in the process it 
generates a lot of volatile organic substances which are 
currently discharged to the atmosphere after limited control. 
Passaic Valley installed--

SENATOR CONTILLO: They approved this? 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Yeah, I was going to say, how the 

hell did they get ·to that point? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Let me give you the 

background; let me give you the background. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Would you mind telling me how 

they got to the point where they got a system--
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Certainly. 
SE.NATOR VAN WAGNER: --that created a bigger problem 

than the system they had? You know, I'm curious. 
I'm sorry for the use of the word hell, but I'm--

I' 11 tell you why. I'm getting frustrated. I'm hearing the 
problem restated. I know what the problem is. I've lived with 
it for 16 years, okay? I've been through more hearings than 
most people in this room, as have the other members. But what 
I would like to know is: One, you apparently approved this 
process yourself. I don't know? Perhaps you didn't know it 
was going- to create that problem when they started, and I'm 
sure the Authority didn't know it. So now that you have the 
pr?blem, can you fix it? 
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ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Okay. Let me--
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: I'm sorry. I don't mean to get 

on you, Mr. Keith. I realize that you're the deliverer of the 
message, but now you have this problem. Can it be fixed, or 
are you going to break up the joint venture? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Let's talk about it, 
okay? 

SENATOR CONTILLO: They're going to break up the joint 
venture. That's what they're going to do. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay, so Bergen is going to go on 
their own, and they have a dewatering process that will begin. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: May I discuss exactly 
what's happening here? 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay, go ahead. I'm sorry. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: In 1984 the Zinpro 

system was approved by the Air Permit .section and everyone else 
within the Department, employing activated carbon as the best 
available control technology. The activated carbon didn't work 
1 ike everybody thought it would . everybody, inc 1 uding the 
Department. They have made a lot of changes to try to improve 
.it; but it still doesn't work. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. There it is, right there. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: So, Bergen County now 

wants to add sludge to Passaic Valley~-
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Which would exacerbate--
ASSIS~ANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: -~which would aggravate 

the emission problem. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: O~ay, that's good. Okay, fine. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: In summary, we would 

aggravate the emissions problem, potentially as much as 100 to 
130 tons per year. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: So, have you recommended that 
Berg~n County go back on track with their dewatering process on 
their own? 
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ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We have been meeting 
with Bergen County. We have told them that because of the air 
emission problem at Passaic Valley, we cannot approve the joint 
venture in its current form. We have also committed to Bergen 
County that we will work with them on any alternative that is 
viable, and we are currently working towards an agreement that 
is acceptable to all, to bring them on track for March 17. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Except, there's another system at 
Passaic Valley. I think it uses a centrifugal system. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEI'I'H: Centrifuges, correct. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Which they put into place because 

it was a better system or a more modern system which, by the 
way, they put into place without being prodded by the 
Department, and now they have capacity in the ~ew system and 
the old system. And I understand that Passaic Valley has 
permission to use the old system because ~ that was their 
permit. Now what they are doing is cutting down what they are 
using in the old system and using the new and more modern 
system. If Bergen puts their d~op or two in the bucket, which 
is infinitesimal in comparison to the volume, it uses more of 
the old system and not the new system, and that's where the rub 
is. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Yeah. What it comes 
down to is, one of the alternatives to reduce the existing air 
permit violation ~ith th~s Zinpro system is to use the Zinpro 
less and. use the centrifuges more~ If Bergen County sludge, 
which ·would represent roughly 6% of the total amount of sludge 
from Passaic Valley-- If_ that sludge were to be brought down, 
then the amount of sludge that could be transferred from the 
Zinpro to the centrifuges would be less, and that difference --
the amount less -- would be 130 tons. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay, I got the point. I got the 
picture. 

ASSIS'".:.".\NT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Okay. It's complicated. 
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SENATOR V~ WAGNER: You see, I would uncomplicate it, 
very frankly. I would go back and I would say, "Okay, now that 
we've run across this di ff icul ty, let's go back and redo our 
management model. Let's still concentrate and focus on these 
six authorities, because that's what we have to be concerned 
about in New Jersey, relative to this. Let's see how we can, 
in each case, help them to reduce the amount of material that 
they are going to have to deal with ultimately, if not 
pompletely reduce it to zero ~f that's possible, so that they 
can meet the mandated deadline." 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Senator, this whole process is 
simply a dewatering process. Am I correct? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That's correct. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: And in all this--
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: This is the interim 

solution. This is still an interim solution. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: This permits them to spend maybe 

$100 million a year to take this poisonous material and bury it 
in the ground somewhere. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We'll have to qualify· 
the word "poisonous," and we'll get into that in a little bit. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Categorize it as ·you want, I pride 
myself on not being a technical fellow. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: But ,you' re right. 
Centrifuging solidifies--

SENATOR CONTILLO: Squeezes out the water a little bit .. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: --reduces the volume, 

and the interim plan for Bergen County and Passaic and for 
every utility except Middlesex,. is to haul the material 
out-of-state to landfills. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: 
as when it starts. 

But the material is just as toxic 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That's correct. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: 

now, right? 
But it's even more concentrated 
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SENATOR DALTON: We've been told -- through you, Mr. 
Chairman -- by previous speakers that what we can do in this 
State, is that we can remove the toxicity via a pretreatment 
program. We can implement much better reuse alternatives, 
develop and implement those reuse alternatives, all within a 
nine-and-a-half month period. Do you agree with that? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: I would like to get 
into that in more detai 1 in a few minut,es. Yes, we do have--
Part of the handouts before you, discussing pretreatment and 
the option of land treatment, and what the difficulties are--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Before you do that, maybe I can 
take it one step further, Senator. 

SENATOR DALTON: Do you agree with that? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Can we achieve that 

within nine-and-a-half months? 
SENATOR DALTON: .Yeah. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: I think it would be 

extraordinarily difficult. There are some major obstacles that· 
need to be overcome, and I would like to discuss them further. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Well, let me also add something 
to that: It has also been stated that the primary reason why 
we have reached this dilerruna is that we have focused too much 
attention, to a large extent, on the dewatering process and the 
process of reaching the interim solution, and not enough on the 
process of dealing with the pretreatment arguments. We have 
not moved aggressively enough in that area. That's the second. 
part of that. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: I would agree that we 
need-- And I will confirm. that when we get into the slides, 
that further· emphasis on the pretreatment is definitely 
required. 

With Bergen County, therefore, we are trying to get 
back on track with dewatering, and then the interim measure is 

40 



to-- Since there is an interest in it, why don't I go straight 
to the pretreatment. You might already know the status of the 
six authorities. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Is that in your handout anywhere, 
what you're going to talk about? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: The status? 
SENATOR CONTILLO: No, the pretreatment. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: The status is in 

there. There is a series of slides in the handouts that I 
would like to get into. They're the extended page. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Slides, did you say? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: I'm sorry. Handouts. 
What we have on the legal sized paper -- and there are 

six of them -- is a history of. the metals concentration for 
each one of the six authorities now discharging into the 
ocean. What you can see on each of them, is that over time 
there has been, in many cases, a very significant reduction in 
the metals concentration in the sludge. I should add that the 
major problem with the toxicity in the sludge currently relates 
to the metals concentration. There is also, of course, concern 
about things like PCBs and organic substances, but metals are 
the major problem, particularly the major problem relating to 
land .reuse options. 

Underneath each graph on this handout are two notes. 
There is a Class A limit and a Class B limit-. Those refer to· 
class of sludge as they relate to land use alternatives. The 
State requires to consider a land application, that all sludge 
meet at least Class B sludge criteria. In each case at the 
current time, the. authorities have at least one metal that is 
over this limit. That is a significant problem. If we want to 
go to land disposal, we need to have further pretreatment 
alternatives to take care of these metals -- concentrations. I 
should add that incineration does not remove metals; it just 
moves it from one place to another. And composting does not 
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remove metals either; it stays there. There is no effective 
way to remove the metals from sludge except to take it out at 
the source; that is, where it's corning from upstream from 
the sewage treatment plant. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Is that-- That can be done? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That can be done, and I 

think the graphs here demonstrate that it is being done. If 
you look at the first one for Bergen County, you' 11 note that 
in the last several years there's been a dramatic reduction in 
the chromium concentration. The land application standard is 
1000 milligrams per kilogram. Bergen County, in 1989, is down 
to 216. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Why would the arsenic 
MS. PETTIT: The arsenic reflects 

problem. The detection 1 irni t at the lab they 
too high, so whatever the arsenic value was, 

be 
a 

were 
it 

up so much? 
laboratory 
using was 
was below 

that. We have since returned to Bergen· County and have 
required them to use· a better detection limit. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: So, that's a reflection of a better 
testing technique? 

MS. PETTIT: No. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We believe there's 

problems with the testing in there, that they can't measure 
down to a low enough concentration. We can't say what it· 
really is. They're correcting the problem. They're us.ing a 
better laboratory, or a better laboratory procedure. Hopefully 
that will show that the· concentrations are, in fact, a lot 
lower. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Let me ask Mr. Kiselica: Do you, 
as a Federal administrator, set any of these controls, or is 
this basically State initiated? 

MR. KISELICA: No. It's actually joint. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Jointly? 
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MR. KISELICA: Yes. In terms of pretreatment 
controls, the State is delegated the NPDES program, including 
delegation of pretreatment regulation, and they're implementing 
both Federal standards as well as State regulations. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: If you look at the 
other ones you' 11 see, on the second page -- the first page, 
with Bergen County, the metal of concern right now which we're 
addressing, which hopefully will not be of concern when we get 
better analytical results, is arsenic. The second handout here 
is related to Joint Meeting. The one of most significant 
concern is copper; the land application standard being 1200, 
and they're over it for copper. 

Copper is an interesting metal in terms of how you 
handle it for pretreatment. A lot of ~he copper comes from 
copper pipe, not s~rprisingly. Particularly acidic waters have 
a tendency to dissolve a low concentration of the copper.and it 
comes out in the sludge. This could be significantly -- could 
be very difficult to reduce substantially -- the copper. Where 
copper is 
industries, 

corning from 
they need to 

specific point 
be id~ntified 

sources, specific 
and reduced to an 

absolute minimum, but there will· always be this. copper residue 
that we .need to deal with. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Does the lead come from plumbing, 
also? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH i Lead plumbing -- lead 
solder -- is also of genuine concern. That's correct. I was 
going to comment on lead. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Well, rather than commenting on 
the overall, you know, each and every problem that we have 
which seems to have been slowly reduced in some cases, but as 
you point out, by not enough in other cases, and creating some 
other problems in other cases--

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: You will note that it 
varies from authority to authority. Some are having dramatic 
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success, some not so much. Linden-Roselle, unfortunately, has 
had the least success in reducing their concentrations and has 
some of the highest levels. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Is that because they put people out 
of business, or is that because they have improved their own 
filtering techniques? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: The story varies from 
authority to authority, but it relates to going back to the 
source. Passaic Valley, for example, had a very intensive 
investigation of possible mercury sources and an intensive 
investigation of plating operations, and effected significant 
reductions as a result of that. In some cases, people went out 
of business.· As I said, there is very little you can do at the 
source. 

Linden-Roselle, you should note, has improved their 
treatment effectiveness such that we believe that. one of the 
reasons concentrations haven't been reduced is that metals that 
were previously not removed in the treatment process, are now 
being removed. So the concentration going out to the Arthur 
Kill is less, but the concentration in the sludge has not been 
reduced. The benefit to the environment is good, but we still 

. . 
don't have a sludge that is suitable for land application. 

SENATOR DALTON: So the fact that the chart goes up 
might indicate that the--

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER. KEITH: For that particular 
case, it might indicate ~hat we• re actually ta.king mar~ out 
that was previously going into the water, right. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: How does that answer Senator 
Dalton's question? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Okay, let's get on. 
That's the history of the pretreatment. Are we doing--

SENATOR CONTILLO: You're hypnotizing us here, you 
know. 
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SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Could we get to where-- Let us 
get to what you are going to do about it. Okay? Let's get to 
that, if we can, because this has been going on for years. 
That we've known. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: But the point is, we 
are making progress, or the authorities are making progress, i~ 

reducing metals concentrations in the sludge to levels that 
would be acceptable for land application. 

What do we have to do further? We need to have 
further more extensive pretreatment alternatives, investigation 
of sources, and better treatment at the source. 

SENATOR DALTON: John, tell us how we get to that. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Under the Clean Water 

Enforcement Act, more stringent programs are mandated to be 
implemented by the sewer authorities, so the tools are there. 

SENATOR DALTON: At what point in time? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: How fast? 
SENATOR DALTON: Yeah. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: That's another way to put it; how 

fast, or at what point in time? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER· KEITH: How f.ast are we going 

to achieve complia·1ce with all the standards? That's a good 
question. 

SENATOR DALTON: Okay. So we really don't know. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: No, we don't.· 
SENATOR DALTON: · Okay: And pollution prevention, 

another mechanism-~ 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That's correct. 
SENATOR DALTON: --has just passed one conuni ttee of 

one hous·e of the Legislature. So now what we have is a date, 
March 11. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Seventeenth. 
SENATOR DALTON: Excuse me. That's a very holy day. 

And what are the counties now, the regional authorities, 

45 



doing? What have they submitted to you as to what they will be 
doing as of that date? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: The interim plan is the 
dewatering of and hauling out-of-state, with the exception of 
Middlesex County, which is planning to go with the Chern-fix 
solidification process and use the material as landfill cover. 
Their proposal was to use it at Edgeboro landfill, and of 
course, we have concerns about the future of Edgeboro landfill 
right now because of proposals related to that particular 
landfill. Events developing around Edgeboro landfill could 
potentially affect Middlesex County's plan. They may need 
another alternative for the interim, as well. It's too 
uncertain to know what's going to happen to it right now. 

SENATOR DALTON: So five out of six - of these 
authorities are actually doing something that has a negligible 
or perhaps even a more negative impact upon the environment? 
In other words, we' re taking it out of one rnedi um, · i.e. the 
ocean, and putting it into another medium, i.e. the land. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That's correct. 
SENATOR DALTON: And I would assume that you would 

sugge~t to me, or strongly indicate to me, that that is 
unacceptable. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: As I indicated, we 
believe that landfilling of sludge is not a good or desirable 
long-'term strategy. It should .be used ·on an emer9ency basis 
only. 

SENATOR DALTON: Okay. Without getting into why we 
are allowing, and the history of allowing these folks to do 
something that is environmentally unacceptable, what are we 
doing as far as the long-term, John? What have these 
authorities indicated that their long-term plans are? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: On your Table 3 there 
is a sununary of the interim and long-term plans. As you can 
see, the current plan for each one of the authorities, with the 
exception of Middlesex, is some sort of thermal processing. 
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SENATOR DALTON: Thermal processing? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Right. 
SENATOR DALTON: What's that mean? 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Is that burning? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Yes. 
SENATOR DALTON: That's incineration. Okay. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: That's a new name. That's like a 

euphemism for taxes is revenue enhancement. We now have 
thermal processing. I see. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That's right. Well, 
it's better than resource recovery, you know. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Let me get to this--
SENATOR DALTON: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman? Just one 

more question? What we are doing-- Do you believe that 
incineration is an appropriate long-term disposal method for 
sludge? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: As I stated at the very . . 
beginning, we believ·e that in the hierarchy· of reduction of 
volume, improvement of quality is the first thing that should 
be done; beneficial reuse is second; and then only after that 
should we get down to these other alt.ernatives. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: What was second? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Beneficial reuse; land 

application, which is either with or without composting. 
SENATOR DALTON: So you would suggest then, John, that 

the plans that have been laid put by the ·authorities, with the 
exception of Middlesex, are unacceptable? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That's the difference 
between unacceptable and the most desirable, okay. What I'd 
like to go on to--

SENATOR CONTILLO: My recollection is that the 
Department objected to the March 17 deadline originally, 
because they knew that the authorities couldn't come out in an 
orderly fashion. 
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ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: There is a significant 
problem with them meeting the deadline of March 17. That is 
why every one of them has come forward with an interim plan 
that has landfilling. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: But I• m saying the Department 
DEP -- opposed this deadline when it was first proposed. Is 
that correct? 

MS. PETTIT: That's correct. Yes, we did, because we 
were concerned that there wouldn't be the amount of time 
necessary to explore the wide range of alternatives in order to 
meet that deadline, and that would necessitate their returning 
to their 201 Plans, which they had all evaluated, and--

SENATOR CONTILLO: I'm sorry, I don't know what a 201 
Plan is? 

MS. PETTIT: A 201 Plan is a plan which was developed 
under Section 201 of the Federal Clean Water Act, which is 
necessary for securing a Federal grant for construction of 
wastewater facilities. Each one of the ocean dumpers planned 
for many years to get out of the ocean and~ after analyzing 
dozens and dozens of alternatives, each one of the ocean 
dumpers identified some form of thermal reduction, be it--
There are various types of thermal reduction, but they each 
identified some form of thermal .reduction as their alternative 
in those plans. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: But no one wi 11, by St. Patrick's 
Day, be doing any of the~e things. All they will be doing is 
the Zinpro type of thing, which pollutes the air, so they can 
then take the material and place it in land. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Well, no. They' re 
not-- Only Passaic Vai ley has a Zinpro. The others have the 
centrifuge, which doesn't have the air pollution. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: I understand that, but what 
percentage of the problem will be done that way? Quite a large 
percentage? 
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ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Well, the 
solidification, I mean dewatering, will be done by all. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: I guess the whole issue here all 
morning has been: Yes, we should be doing this and that. But, 
are we defeating the purpose by saying it must be done within 
nine months, with everyone scrambling about to put a system in 
place to get out of the ocean that is no better than being in 
the ocean? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That cpntinues to rely 
I 

on landfilling.. That's the significant problem. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: It's worse than landfilling because 

they' re all aiming at the least productive method, that you 
agree is your last choice, and that the previous speaker said 
is thei~ last choice. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That's correct. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Why are we forcing our hand,· to 

spend hundreds of millions of dollars to do something that 
nobody wants to do? Why don·' t we, in effect-- . 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We have. And it's 
appropriate that you're considering the· issue. We have a 
legislative mandate for March 17 and the Department is tryi.ng. 
to live up to that mandate. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Yeah, but that's the purpose of 
this hearing. Is that legislative mandate sensible? I sat 
through the hearing and was told quite--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: No, that's not the purpose of the 
hearing. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: No? I'm sorry. I thought this was 
on-- Is this not on Senator Rice's bill? 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: No. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Oh, I'm sorry. 

thought this was on Senator Rice's bill. 
MS. PETTIT: If you'll forgive me? 

I apologize. I 

Perhaps what we're 
doing is putting the cart before the ·horse in our consideration 
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of pretreatment. One of the big problems we have in 
pretreatment is establishing what a valid limit is that can be 
held up when an industry litigates against us. We can't just 
pick a 1 imi t out of the air and say, "You have to comply with 
this limit." There has to be a justified technical basis for 
that limit. 

The fir st thing the ocean dumpers a 11 have to do is 
install dewatering. That can be done fairly quickly. It's a 
routine procedure. Everyone can get dewatering up by March 17, 

.but where do they take it? The only place that you can take it 
by March 17, fast, is probably a landfill, and then that sets 
what your criteria for limits are. You look at this management 
mode -- landfilling. What are the criteria for sludge quality 
going into a landfill? And the only quality is nonhazardous, 
so that's where we start. 

The next tier is, what is the long-term ·management 
mode? What are the criteria for that management mode? If they 
have selected incineration, then they have to wait-until their 
permits are complete to see what t~e sludge quality limits are 
for their incinerators. before they can back those limits into 
the industries that discharge_into their systems. If they had 
selected land application which they could have or 
composting, we would have backed up the land ap~lication limits 
to their indus~ries so that they could meet those limits. 

But it's a question of one step at a time. The cart 
must follow the horse, and in this case, establishing the 
management mode then establishes the limit, and that's where we 
are today. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: But, are the dollars not being 
wasted, these hundreds of millions of dollars, on sending it to 
a land-based facility, because the law says you must be out by 
March 1 7? If you extended that, could not those hundreds of 
millions of dollars be spent for pEetreatment? In the 
long-run, over the next decade·, would that not be-- In other 
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words, instead of a1m1ng at an interim plan to get us out in a 
few months, if you looked at the 10-year proposal of what you 
had to do sensibly, and dealt with the dollars in that way, we 
would be better off in the long-run. To get the heavy metals 
out -- and I don't care if you burn it or landfill it or 
compost it -- you're going to have to get them out. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That's correct. An 
aggressive pretreatment process is absolutely necessary. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: I mean, that has to be done. We 
all know that by the year 2000 they're going to be out, one way 
or another. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Let me first say that 
sluqge dewatering is a necessary step for virtually all of the 
technologies that are available, so that money is not wasted. 
Landfilling at an appropriate landfill with leachate collection 
and caps and l_iners and things like that: It's at least, if 
not desirable, a controlled discharge to the environment as 
opposed to straight ocean dumping. 

One thing I would like to get into is, what can be 
done for land application? What could we do to drive this, 
since we all agree that that's a better higher in the 
hierarchy than landfilling or incineration? I've given on 
Table 4-- What calculates· the last column over thez;e is how 
many acres would actually be required for the six authorities 
per year, assuming they all meet Class B sludge requirements 
for metals. 

This acreage per year is acres that would be consumed; 
that is, you could apply it once at both metals concentrations, 
and then you could not reapply it. So you would need · this 
number of new acres every year. The total comes out: to s·ome 
2000 acres every year, three square miles. Three square miles 
of land that you could not apply sludge to again. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: But you're talking about applying 
it on a landfill basis, right? 
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ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: No. This is land 
application as compost or as fertilizer for agricultural areas. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: You're saying that it would take 
three miles of land per year to occupy the use of this material 
as composting? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: To apply the sludge 
such at a-- And then you couldn't reapply it, so as to number 
one, protect the soil quality so that it would-- You're not 
generating metals, dust, or anything like that that would pe 
harmful, or you wouldn't be affecting the agricultural products 
that you're raising. 

The point here, 
significant amount of land. 
with or without composting, 
not going to find the land 
they don't have a lot of 

three square miles a year, a 
If we go into a· land application 

we need to find the land. You' re 
in northeastern New Jersey, because 
agricultural land to begin wit~. 

Various alternatives, such as agricultural land or 
·transportation land, need to be explored for this, but it is a 
significant amount of land. 

How does this get back to the ocean dumping situation? 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: How long have you known this? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We've known this-- It 

isn't new knowledqe.- I can't say how long it's .been around. 
If we say we want to go to land application, and we. 

get the metals down to Class B s.ludge requirements, we then 
. need to find appropriate amounts of land. Again, within New 
Jersey, because we want to have self-sufficiency. We don't 
want to depend on other states or to be held hostage to them. 
Those areas of the State where this could be done rural 
areas, perhaps southern Jersey; areas away from generation 
their interests in this would have to be considered as·well. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: You'd better believe it. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We have several ·factors 

-- call them obstacles -- for ~~om~ting these land application 
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alternatives. I I 11 give you a quick list of them: First, 
there is the liability of the farmers. You know farmers have 
protection from nuisance suits due to odors if they' re 
applying, say, animal manure. The current legislative 
framework does not give protection from that sort of nuisance 
suit if they are applying sludge if there are odors relating to 
it. 

Second, there is extensive monitoring ,required. We 
want 

1 

to make sure that those metalsl stay in compliance and that 
the application rates are suitable so that we don't have any 
buildup of metals in the soil. That increases the costs, and 
it is also a liability issue. Who is liable for the metals 
concentration in the soil: the farmer, the DEP, or the 
authority? 

SENATOR CONTILLO: John, may I interrupt for one 
second? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Surely. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: I don't want to take you off your 

point. The point is, there are questions with regard to- land 
application. However, the only type of land application that 
I've heard you talk about is agricultural land application. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Or appl icat.ion on such 
things as the median dividers of highways and things like that. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: May I tell you something? 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Okay, did you consider golf 

courses, cemeteries, university lands, public parks? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Yes, that would be the 

same thing. Yes, all of that's in there. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Okay. So-:-- By the way, they have 

all of those in different regions of the State, right? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: That's correct. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Okay, we' 11 acknowledge that. So 

it doesn't have to be a South Jersey cemetery. (laughter) 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Absolutely. 
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SENATOR CONTILLO: One of the things, too, as far as 
not seeing you exploring -- and tell me if you are going to get 
to it is the reuse issue a la Middlesex County. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Yes, I am going to get 
to it. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Okay. And ultimately you will tell 
us, I am sure, that you have now turned 180 degrees and changed 
your mind with regard to the incineration of-this. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIO~R KEITH: I am going to end where 
I started from: that we have a hierarchy of management 
alternatives that we prefer to see, yes. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Well, in between, tell us how 
you' re going to drive State public policy away from the least 
beneficial alternative, okay? That '.s· what this Committee, I 
think, wants to get at. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Well, I want to ·go one .st.ep 
further, okay, before you finish? You can finish anytime, but 
I'm going to say to you that I would like -- and I ·will do thi~ 
formally -- I would like you to develop a management policy, 
and u~ timately, hopefully, through a mechanism of an advisory 
council on sludge management alternatives, to implement that as 
quickly as possible; to begin to move forward with the help of 
-- considering Senator Dalton· s legislation ·that was released 
from this Cammi ttee last week -- considering . the Clean Water 
Enforcement Act that will be signed on Wednesday, considering 
that as your driving force in the areas that you talked about, 
begin to develop an overall management plan to be implemented 
as quickly as possible -- begin to forget about where we have 
been and start looking at where we're going. 

I simply· cannot acc~pt the fact that after all of 
these years of di.scussing this situation that we come to a 
conclusion, among other things, that according to your 
calculations we're going to need three miles of new land every 
year to apply this material if it's going to be considered for 
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beneficial reuse. I will tell you that if that's your 
conclusion, to me personally, that's a totally unacceptable 
conclusion a totally unacceptable conclusion. That if 
that's what all of this technological research, and all of this 
discussion, and all of this dialogue has brought us to, that's 
totally unacceptable. It is totally, completely, without 
question, unacceptable, that we have reached that conclusion. 

There are people here I am sure in this room, and I 
hope to get them to testify at some point, who have 
technologies, who have e~plored technologies. I don '·t 
understand why we have to find three miles of parkland, median 
dividers, farmland, every single year different properties 
because we' re simply saying we can't reduce this material to 
the extent that it can . be applied year after year on a 
continuing basis the way people--

Are you telling me that ChemLawn should be-- Maybe we· 
should be go~ng out and looking at ChemLawn and all those 
companies? They shouldn • t be applying that every year to the 
lawns. That seems to be what you're saying to me. 

SENATOR DALTON: Se~at9r Contiilo' s going to· have a 
hearing on that. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: I use them, you ·know, a lot of 
·the other companies-- I don't mean to pick them out. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSION'.R KEITH: The achievement of that 
conclusion-:- This is predicated on the assumption that all 
these authorities, and the numbers, are going to be worse than 
what you like. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: I don't care about them. You 
know, I know al 1 about the· numbers. We' 11 have another set of 
charts in two months. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: This assumes that they 
are going to meet Class B sludge. If we can get better 
pretreatment there is a potential to reduce that number from 
three square miles to something less. However, we have only 
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been talking about the sludge from these six authorities, which 
represents roughly one-half the sludge generated in the State. 
We want a sludge management plan that addresses all the sludge 
in the State. 

Admittedly, most of the sludge in the State is of 
better quality than in the most industrialized areas, but we 
still have copper pipes throughout the State, and we have lead 
solder. We have serious problems. We're always going to have 
some residual concentration of metals as a result of the 
general usage of water and the construction materials .of our 
water systems. 

There wi 11 be -- whether we 1 ike it or not a 
significant amount of land required because of residual metals 
below which we cannot get. That land would have to be found 
someplace. What I am suggesting to you is that when we look at 
land application models, the Department -- the administration 
-- would like to see several programmatic problems, legislative 
problems that are obstacles to beneficial reuse of these 
materials considered, and that's what -- the list I was giving 
Y?U: protection for the fa~mers from the .sui~s, the monitoring 
requirements, the fact that the food processors prohibit sludge 
use because they are concerned about contaminants in the food 
products -- a genuine concern -- the interaction between sludge 
management and soil conservation districts-- We need to--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Will you give us a--
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We can write someth~ng 

up for you. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Well, would you please present to 

the Committee a list·of those initiatives you would like us to 
consider? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Certainly. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: In exchange for that, I will 

present you with a formal request to immediately move forward 
with some type of advisor~ group -- -and we can probably develop 
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the group's size and composition -- to work with them and the 
Legislature in moving toward a m~nagement model that will 
change the direction that we've been going in, and start to 
look at it as a can-do/will-do situation, rather than coming up 
with a thousand reasons why this sludge is no good, and that 
sludge is too much of a problem. And industry will work with 
us. They will work with us. I can guarantee you they will. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: The administration has 
I already taken steps to institute an objective evaluation and 
reconsideration of our sludge future. We are committed already 
to doing this. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Good. That's good. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Without prodding, we're 

going to do it. I've already got plans on the books to do that. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: There's nothing wrong with 

.prodding. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Okay. You can prod. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: We get prodded. You're going to 

prod us; we're going to prod you. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We are going to do 

that. And yes, we can come back with. some of the pr_oblems with 
it. It. is ~n ·enormous amount of sludge. It requires a lot of 
land. That land has to be found someplace. There is political 
opposition from people who live near where the sludge would 
go. Whether it's a golf course or a c~metery or whatever, 
there are people who live by them. There are odor 
considerations, and a lot of technical considerations. We want 
to move beyond them, but there has got to be the recognition~­
It' s not an easy problem, and it's not going to go away just 
because, you know-- Some of these issues -- enormous land 
volumes, the transport from highly developed areas to less 
developed areas -- are not going to go away. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. Let's give you a break, so 
we can get on to other people, too. Let's give Mr. Kiselica a 
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chance to say what he might do as a Federal administrator to 
help us along the way here, now that we've changed our 
management direction and are going to start moving in another 
way. Let's see what you can do to help us move that way, and 
then I'd like to get some of the authorities that are here to 
give their opinion and then, after that, some of the private 
industry people. 

SENATOR DALTON: Mr. Chairman? Again, at some point, 
and we' 11-- Someone is going to have to answer the question; 
that is, ultimately what are we going to do? What is the 
long-term strategy of this State for dealing with sludge, and 
what are we moving toward as an option? No one has addressed 
that question as· of yet. No one, okay? I have been told about 
what is the most desirable, what is the least desirable. No 
one has indicated what we are going to do. 

MR. KISELICA: With that, I'll start. I corr_ected my 
testimony here. I' 11 start with a good afternoon. My name is 
Bruce Kiselica. I am the Chief of the Ocean Programs Section 
within Region II of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 
Our Region includes the States of New Jersey and New York, 
Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands. I. am pleased to be 
here tod·ay and thank the c9rnmi ttee for this opportunity to 
discuss implementation of the.Ocean Dumping Ban Act of 1988. 

The Ocean Dumping Ban Act states that an ocean dumper, 
the state in which it is located, and the EPA shall enter into 
a compliance or an enforcement agreement_ as 
issuing a permit for continuing ocean dumping. 

a condition of 
The Act also 

requires a compliance agreement to include a negotiated plan 
for the ocean dumper to terminate its ocean dumping by December 
31, 1991 through the design, construction, and full 
implementation of an alternative, or long-term system for the 
management of the sludge. If that cannot be accomplished by 
December of '91, the parties must enter into an enforcement 
agreement. 
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The nine existing New Jersey and New York municipal 
sewage sludge generators submitted complete permit applications 
for the ocean dumping of sludge a number of years ago. The EPA 
then drafted the permits containing numerous new conditions to 
minimize the adverse impacts and to ensure a more control led 
dumping operation. Nine permits were issued on August 4, 1989 
and became effective August 14. Judicial consent decrees and 
enforcement agre~ments were successfully negotiated with each 
ocean dumping authority, and all of the agreements were signed 
on or before August 4 of last year. 

Regarding the specific interim schedules for ceasing 
ocean dumping, the ocean dumpers have developed the fol lowing 
plans as part of their agreements. As you know, the six New 
Jersey authorities plan to cease ocean disposal by March 17, 

1991, in accordance with State law. Nassau County Department 
of Public Works and Westchester County Department of 
Environmental Facilities plan to completely cease ocean 
disposal by December 31, 1991. Nassau County will phase out 
50% by June 30, 1991,· six months earlier. New York City plans 
to completely phase out by June 30, 1992, with an initial 
phaseout of 20% by December of 1991. The City will be assessed 
a penalty of $600 per d~y ton of sludge dumped in the ocean 
during 1992, that six-month period that they will be going 
after the Federal deadline. At this point we've estimated that 
to be approximately $29 ~illion in penalties. I think it was 
mentioned earlier that a majority of it does work its way back 
to the ocean dumper who paid the penalty or fee. In this case, 
approximately $1.8 million would not be returned to the City. 

The dumpers also have schedules for implementing 
long-term sludge management alternatives between 1991 and 
1998. The ocean dumpers contend that these schedules are tight 
and EPA and the states agree. 

Since New Jersey has been, and will continue to be 
discussed quite a bit in detail today, I though I'd concentrat_e 
a little bit on the New York authorities. 
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Nassau County initiated planning in late 1987. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: But if they don't come out of the 

ocean-- They've given you a plan to come out and you're going 
to charge them "X" dollars. That money, as I say, cycles back 
to them for their own mitigation of the problem, doesn't it? 

MR. KISELICA: As is currently done with all of the 
authorities, both--

SENATOR CONTILLO: Well, not for New York, though, 
because we tiave a State law we have to comply with, so we'll be 
out before--

MR. KISELICA: All authorities started paying, or 1re 
liable for ocean dumping fees as of August 14 of last year. In 
'89 the fees were $100 a dry ton. This year they're $150 a dry 
ton. All authorities are paying ~hose fees right now. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: And that money goes to whom? 
MR. KI~ELICA: The majority of the money goes into 

trust accounts that have been set up by each of . the 
authorities. Fifteen dol~ars a dry ~on comes to EPA. We have 
to split our fi~e (sic) between the Coast Guard and NOAA. 

SENATOR. CONTILLO: I guess my question to you is a 
charade. New York City says they are coming out of the ocean.· 

MR. KISELICA: That's what we have agreed to. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Okay. Where are they going to put 

the material, _Long Island? Mario's not letting them put it 
upstate .. I mean, where's it going? 

MR. KISELICA: Okay. I'll be covering that. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Or are they just going to pay the 

fine and . put it in the ti 11 unt i 1 they get to where they are 
going? 

MR. KISELICA: No. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Okay. 
MR. KISELICA: For Nassau and Westchester Counties, 

they jointly issued a request for proposal for privatization of 
land-based dis1~sal options. Four joint responses, six 
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Nassau-only responses, and eight 
were received. In reporting on 

Westchester-only responses 
its RFP responses, Nassau 

County requested an agreement modification and extension for 
pursuing potential off-island dewa~ering with two of the 
private vendors instead of constructing dewatering· facilities 
at one of its own treatment plants. EPA and New York State 
objected, primarily because reliance upon vendors to obtain 
approvals for off-site dewatering would not ensure timely 
achievement of the milestones, and did not, by the avoidance of 
critical siting issues, represent sound environmental 
management. 

Nassau County disagreed and pursued the matter in 
court by entering a modification motion. The court 
expeditiously issued its decision in light of Nassau County's 
tight time frame for implementing its interim plan and denied 
the motion, c~tin~ concerns about how Nassa~ County would meet 
its consent decree milestones and the statutory deadline for 

·ceasing ocean dumping. 
Hence, Nassau County is currently proceeding with its 

schedule for constructing the additional dewatering facility 
itself. They have proposed to construct this at one of their 
facilities called Bay Park, and have issued their environmental 
impact statements on their interim and · long-term plan for 
public comment. Nassau County has completed final design and 
recently received bids for constructing its dewatering facility. 

New York City initiated planning· in late 1988. 
Several reports concerning transportation, existing conditions, 
and sludge quality are being prepared. Design of eight 
dewatering facilities is being completed;. a number of 
construction contracts have been bid. The City's centrifuge 
dewatering equipment order is being filled. Site work is 
underway at one of the largest dewatering facilities. New York 
City, 1 ike Westchester and Nassau, is using a two-staged RFP 
process for privatized land-based disposal options. 
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Thirty-nine initial proposals were received; most respondents 
were asked to participate in the second, more detailed stage. 
The City is reviewing the 10 final RFP technical and cost 
responses. The public review of New York City's interim plans 
will take place this summer. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Sir? May I ass urne-- I 
appreciate this testimony, but I want to make one distinction. 
You were talking about New York City sludge and a management 
plan that affects them, and they have virtually no metals. Is 
that correct? 

MR. KISELICA: No, that's not correct. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Very few. Very little in 

comparison with New Jersey? 
MR. KISELICA: I would have to--
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: The answer to that is, "Yes. 11 

Okay? G.o ahead. 
MR .. KISELICA: No, it's not. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: We have the analysis, so we know 

the answer to that is yes. 
MR. KIS.ELICA: Well, New York City--
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Compared to New Jersey the amount 

of heavy metal content is not as much, but, go ahead. 
MR. KISELICA: It depends on which plant. They have 

14 different treatment plants, and 14 different sludge--
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: On an overall basis, though, New 

York City an.d Westchester and Nassau have comparatively low 
metal content. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We have to note that it 
also relates to the effectiveness of the treatment: Are their 
treatment plants removing the metals so that they are not being 
discharged into the ocean? 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. They may have a more 
effective pretreatment plan, no? 
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ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We would have a more 
effective treatment so more metals end up in the sludge rather 
than in the ocean. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay, okay, fine. I'm sorry. I 
didn't mean to interrupt. 

MR. KISELICA: I would point out the copper problem is 
also pervasive--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Pervasive in New York? 
MR. KISELICA: Yeah, especially in Westchester and 

Nassau, where sludge generally-- Yes. Both of those are 
cleaner. Basically they serve domestic areas and are not 
heavily industrialized in Nassau and Westchester Counties. 
Nonetheless, the amounts of copper concentrations remaining in 
the sludge are a concern and are putting tough restrictions in 
terms of their ability to deal with sludge on the land. 

In co.ncluding for New Y9rk City, the public review of 
their interim plans will take place this summer. 

Westchester County initiated planning in January 
1989. It has prepared a series of reports that .address data 
collection and analysis, and alternatives development and 
screening. They completed the final design of., and advertised 
for the dewatering equipment. A nearby homeowners' association 
filed a lawsuit in the State Supreme Court ~hallenging 

Westchester County's decision to select its Yonker~ treatment 
plant for the installation of the dewatering eguipment, without 
preparing a f~l l environmental impact study. This suit has 
been removed to Federal Court and it's currently pending 
review. Westchester will ·decide whether to select a private 
vendor from the RFPs that were received or to proceed with an 
interim alternative on its own. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Sir, could you sum up by telling 
us in your view as an EPA Region I I Director, what you think 
the reality of New York being able to take a percentage out of 
"the ocean, safely, will be, by 1991 or '92, whenever their 
deadline is? 
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occur? 

go? 

MR. KISELICA: In other words, do I think it will 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Yes. 
MR. KISELICA: Yes. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Where will it occur? Where will it 

MR. KISELICA: At present, since they' re evaluating 
now about eight to ten RFP responses, they haven't been 
selected. Each private vendor has different--

SENATOR CONTILLO: Tell me where the eight are, then? 
Where are they? Landfills, I presume? Where? 

MR. KISELICA: Well, primarily the City is looking 
within the City for certain disposal of part of the material. 
Number one, I don't think the City will proceed and contract 
with--

.SENATOR CONTILLO: Within the confines of New York 
City? 

MR. KISELICA: Part of it. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Within the five boroughs? 
MR. KISELICA:. Part of the sludge may end up within 

the five boroughs. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: I'm sure. 
MR. KISELICA: I don't think they are going to--

There's not going to be one place. This is maybe 
crystal-balling it .a little· bit, since: they haven't selected 

. -
the vend.ors, and there again, I don't . think they' re going to. 
select just one vendor, who has-- Even one vendor may have 
multiple disposal options. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: And I say to you that they don't 
intend to get out of the oce~n. 

MR. KISELICA: Well, I would beg to differ. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: You're going to tell me they are 

going to landfill and compost this material within the confines 
of the City of New York? 
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MR. KISELICA: I'm saying part of the s 1 udge may end 
up within the five boroughs. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Where will the rest of it go? 
MR. KISELICA: Either upstate New York, or 

out-of-state. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Yeah, or the moon, or wherever. I 

mean, you know, have there been any concrete proposals? 
MR. KISELICA: Yes. Those are currently under review 

by the City, and they will go out for public comment this 
summer. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: 
going to be incineration? 

Is it going to be compost? Is it 

MR. KISELICA: The alternatives range from compo.sting, 
chemical stabilization, land application. One was an 
incinerator--

SENATOR CONTILLO: I know the spectrum. 
MR. KISELICA: --landfill-- Yeah, the complete 

spectrum .. Again, I don't see the City picking one alternative· 
o_r one vendor. They may try to match sludge quality with 
different alternatives. Neither will .all of the sludge go 
out-of-state, upstate, or within the City. 

Landfill? 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Is any going to Fresh Kills 

MR. KISELICA: Will it go? 
SENATOR VAN .WAGNER: Is any going to there? 
MR. KISELICA: I'm not sure at this point .. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: But if they don't act, it will go 

to 106 miles off of the coast. 
MR. KISELICA: If they don't, we1 l, yes. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: In other words, we have a bunch · 

of plans which depend primarily on· dewatering, and to some 
extent pretreatment which may or may not take a certain 
percentage of the sludge somewhere other than -- well,· take all 
of the sludge -- somewhere other than the ·ocean by June of 
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1992, but will, in effect in effect does not have a 
definitive hierarchy of implementation -- in a sense. It's 
just, "Let's get through the dewatering, let's get it out. 
Let's find the landfill, let's make our deal, and then we'll 
worry about long-range next." 

MR. KISELICA: No. I don't think so. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: You don't think so? 
MR. KISELICA: New York City itself is applying a 

similar hierarchy--
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: To New Jersey? 
MR. KISELICA: --to New Jersey, as well as the Federal 

government, in) terms of incineration. Landfilling would be the 
last alternative, both for the interim, and certainly for the 
long-term. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: I wonder if I could just take a 
break from the agencies that are here for a minute, and then 
move to a couple of-- Stay in proximity, if you would, because 
I'm going to ask you to respond. 

I'd like to call up a couple of--
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Excuse me. I did want 

to make one comment in response to a question that I didn't get 
back to, and that was on the chemica~ fixation alternative, 
which has been discussed. That's the process of .solidifying 
the sludge with other materials and then using it as landfill 
cover or for other areas where low-gra.de soil materials could 
be t.ised. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: I guess what we want to know 
though, John, is, do you have an analysis of: "This much will 
be dewatered and will be used and ·will be eligible for· use as 
landfill cover. This much will be done in this fashion because 
of the pretreatment that ·has been put in place. It will be 
eligible for use for other types of land applicati'on, including 
composting and fertilizing. This much we're going to have 
left, and we' re going to have to figure out wt ·:·ther or not we 
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should incinerate it, or if that wi 11 create problems or we 
should, on an interim basis, make landfilling arrangements in 
other places, or in New Jersey itself, if that's possible"? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We've done that. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Do we have that? 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We intend to revisit 

that, because a lot of those depend upon the assumptions of 
pretreatment, metals concentration, and of course, reflect the 
ocean dumping--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Well, you're going to have to put 
assumptions in, but you're going to have that ready, when? 

SENATOR DALTON: When is the earliest incinerator 
going on-line, John? 

ASSISTANT COMMISS~ONER KEITH: - We have 10 sludge 
incinerators in the State at the current time. 

SENATOR DALTON: No, when is the earliest of the five 
out of six authorities going to incineration? 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: I don't have a date on 
that. 

SENATOR DALTON: Okay; Let me just say this: We 
don~t have a statewide plan, okay? That's plain to see. We do 
not have a statewide plan. We are going to fallow-- We are 
following the same mistakes and making the same mistakes with 
regard to solid waste, we' re making the same mistakes with 
regard to sludge. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: No question about it. 
SENATOR DALTON: And if we don't have a plan, and we 

don't have a plan driving public policy, then we will revisit 
the past, and the past everyone feels is unacceptable. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: The administration 
agrees. We need a plan and that's why we've already elected to 
start reconsidering this, our sludge futures. You're right. 

SENATOR DALTON: Well, John, at some point and 
through the Chairman -- we'd love to have you back and discuss 
your plan. 
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SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Well, we're going to do more than 
that. 

SENATOR DALTON: We would love to have you come back. 
I would love to just hear you say that you have a plan. You 
can't allow people to use incineration, and drive towards 
incineration without a plan. You talked about the cart before 
the horse. That's exactly what this is -- the cart before the 
horse. The State 1 s got to drive it. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: You know what the prevailing word 
is outside in the environmental services industry, just to give 
you an insight? I don't know when you came on board here in 
the DEP or how long you've been around, but for the last 
several years people I've talked to in other areas of 
technology who are interested in. this industry because 
that's what it's going to become -- who have said that they 
generally have felt that the door has been closed to them in 
New Jersey; that if they're not incineration oriented, they're 
not welcome. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We have certainly heard 
that sentiment, and with this current administration we are 
intending to change that, and develop a plan. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. Thank you, John. I 
appreciate that. I know we put you under some tough 
questioning, but I think we got, at least--

SENATOR CONTILLO: Does he have a little time frame 
for.this plan? I mean, he admits he doesn't have~-

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Well, I think we have to develop 
a time frame together. I think that's the next step. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Does the Department have a time 
frame for projecting the plan? 

MS. PETTIT: We have a statewide plan now. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: You do have a plan? 
MS. PETTIT: The Statewide Sludge Management Plan is a 

component of the Solid Waste Management Plan. 
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SENATOR V"AN WAGNER: That's why it's not a plan. 
MS. PETTIT: Because we have some 500-plus sewage 

treatment plants in the State, it was also under the statutory 
provisions that the State not do the planning for those 
agencies; that it be left to them. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: As you pointed out 
before, the old plan basically said that each individual 
district shall provide a plan, similar to what we had in the 
garbage scene. Now we' re seeing that that didn't work too 
well. We had every county -- 22 ~olid waste districts -- go in 
their own direction, and what sort of coordination was there? 

This is a 1987 document. We' re in agreement that we 
need to rethink this. The work is going to be done this 
summer. First of· all, we don't believe that it should be the 
Department's plan, but that we should get input from a wide 
sector of the community; take all factors into conside_ration. 

·We l'l:ave not closed. the doors on arty specific technology other 
than ocean dumping and landfilling as a last resort, because 
that would be, ·again, making your conclusions before you've 
done the evaluation. 

I do not have, today, a firm schedule as to when we 
are going to have a new plan. It's going to be actively worked 
on, and we can certainly put a schedule together on what tha_t 
would look like, and how long it is going to take to do this. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Doesn't the March--
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: In the meantime, we do 

have March 1 7, and we expect every ocean dumper to 1 i ve up to 
their obligations to stop ocean dumping by that date. That 
does mean execution of their interim plans. We would not want 
to jeopardize progress of that and put things on hold while we 
redo something else. That doesn't necessarily mean the 
long-term alternatives have got to charge ful 1 speed forward, 
but if we are going to meet March 17, then we cannot stop 
progress and we cannot sit around waiting for some further 
evaluation. They need to be working now, is what we're saying. 
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SENATOR DALTON: And at the same time, I believe you 
need to be sending out the right signals to the authorities, 
okay? You' re saying to them, "Continue on down the road toward 
incineration." I don't know how far down the road they are, 
those six, but that to me is, again, repeating the mistakes of 
the past. 

MS. PETTIT: Well, they're in their enforcement 
agreements, which are consent decrees with the Federal courts 
right now, which has set out scheduled milestones for 
implementing the plans that they selected back on April 30, 
1989, when they were required to submit their plans. In order 
for them to get an ocean dumping permit, they had to deliver up 
a plan with an implementation schedule, and that was 
memorialized in the enforcement agreement pursuant to Federal 
statute. They are now consent decrees, so they cannot deviate 
from those milestones without incurring signific~nt penalties 
at this point;. 

SENATOR DALTON: 
that the courts wouldn't 
acceptable. 

MS. PETTIT: Yes. 

I would suspect that 
look on other options 

that 
as 

assumes 
equally 

And, in fact, we do have-- For 
example, Passaic Valley is looking at any number of other 

·options. At the same time, so they don't expose themselves to 
these serious penalties while they're exploring these other 
options·, they must continue to meet their milestones on their 
existing plans. Otherwise, they have serious mon~y penalties. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Basically, there are 
advantages with going a parallel path method; saying, "Let us 
proceed, but let us explore alternatives." In that way we come 
to resolution of the whole issue as quickly as possible. 

SENATOR DALTON: Yeah. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Doesn't the artificial date of 

March 17 make long-term planning more difficult? I know it 
makes it more expensive. 
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ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: As I said, sludge 
dewatering, which is basically what all but Middlesex are doing 
in New Jersey, is a necessary precondition for the other 
alternatives. That money is not wasted. 

As far as disposal at landfills-- Disposal at a high 
quality landfill is at least a controlled placement, as opposed 
to an uncontrolled discharge to the ocean. So therefore we 
would feel that it is environmentally better to have it 
landfilled, emergency, last re,sort, than ocean dumping. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. I'm going to ask you now, 
if I may, to move on. I'd like to kind of mix it up a little 
bit. I thank you all for being here and I ask you, if you 
would, to keep yourselves available, depending on your own 
schedules, because I want to continue this type of hearing; not 
toward the end of having people just come in here so that we 
can argue with each other, but at each stage of the game what I 
would like to be able to do is to implement a joint planning 
process that involves the Legislature to·the extent that it can 
move forward with some of the legislation that has been 
recornmended, to clear ·away some of the impediments to 
implementing some of the plans: to prod, if necessary. 

I would like and I'm going to request of the 
Commissioner -- is that we form an· advisory. council on this 
issue; that we involve as many people from industry and 
technology and academia and science as we can in assisting and 
working with us; and that we also make available these working 
group sessions to the six authorities that are most pressed by 
this, and in fact, to all members of any authority in the State 
which are interested in listening to some of the 
recornmendations. Also, that we begin to look at the 
possibility of fast tracking some of these RFP processes so 
that we can review them on a technical and scientific basis 
more readily. 
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Those kinds of things I hope to generate from the 
Committee as recommendations, if you will, and whatever kind of 
resources you can provide for us-- I notice in your testimony 
you do have sludge management seminars and things of that 
nature that are available, and that's good, but I would like to 
try to get-- And I· m going to do this so everybody gets an 
opportunity to say something before we run into our next 
meeting schedule--

I would like to call up some of the people here who 
are from what appears to be some of the industry areas involved 
in this. I'm going to ask that they come up in this order. 
Then as a wrap-up, I would like to hear from Mr. Lipke from the 
Passaic Valley Sewage Authority; Mr. Jacobs from the Middlesex 
Utilities Authority; and Mike Brinker from the Joint Meeting of 
Essex and Union Counties. 

I would like to call now Mr~ Patrick Witmer of the Air 
Products Co; Dr. H. Schulz from Global Energy; Roger Tuttle of 
Earthline Sales Co; and Don Clark.~~ in that order -- from the 
Cornucopia Network. So, in that order, if you would come 
forward, I would appreciate it. 

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH; Okay. I would 1 ike to 
stay, but I do have a 1:00 commitment, so I apologize. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: No, that's all right. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: We'll have some 

observers remain. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: That's all right. We'll find you 

again. 
ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KEITH: Good. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: ·Thanks, John. Thank you. 
So, Mr. Witmer and Dr. Schulz, if you would 1 ike to 

come forward. Mr. Witmer? Are you here? (no response) Okay, 
Dr. Schulz? 
F R A N K G. C A P E C E, ESQ.: Mr. Chairman, it's just 
going to take a second. 
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SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Yes, I understand that. 
Witmer is gone? (no response) 

You don't have to show us sludge, okay? 
MR. CAPECE: How about brickettes? 

Mr. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: You don't have to give us the 
background. Just tell us what it is you're recommending, how 
you think it can--

MR. CAPECE: Mr. Chairman, as you know I'm Frank 
Capece, and I represent Global. Anticipating that you'd run 
out of time, what we're going to give you, number one, instead 
of L.A. Law this Thursday--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: We are only going to run out of 
time today, so--

MR. CAPECE: Well, instead of L.A. Law, which you can 
watch this Thursday night-- This is just a tape. . . 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay, r·· 11 be glad to look at 
it. Thank you. 

MR. CAPECE: Mr. Chairman, we' 11 . be very brief, 
because we know that you are under some time-- Global is 
currently in negotiations with Passaic Valley on a system of 
gasification. Very quickly, we ·think there has been some 
confusion. There is a ·distinction between gasification and 
incineration. The two are not married; they are not even going 
together. There is a distinction between the two, and I think 
Dr. Schulz will get into the~-

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Just so you can be clear, it was. 
not intimated that it was. What was said was that al though 
gasification is a ·more acceptable alternative to incineration, 
it continues the disposal technology mind-set. No one was 
criticizing it, only criticizing it as a pursuable end, I guess. 

MR. CAPECE: Chairman, Global -- of which Dr. Schulz 
is the President -- is a project team comprised of Bechtel, 
British Gas Petroleum, APB, and First Boston. Dr. Schulz is 
not new to this. He's been at this for 15 years, and I 
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daresay, he brings more experience to this than virtually 
anybody in the State of New Jersey. Because of your time 
constraints, what I've asked Dr. Schulz to do is to be very 
brief and to give you an analogy. Unlike most groups, he 
encourages your questions. We think that might be a more 
positive use of our limited time, but Dr. Schulz will just give 
you a brief overview of Global, and more importantly, on the 
success of gas~fication. I did bring the brickettes, which 
are, in fact, what happens at the end of the process. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: You can add them to our 
collection. 

MR. CAPECE: We have a lot of brickettes today, but if 
you have them, that's fine. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Just tell me where they were 
produced? 
HELMUT w. SCHUL z, -Ph.D.: Passaic Valley. This 
is Passaic Valley sludge. We also have Houston sludge, and 
also from Stamford, Connecticut. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: That's where the sludge came from. 
Where were they produced? 

DR. Schulz: Yes. They were just produced-- They are 
compacted with eastern bituminous coal, and actually they were 
done in Minneapolis at the Bepex Corporation. 

pilot? 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Minneapolis? 
DR.·SCHULZ: Yes. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Is there a plant there, or is. it a 

DR. · SCHULZ: Oh, no. They are the producers of the 
largest compacting machinery in this country and they· have a 
pilot installation there. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Pilot? 
DR. SCHULZ: Yeah. But, I mean, we have made 

brickettes for the U.S. BureaP of Mines on a commercial scale. 
I mean, compacting by br i ckett ing is an art that is over 7 o 
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years old and we made actually 350 tons of brickettes for the 
U.S. Bureau of Mines for a large-scale demonstration. This was 
based on Baltimore County garbage and eastern coal. 

The brickettes here are illustrative of Passaic Valley 
sewage sludge, and this is what we're here primarily to address. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: I guess my question is: Is this 
being done on a operating basis anywhere--

DR. SCHULZ: No, sir. 
SENATOR cpNTILLO: --or is this just a pilot program 

you're talking about? Is the process being used fully anywhere? 
DR. SCHULZ: No. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: No? 
DR. SCHULZ: No. Actually all the components of the 

process are used on a very large conunercial scale, but the 
combination has not been used. I mean, bricketting is done on 
a scale of 60 tons per hour in one single unit_, one single 
press, and gasification-- The British Gas Corporation has a 
completely, conunercially operable .unit ·in Scotland. They have 
200 million pounds of development in this and it has been 
around for about 14 years. 
are conunercially available. 
blueberry pie, and the use 

Similarly, all of the. components 
Oxygen plants are as_ standard as 

of gas turbines and electric 
generators are, of course, fully established, and those are the 
components of the BIOPLEX process. 

SENATOR V'AN WAGNER: Do you have a proposal, sir, 
before any agency, authority, or any instrumentality that is 
presently involved with the requirement to reduce or eliminate 
their sludge material, or dispose of it? 

DR. SCHULZ: . We have made presentations to the Region 
II, EPA, and also to the State of New Jersey DEP, and we are in-
negotiat~ons with Passaic Valley Sewage Conunissioners. We have 
been working with them, actually, for four-and-a-half years, 
and I must say that_ Passaic Valley has been farsighted to 
recognize that incineration would be unacceptable, and 
composting would be unacceptable. 
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I'd like to, if I may, focus on the very fundamental 
distinction between slag gasification and incineration. I 
think there is very little appreciation that is an 
environmentally superior, an economically competitive 
alternative to incineration and to composting. May I address 
that question? 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Please. 
DR. SCHULZ: Slag gasification employs a ~repared 

burden, muchj as a blast furnace. A slag gasifier is- very much 
1 ike a blast furnace, which has had a remarkable track record 
for over a centu~y. So this is not a new technology, something 
untried. It is fundamentally different from incineration in 
that it uses a reducing atmosphere throughout the gasifier, 
above the hearth, . whereas incineration uses an oxidizing 
atmosphere. 

One .co.nsequence is that it is chemi.cally impossible to 
form dioxins and furans in the gasifier, whereas it is p~ssible 
to do that in an incinerator during operati9n upsets. Also, 
our gasifier is a completely closed· system. It has no primary 
stack emissions; nothing is vented to the atmo.sphere except the 
effluent frqm the gas turbine, which is as. benign as burning 
natural gas. 

Furthermore, we have no stacks and no stack 
emissions. Also, as compared with incineration, slag 
gasification produces no toxic incinerator ash that must be 
disposed of in landf'.lls at mounting costs .. Instead we produce 
a glassy frit, which is like little glassy BBs that completely 
encapsulate all of the inorganic components, including the 
toxic heavy metals. 

This is where this is so highly applicable to the 
disposal of sewage sludge, because all metals are incorporated 
in this silica-alumina matrix and rendered totally nonleachable 
by the EP Toxicity Test. In fact, the tests have shown that 
leachate has the quality of drinking water, and yet it was not 
appreciated that there is such a distinction. 
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My colleague from Rutgers University mentioned that 
all of the residues are equivalent. It is true that composting 
is subject to leaching of heavy metals into the water table and 
so is incinerator ash, but this is not true of the glassy frit 
produced by slag gasification. 

Furthermore, by the admixture of coal which is a high 
energy product, with the s 1 udge, we produce three to seven 
times as much energy as mass burning incineration, and this is 
the reason why this process is economically competitive to 
incineration. The energy credits from the sale of electricity 
are a very important point in reducing the need for high 
tipping fees. So for a 11 of these reasons we are betting on 
the--

Of course, New York City is also following this very 
closely, and I think they have recognized that there's no way 
in which they could dispose of the prodigious amounts of . 
compost that would be produced from New York City sludge. This 
would~ regardless of the fact that I think it would be 
unacceptable to let the heavy metals leach into the water 
supply--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: 
brickettes? 

What do you do with the 

DR. SCHULZ: The brickettes are simply fed into the 
top of the gasifier, just in-- Coal gasification, of course, 
has been around for over a century, but these brickettes 
gravitate down the gasifier·. They~ re totally consumed and 
they're turned into a clean gas, and the fact that we use p~re 
oxygen instead of air and the fact that the gasifier operates 
under high pressure, means that the total volume of product gas 
is 2% to 5% of the volume of the corresponding amount· of 
incinerator effluent. That means that we can use very 
meticulous ·cleanup procedures. This is also free tested and 
the procedure is in operation at the Great Plains Gasification 
Project, where they are operating 14 gasifiers, each with the 
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capacity of 1000 tons per day. That's 14,000 tons per day, and 
the gas cleanup system is provided by Lurgi Corporation of 
Germany, which is associated with us. British Gas--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Are there any air emissions 
problems, sir, that are--

DR. SCHULZ: No. The system is totally enclosed and 
nothing is vented to the atmosphere. The gases are completely 
scrubbed and anything that is scrubbed out of the gas is 
recycled into the gasifier. The organic material is completely 
decomposed into smal 1 fuel molecules such as carbon monoxide, 
hydrogen, and methane, which make a fuel gas equivalent to 
natural gas. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: And what happens to those 
products, by-products; methane, and--

DR. SCHULZ: They go into a gas turbine. In other 
words, after they are complet~ly cleaned, they are combusted 
and fed into a gas turbine, under pressure, which generates 

·electricity and steam, by cogeneration. Then the combustion 
products, which are the equivalent to the burning of natural 
gas, are discharged through a stack, but this is completely 
free of any of the combustion products produc~d. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: I don't care about the technical 
stuff. I don't understand it. I'd be more interested in--
But I can't go anywhere and see this operating, can I? 

DR. SCHULZ: Yes. For instance,: at Westfield, in 
Scotland, there Is an exact prototype of the gasifier that we 
would build for this, and this has been in operation for--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Is there anywhere closer we can 
go? 

DR. SCHULZ: No. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: I'll be in Scotland next week. I'm 

dead serious. 
DR. SCHULZ: Well, I think the Passaic Valley 

Commissioners are gain~ there on June 15L 
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SENATOR CONTILLO: Well, I'm paying for my own trip, 
and I hope they are, too. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER : Let me, without belaboring this 
-- and I can appreciate the technical knowledge and background 
you have, Doctor-- Can you provide the Conunittee with a 
model? You do have it? Okay? 

brochure? 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Something smaller than that thing? 
DR. SCHULZ: What? 
MR. CAPECE: We have the Monarch review version. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: A little four-page, four-color 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: We would appreciate seeing that. 
I would also ask you just one question: Is there an extent to 
which the sludge must be dewatered before it is gasified? 

DR. SCHULZ: Yes, sir. Now, if I may, just to make a 
small distinction-- There are two ways ·in which you can 
dispose of this. One is if you just want to get rid of the 
sewage sludge, you have to dry the sludge to about 80% solids 
and then you compact it with coal and you make brickettes, just 
like those we showed you. But if you want to co-dispose sludge 
with_ municipal sol~d- waste, then all you need to do is to 
dewater it to 25% or 30% in a belt filter o~ centrifuge, and by 
mixing it with the RDF, you can get the proper amount of 
moisture for bricketting. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. 
DR. SCHULZ:. That's important; the moisture content is 

critical. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Thank you very much. We 

appreciate your coming today. 
DR. SCHULZ: Thank you f9r the opportunity. 
MR. CAPECE: Mr. Chairman, we're just going to leave 

it with your staff. (referring to demonstration materials) 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: We appreciate that. Just leave 

it right up here. 
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MR. CAPECE: This is the revised version, for Senator 
Cantillo. 

SENATOR VM WAGNER: Okay, we' re going to have Mr. 
Tuttle. Is he here? 
R 0 GER TUTTLE: Yes. 

SENATOR VM WAGNER: Okay. Mr. Tuttle and Mr. Clark, 
if you would come forward. Then we will have Mr. Lipke. The 
anchormen will be Mr. Sheldon Lipke, Mr. Mike Brinker, and Mr. 
Alan Jacobs, and we will hear from the people who have to meet 
this deadline. Probably in reverse order. They're t;he most 
important, really. Sir, go ahead. 

MR. TUTTLE: My name is R~ger Tuttle, and I am 
·President of a company called Earthline Sales, which- is a 
division of Bird Compost Management Inc. We've been marketing 
and reusing compost for 10 years. We cannot get enough compost 
that is clean and on spec to market. · If we were able to get 
our hands on 500,000 yards, a million yards, every single year, 
year after year after year, there would be a beneficial reuse 
for this. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Have you ever looked at New 
Jersey's poteptial? 

MR. TUTTLE: Yes. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. 
MR. TUTTLE: And in my opinion there-- I would like 

· to come back and somehow share some more particulars--
SENA~OR VAN WAGNER: You're going to .. 
MR. TUTTLE: Okay. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Your wish is going to be granted. 
MR. TUTTLE: I think there are several di lemmas. I 

need to give you a quick ba_ckground. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Go ahead. 
MR. TUTTLE: If you were to ask, "Name the top three 

states' regulatory agencies that you've dealt with over the 
last 10 years"-- and we've been in 22 states -- New Jersey, 
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Pennsylvania, and Florida have to be at the top of the list. 
One of the interesting things is, I think we need to spend, and 
identify that we agree from a watchdog standpoint, a regulatory 
standpoint, and a legislative standpoint: We probably all 
agree on 85% of what we're all saying, and we need to identify 
how we manage that other 15%, but I've found the New Jersey 
regulatory agency very easy to deal with from a composting 
standpoint. 

I think the most important issue that we have is 
pretreatment. We must be bold and have the courage to say, 
unanimously, from a legislative standpoint and a regulatory 
standpoint-- Every Senator, every person who is a legislator 
in the State of New Jersey, must unanimously vote, we have to 
have clean s 1 udge. And if that's done, and -it's never backed 
off-- I've been involved where -- as an analogy -- where the 
rubber meets the road. What happens is we've tried to get 
compost out to some sites. What occurs is we get calls behind 
the scenes: "Please back off. Don't go over there. You can't 
do this." So, we all have to say--

SENATOR CONTILLO: What does that mean, "We get calls 
behind the scenes"? I don't understand that. 

MR. TUTTLE: For instance, I believe that there are 
counties within the State of New Jersey which do not support 
clean land application of compost. They may say they do, but 
when you actually go to take the compo·st . there, they are 
prohibiting and try-ing to not have land application. Again, 
you've got to say-- We say it must be clean. If it's clean, 
then it can be used. Our services were highlighted in--

SENATOR CONTILLO :· But isn't that really the problem 
of any alternative method other than pure incineration? That's 
the feeling I get from most municipalities. The answer to that 
is yes, but I believe that it can be successfully done. It was 
successfully done in other states and other counties and other 
cities, and it can be done here. 
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MR. TUTTLE: Some major customers have used-- Compost 
was used at Trump Castle, in 200 country clubs in New Jersey, 
and at about 500 athletic fields. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: We understand the issue. 
MR. TUTTLE: Excuse me? 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: We understand the issue. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: I'm curious where Trump compost is--
MR. TUTTLE: Eighty tractor-trailer loads on the top 

of the second floor in Trump Castle has compost. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Excuse me? 
MR. TUTTLE: On the second floor, where all his shrubs 

are outside, 80 tractor-trailer loads of compost and sand were 
mixed together to make a growers' mix, and are used there right 
now. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Oh, I see what you are saying. A 
one-time thing. 

MR. TUTTLE: Right. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Okay. 
MR. TUTTLE: Just to share a thought with you, we are 

one of the eight joint participants in New York City. It's a 
package of seven people. We have five sites that we have and 
we' re permitting throughout four states to-- And we have a 
serious interest. We're spending major doliars in making that 
presentation to New York City, so I do believe that there are 
people who are stepping up to the plate. as private industry, 
wi~ling to risk. significant dollars, that they can compost and 
then participate in beneficial reuse. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Comment on a comment from the DEP, 
that it is going to take three square. miles per year, 
alternate, different three square miles just to deal with the 
sludge. 

MR. TUTTLE: I think that that's true. He assumed the 
lowest possible Class B sludge. 

SENATCR CONTILLO: Prior to pretreatment. 
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MR. TUTTLE: Class B sludge. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: I think that when you hear from 

Mr. Clark, you will get an insight from something that he says. 
MR. TUTTLE: If you, on the other hand, fought for 

Class A sludge -- and clean sludge, which can be done-- We 
just have to make a commitment together then at significantly 
less volume of land. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Okay, which I agree with; which has 
been my point from day one. Are we wasting money pressuring to 

. i 

get out within a few months? Should the money not be better 
spent for pretreatment? 

MR. TUTTLE: If I was a businessman who was hired by 
the State of New Jersey to solve the short-term problem, I 
would take and compost at three or four strategically located 
locations in the State of New Jersey with either at 
landfills that were accessible-- And I would use portable 
in-vessel systems that are available, where you could put 
~ortable-walls up, in-ves~el, with agitation, and do that as a 
short-term basis. Use that compost for closing all the 
landfills. There are 300-plus landfills that need organic 
material. Meanwhile, have a vigorous pretreatment program to 
get the product then into general population and general use, 
but that ·can be done, and that can be done--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Pretty quickly. 
MR. TUTTLE: Excuse me? 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Pretty quickly. 
MR. TUTTLE: Very quickly. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Is it being done? 
MR. TUTTLE: Is that being done? Sure. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Where? 
MR. TUTTLE: Fairfield, Connecticut put up walls very 

quickly. There's new portable walls where you put I beams up 
and drop panels in and you can--

SENATOR CONTILLO: Where are they doing that? In 
Fairfield? 
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MR. TUTTLE: Yeah, in Fairfield. It's an in-vessel 
system. Just in-vessel, agitated systems. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: And how many tons do they do there? 
MR. TUTTLE: Their system isn't very large. Let's go 

to examples that are successful. Philadelphia is producing a 
successful compost product that can find its way to beneficial 
reuse and certainly the landfill final vegetative cover. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: What's the difference between the 
cost of doing that-- What's the average cost of doing that per 
ton? 

MR. TUTTLE: The average cost of doing that? 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Tipping fee. 
MR. TUTTLE: Well, you heard the figure of the $30·0 

for in-vessel which came out of Westchester. I think that's a 
typical figure. You shouldn't go any higher than that. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Three hundred dollars a dry ton? 
MR. TUTTLE: -Right. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: And they're probably spending 

what, Mr. Lipke, sir? 
s HELD 0 N L I p KE: Yes. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Back there? (referring to Mr. 
Lipke's location in the audience) What would you spend per dry 
ton to send it somewhere else, for example? 

MR. LIPKE: (speaking off microphone from audience) 
Probably anywhere between -- a rough guess: between $250 and 
$350. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: So, comparable. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: Does that include the penalty you 

paid, or is that--
MR. LIPKE: There is no penalty after you stop ocean 

dtimping. 
MR. TUTTLE: I think it's important -- if I may share 

this-- I think it Ls important to share, in concurrence with 
Dr. Finstein, in that, I believe that the legislativf~; body 
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needs to mandate: 1) proper composting so final compost can 
come out; 2) if we're going to mandate recycling, whether it's 
from leaves or MSW or sludge, we need to mandate DOT, Garden 
State Parkway, parks corrunissions, and many of the people to use 
the product, because I go in later on, after I have the 
product, and have a very difficult time getting them to say yes. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: You're not going to believe what 
the problem is there, but I'm going to tell you. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: It works too well. 
I 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: - It works very wel 1, which means 
the maintenance crews are out cutting the grass more often than 
they are normally cutting the grass, believe it or not. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Well, you can pin it down. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: You're laughing. You're 

laughing, but this is a fact. 
MR. TUTTLE: But there are management~- For instance--
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: You talk about government-- You 

think government is easy? 
MR. TUTTLE: --the American Beach Grass is dying in 

New Jersey, and ·dune stabilization is desperate, and if we used 
compost there, we could solve that problem. Th~t-work is being 
done and it's successful. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: I want to stop you there, because 
whether you like it or not, you are going to be involved, 
okay? So, stay on call. Don? 
D 0 NA L D B. CLARK: Okay, I'm not going to give my 
testimony: It's in two parts, as well. I guess all I would 
1 ike to say is that the organic matter content of New Jersey 
farmland right now is only 1.5% to .2% after 200 years of 
agriculture. Al so, we've had a very high eras ion rate in New 
Jersey. Our soils would be better off if they contained at 
least 4% to 6% organic matter, and actually, if it were 8% to 
10% it would be far better than that. It takes about 10 tons 
of organic matter per acte to raise that 1%, and we have over 3 
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million acres of land, including over 850,000 acres of farmland 
in this State that can benefit from compost -- compost sludge, 
compost period; anything organic, and it's very valuable. 

Some organic farms -- and we' re going toward organic 
farms in New Jersey -- use 30 to 40 tons of compost a year, 
year after year, with spectacular growing results. It just 
seems to disappear on these lands, and we can take you to some 
of them. The microorganisms in the compost help dissolve the 
inorganic minerals that help make them viable growing plants. 
A heal thy soi 1 grows strong plants that do a good job of 
resisting pests. You don't need your pesticides. The organic 
matter helps the soil in its use of moisture. The nutrient 
value of compost in sludge is sizable. The need for chemical 
fertilizers drops dramatically when you use compost and 
composted sludge. Organic or sustainable farmers really now 
are depending heavily on compost and we·think that compost and 
composted sludge, or just plain sludge, applied, is a valuable 
resource,. and probably the best resource· this State has. 

SENATOR VFJ.ii WAGNER: Is there concern on the part of 
farmers about liability,· about complaints of odor? 

MR. CLARK: Well, yes. They have_ ail those, and there 
have been farmers in the State who have taken sludge -- just 
sludge from treatment plants -- and just spread it on :their 
soil without any management plan, and without even a 
conservation plan, and there have resulted--. 

SENATOR VFJ.ii WAGNER: So you're saying this is more of 
a specific kind of a thing than it is of a general thing. 

MR. CLARK: So, it's gotten a bad name in a couple of 
places, but it's going on throughout the whole country. I've 
got all kinds of reprints over there about what is happening. 
Oklahoma City sludge happens to be stabilized with lime and is 
land-applied on 12,000 acres all the time. And by the way, the 
reapplication of this can go on. All you have to do is worry 
abou~ a few of the'se things. And by the way, we' re not even so 
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sure that some of the levels that we call Grade 1 and Grade 2 
are accurate. Sometimes these dear old microorganisms have an 
ability to not attack the metals, just leave them there. They 
go after what they need for that metabolism, and then that's 
transported to the plant. We're not so sure that some of the 
heavy metals that are in the sludge are that dangerous. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: How about aquifer contamination? 
Groundwater, aquifer? 

MR. CLARK: Well, with organic matter-- I Organic 
matter helps to retain the moisture and use it more 
effectively. You don't put on as much; you don't irrigate, and 
all,of that which then drives it down. Hopefully you are going 
to use a lot less fertilizers and pesticides, and that• s what 
we're worried about mostly in the aquifers. 

In fact, there is a lot of research going on now 
t~roughout this country which shows that farmers can reduce--
For example, just in this Oklaho~a City -- and you• ve got a 
reprint of it there -- the farmers, after they paid for the 
sludge-- · They have to pay $10 an acre for the sludge that goes 
on their land, and a ·little bit more than that because they 
have to pay for the transportation of if as well. They've 
saved over $80 p~r acre over.the cost of the sludge in avoided 
fertilizer co·sts alone. That• s not counting their increased 
productivity from their crops which go -- depending on the 
crop-- Corn goes up at· least 20%; yields increase per year. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Okay. I • d 1 ike to ask both of 
you gentlemen if you would make yourselves available to the 
Corruni ttee, because I sense what I wanted-:--- Step one, 
legislatively, what I would like to do is to.gather in some of 
the legislative proposals that have been made today, and 
formulate some ·type ·of working group arrangeme.nt where we can 
start to look at them realistically. I would like to 
involve-- (brief pause in proceedings while the Chairman 
confers with legislative aide) 
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Before I suggest what our next step is going to be, 
let me call Mr. Lipke, of the Passaic Valley Sewerage 
Authority, Mr. Alan Jacobs, and Mr. Mike Brinker. If you would 
come forward, gentlemen, and tell us the tale. You guys are on 
the firing line, really, and maybe you can give us some ideas 
on how we can help. I know money is going to be one of them, 
but, go ahead. 

MR. LIPKE: Thank you Mr. Chairman. 
SENATOR CONTILLO: They don't care abou~ money. They 

just raise their rates. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: I don't think they really want to 

do that. 
MR. LIPKE: My name is Sheldon Lipke, Superintendent 

of Plant Operations for the Passaic Valley Sewerage Conunission, 
and I 'd 1 ike to thank you for giving us this opportunity to 
express the Commissioners' viewpoints on this subject. 

The Passaic Valley Sewerag:e Commissioners are 
presently constructing sludge dewatering and loading facilities 
to· meet the March 17, 1991 deadline ·to halt ocean dumping. 
We' re not here to protest the · end of ocean dumping, 
definitely. We are prepared· to meet all of the requirements of 
the Act, and we're constructing. $59 million worth of facilities. 
right now that we will have to ·abandon when the long-term 
alternative begins operation in 1996. Of the $59 million, 
approximately $14. million is for expediting the project to meet 
the March 17 date. 

To give you just a quick rundown on the size of 
Passaic Valley's problem: We' re going to make approximately 
1000 tons a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year, of 
material that we have to get rid of in the interim, to a 
landfill. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: I don't want 
testimony, but you're saying $60 million. 
plant? 

88 

to interrupt your 
Is it a dewatering 



MR. CLARK: That's the dewater ing, and f ac i 1 it ies to 
load the cake onto trucks. 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Well, my understanding--
Everything I've heard this morning indicates that you'll always 
be dewatering anyhow? 

MR. CLARK: That's a true statement, but because we 
had to have our facility on-line so quickly, we had to use 
whatever existing facilities there were, which was a Zinpro 
dewatering system. I 

SENATOR CONTILLO: Oh. That's the one they want to 
phase out as soon as they can. 

MR. CLARK: That's right, and a filter press that we 
had bui 1 t in 1981 to get out of the ocean. Then, in order to 
make--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: That was the first deadline? 
MR. LIPKE: That was the first deadline, so we built 

that facility and put it in mothballs. It's not large enough 
for all of our sludge, so we had to build an auxiliary facility 
for the--

SENATOR CONTILLO: Centrifugal? 
MR. LIPKE: That's the centrifuges, and in order to 

get them to both work together, they had to be located in such 
a place where we can't use them for whatever long-term 
alternative. So, in order to meet the qate, we just had to do 

·what had to be done to meet the date. Unfortunately, that's 
the facility that we're going to have to abandon. That's under 
construction right now. 

To give you some idea, as I said, we're going to make 
1000 tons-- To put thi~ into perspective, if we were to take 
our sludge and compost it--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: This is dry? 
MR. LIPKE: That would be wet tons. 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Wet tons. 
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MR. LIPKE: That's actually tons that go onto a 
truck. we' 11 load about 55 trucks on average everyday. If we 
were to compost, we would make, every year, a 
football-field-size pile 40 stories tall. Something on the 
order of 2000 cubic yards a day. That• s 100 tractor-trailer 
loads every single day. You can't get rid of compost 
continuously during the year; it· s only a five- or six-month 
season, so what we would have to do in order to successfully 
implement compo1t is: One, we would have to find a site which 
has about 250 acres to conduct a composting operation, and the 
biggest problem we have with all of these land alternatives is 
to find a place that can get rid of the huge volumes that we 
produce. I'd like to just talk a little bit, and then I'll 
come back to that, if I m~y. 

We're very interested, of course, in the period 
between March 17 and December 31, 199.1. We know that the date 
March 17 was contained in the Act and was set to end at the 
five-year term at which the 106-mile disposal site was 
deauthorized. The choice of that date. didn It really coincide 
with any oceanographic event, but was really an arbitrary 
choice made for symbolic reasons, really to get us out of .the 
ocean. Because New York may .continue dumping until 1992, our 
taxpayers are going to be faced with a huge increase in their· 
sewer bills, while the amount that we reduce going to the dump 
site will only be a 30% reduction, and of that, 15% is Passaic 
Valley's. 

The City of Newark's bill will increase by $14 million 
for that eight-month period; Jersey City by $4 million; 
Paterson by $4 million; and Passaic by $1. 4 million. We' re 
really asking, is it really fair for the poorest cities in New 
Jersey to pay for a symbolic gesture? We want to know why our 
taxpayers are being discriminated against, when New York can 
continue dumping well into 1992? 
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Scientists have expressed concern about the negative 
impact on the ocean environment due to the poorly understood 
long-term effects of disposal. We are not advocating long-term 
continuation of ocean disposal, but only the short-term relief 
that our taxpayers would receive if we were treated the same as 
New York. 

It's interesting to note, everyone who has testified 
here today -- and probably enough people to fill this room 
twice have been to our facility to talk about various 
alternatives to ocean dumping, including Mr. Tuttle and Dr. 
Schulz. I can tell you exactly what we've told them. What we 
have said to them is that we are very interested in anything 
except incineration at PVSC sites. We do not want to build the 
-world's largest sludge incinerator in Newark. We have told 
them this, basically: Give us a proposition. Just give us 
some idea of what you're talking about and a guarantee that you 
will remove our . sludge every single day. That• s all we ask 
for. Guarantee to remove the product. 

So far we have had only two companies, with one 
alternative, that have met that condition. That is our only 
condition. · Mr. Tuttle came to our offices-- This is just an 
example, I'm not singling him out.· But he was in our offices 
about three months ago. We talked, and we had a great 
meeting. We haven't seen him since. 

We're up· to, I guess, alternative Number 43. On this 
list of people who ~ave visited us, we have told them exactly 
the saine thing: Give us a proposition and guarantee to remove 
the product. We don't--

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Don't you limit your suppliers by 
insisting that one person take care of all of it? 

MR. LIPKE: Actually, we would like to have one person 
or one group take care of the product, okay? We make about 
1000 tons of cake, or on a dry basis, . 500 tons a day. 
Everybody said that after a number of years they could work up 
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to about 100 tons, 100 tons compost, maybe 50 to 100 tons of 
other material for other uses -- land application. The only 
persons who have really said that they can get it, to take all 
of our material, are people with incineration options and two 
gasification options. Those two are Dr. Schulz, who is Global 
Energy, and the Texaco Corporation, which also has a competing 
technology. Neither of those technologies are actually proven, 
as they have admitted to us. 

What we did, in order to move this forward, because 
what they seemed to say, although it's not -proven, is that it's 
environmentally superior to incineration-- What we said to 
them was: "Okay, we set up meetings with the N. J. DEP, and the 
U. S. EPA to get testing protocols from the State." In other 
words, tell them exactly what the State needs in order to give 
this a clean bill of health, and the State has been excellent. 
They have worked with them. They gave them the information, 
and we think sometime this fal 1 there are goin9 to be some 
full-scale tests -- multimultimillion dollar tests -- ·of these 
technologies to determine whether, in fact, they have no 
negative environmental effec~s. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Mr. Brinker? 
M I C H A E L B R I N K E R: Thank you, Senator . Wh i 1 e I 
didn't plan to make a formal statement, I would like to thank 
you for the opportunity to fill you in on the Joint Meeting's 
progress to date. 

· Joint_ Meeting is presently on the ro~d to complying 
w1th the mandate to cease ocean dumping by March 17, 1991. At 
the present time we're constructing a $22 million sludge 
dewatering facility in Elizabeth at our treatment facility 
which will utilize dewatering centrifuges to dewater the sludge 
to 25%, and with lime addition, it will probably bring it to 
approximately 30%, for out-of-state disposal between the 
interim period of 1991 and 1996. The $22 million figure is 
approximately 50% over the budget estim~ted originally for the 
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construction of that dewatering facility, and it's the Joint 
Meeting's op1n1on that the March 17 date rather than the 
December 31 date is probably to blame for that 50% increase, 
primarily because of the tight time constraints imposed upon 
Joint Meeting, and thus its contractor, for only 13 months 
worth of construction. 

The Joint Meeting recently put out on the street for 
bid, a document which would require a contractor or contractors 
to take our dewatered sludge out-of-state to an approved site. 
Thirty-five documents were picked up by 35 prospective . 
bidders. However, only three bidders responded on April 19, 

all three of which were for landfill disposal options 
out-of-state. The document that the Joint Meeting prepared 
allowed for creative alternatives to landfilling. It did not 
specifically drive home the landfilling option, but left open 
the option to a prospective bidder to come in with a 
composting, landfilling, pelletization, chemical stabilization, 
or even a gasification proposal for the Joint Meeting, but only 
the three bids that we received were for landfills out-of-state 
in West Virginia, Ohio, Pennsylvania, and upstate New York. 

Technical difficulties with the documents required us 
·to reject the documents., the bids, a week after, and we are 
going to presently rebid in June. This was done through the 
public bidding process. The cost is estimated to be 
approximately $30 million a year to haul and dispose of this 
sludge -- $30 million eyer a five-year period, or approximately 
$6 million a year. 

sludge 
Valley. 
1998. 

Joint Meeting's long-term plan is to incinerate its 
at the site in Elizabeth, along with that of Rahway 

Howeve_r, our plan does not really take effect until 
During that time period we will obviously apply for a 

sludge incineration permit on behalf of ourselves and Rahway 
also considering other possible Valley. However, we are 
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alternatives to the incineration mode; namely, the gasification 
process, by working with Public Service and Texaco at the 
present time. 

SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Thank you, sir. Mr. Jacobs? 
A L AN J A COBS: Thank you, Senator. I have a couple of 
items that I would like to talk about. One is the process and 
the alternatives that Middlesex has developed, and if time 
permits, I have a brief statement that Richard Kurtz has 
prepared. He's the Executive Director of the Middlesex County 
Utilities Authority, who couldn't be here today, and ask~d me 
if I would present it to you. 

Middlesex's plan is chemical fixation of the dewatered 
sewage sludge. At the present time the Authority is in -the 
process of constructing th~ sludge dewatering plant. The total 
facility has an estimated cost of $56 million. That's spending 
money at an incredible rate over the- next 10 months of 
approximately $5 million a month of construction. Cindy Zipf, 
who was here earlier, gave you a sample of the chemical-fixed 
product. Basically what that is is taking the dewatered sewage 
s 1 udge, mixing in l.ime and cement, or cement kiln dust, and 
producing a synthetic soil out of the sludge product. In fact, 

. . 
if you analyzed that material, if you gave that material to an 
agronomist and said, "What is this?" he would tell you that 
that is soil of a silty, loam, type of nature. 

Our intent is ·to use that sludge as landfill cover 
intermediate and. daily landfill cover -:-- in pl~ce of natural 
soil covers that are becoming scarce. The Authority did a test 
plot of that material last year, using 200 yards of that 
material, and prepared the documentation and reports ·for the 
DEP which has approved it for ~hat use. 

The material also has value as a soil agricultural 
product because of its high 1 ime content and the acid soi 1 s 
that we -- the low pH soils that we have in many parts of New 
Jersey. And we are presently exploring utilizing a portion of 
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that material that we'll produce as an agricultural product. 
That's our plan, basically, to get out of the ocean on March 17. 

There's another thing we want to do: We' re planning 
on taking a portion of Middlesex sludge and producing what's 
called a heat-dried product. You've heard that mentioned 
today, the Mi lorgani te product; the type of product that you 
can go into K mart and buy in a 50-pound bag off the store 
shelves. Many of those contain dried sludge products from 
Milwaukee, or from Houston, or from other parts of the 
country. 
equipment 
construct. 

That process, however, requires more sophisticated 
and will take us beyond March 17 in order to 

So, the plan for Middlesex is to get out of the ocean 
with the chemical fixation process using it as landfill cover. 
So that we don't put all of our eggs in one basket down the 
road, we also want to take a portion of the sludge and dry it 
and produce a commercial fertilizer product as well. 

Mr. Chai~man, may I read this brief statement from Mr. 
Kurtz? 

·SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Sure, go ahead. 
MR. JACOBS: "I would like to preface my remarks by 

offering my sincere congratulations to Ms. Helen Pettit of the 
N. J. DEP, and Dirk Hoffman of the Wastewater Trust. These 
people _and their staffs provided assistance unparalleled in my 
30 years of dealing with State agencies. Not only did they 
make decisions in a timely fashion, but they prodded others to 
move forward at a pace uncharacteristic of any large 
bureaucracy. The people of Middlesex are indebted to the 
results of their sincerity and dedication. 

"Getting out of the ocean will not be easy for 
Middlesex within the constraints imposed by New Jersey 
legislation. Our situation is, we may meet the March 17, 1991 
deadline. The building is under construction, the equipment is 
now being tested, and our proposals for the final phase are due 
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on May 21, 1990. And while the contracts call for sludge 
processing to corrunence on or before March 17, 1990, the 
weather, the courts, and the simple truth that things don't 
always happen on schedule, will dictate the actual date of 
completion. 

"The Legislature should accept the Federal deadline of 
December 31, 1990 for no other reason than to reduce the 
overwhelming amount of paperwork which will be thrust upon an 
already understaffed N.J. DEP to enforce the ill conceived 
March 17, 1991 date. Other large metropolitan areas will not 
be out of the ocean by March 1, 1991, or even December 31, 
1991. New York City and Boston will contim.:e to d.:.scharge 
sludge into the Atlantic long after New Jersey authorities have 
stopped. And while it may be nice to be first, there must be 
accorrunodation for those who, while trying, are unable to meet 
the arbitrarily ·-imposed New Jersey deadline. 

"Other considerations from the Middlesex perspective 
are far mor.e important. than the date of. March 1 7, 1991 . . We, 
like all our sister agencies, have an impressive record cf 
cleaning our sludge through the industrial waste pretreatment 
program." 

And by the way, Mr. Chairman, the Middlesex sludge is 
a Class A sludge in the State of New Jersey, which is the 
cleanest category assigned to sludge in New Jersey. 

"During the past six years, we have reduced zinc by 
96.6%, copper by 97.2%, and lead by 99.6~. We are now at Class 
A sludge, the highest recognized by the DEP. 

"Middlesex wants to diversify its sludge reclamation 
option by manufacturing fertilizer products. A few months ago 
we made a fertilizer through a test program at Middlesex. This 
fertilizer is a good material. It has a high nitrogen 
content. There is a market for this product in New Jersey. We 
import thousands of tons of ·sludge-derived fertilizers from 
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other states each year and you, the Legislature, should take 
whatever steps are necessary to allow us to go forward to be 
competitive within New Jersey. 

"As an example, the State of Wisconsin, where 
Milorganite is made" -- that's the Milwaukee sludge product --
"requires the use of Milorganite as the fertilizer on all 
public projects in Wisconsin. They don't have an option. 
That's to promote the use of Milorganite. The New Jersey State 
Highway Authority alone could utilize all of the sludge

1 

products from Middlesex County -- heat dried sludge -- if they 
were asked to do so. 

"Finally, I would ask that you keep in mind that 
authorities don't pay fines and penalties, people do. While 
our State is in the mode of keeping New Jersey tougher than 
anyone else, remember the people. For while the record may 
eventually show that millions have been collected in fines, to 

-
the delight of so-called environmentalists, our politicians, it 
is the homeowner who suffers. It is ·time to review the record 
on the selection of March 17, 1991. It is time to discuss the 
issue with the people on the front line of compliance, the 
engineers,. the contractors ~harged with implementation, and it 
is time to ask ourselves why the taxpayers must suffer the 
consequences of an arbitrary, ill conceived, impossible 
deadline? By comparison, it takes the State of New Jersey more 
time to construct a simple traffic signal, or to improve a 
highway intersection than was given to the authorities to 
comply with the ocean dumping law. 

"I urge you to adopt the Federal schedule." 
SENATOR VAN WAGNER: Thank you. 
First, I think I have to correct something which staff 

tells me. The date of March 17 was not arbitrarily selected, 
okay, number one. We keep hearing that word. It was not an 
arbitrary selection. It was selected as a date because that is 
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the date upon which the 106-mile site will be dedesignated as a 
dumping site. So, it was not arbitrarily reached. The 
conclusion was not reached to do that. 

Secondly, I would like to say that I concur very much 
with the remarks that were just made, and remarks that were 
made by others about the cost of this. It ultimately does fall 
to those of us who are the ratepayers; no question about that. 
But interestingly enough, I've talked to a lot of the 
ratepayers over the course of time, over 16 or 17 years of 

I 

elected public office, and I've talked to those ratepayers in 
various locations, and believe it or not, many of them are, in 
fact, willing to pay that price, to be first. Many of them are 
willing to pay, if they know that there is going to be an 
improvement in the environment. I realize that sometimes these 
issues break down on a regional basis, but in most cases of 

·people whom I have talked to, north, south, east, and west, 
there is a general recognltion that the ocean and the waterways 
of this State -- particularly the ocean -- are very important 
economic factors, as well as environmental and recreational 
factors. People from practically every walk of life and in 
every section of this State have either, through fishing,. or 
swimming, or just· sitting on the beach, looked forward to 
enjoying that. 

So, I don't think it's just a question of the 
Legislature . versus the utilities authorities, or 
environmentalists versus politicians, or politicians versus 
everybody else, or the fact that perhaps we haven't moved fast 
enough or hard enough. I think it's really a question of, in 
this decade -- at least it seems to me -- that we've come to an 
awareness, and I will subscribe to one point that Mr. Kurtz 
made, an awareness that it's time for the people who have to 
implement these difficult decisions to come to the front line 
and say how they are going to do it. And that's what I hope to 
start to accomplish with this hearing today: to bring you now, 
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the front-1 ine troops, further into the process, 
front line is manned by a lot of people, not 
officials. It's manned by citizens, too. 

because the 
just public 

What I would like to do is to formulate a real working 
group of people. You three would be a great start, because you 
represent half of the authorities who have to face this 
difficult task, and all of you presented your cases well. The 
first panel we heard, the people who are involved there--
There is diversity of opinion, but that's what makes the world 
go around. I would like to have some of them involved. Some 
of the people from the industry groups, representing both 
gasification techniques and composting. I would like to have 
them involved'. And the DEP, Mr. Keith, Ms. Pettit, or Dirk 
Hoffman, or a designee from that Department -- to have them 
involved, along with myself and our staff to try to reach, 
quickly, some decisions as to what legislation we need to 
have. For example, perhaps mandatory legislation .requiring 
that composted materials be required for public use, parks, 
medians, publicly-owned lands, whatever; mandating tougher 
pretreatment by certain dates; looking ,at it realistically; and 
consolidating the long- and short-term plans to the extent that 
we understand them and we know what direction they're going in, 
and bringing them together. Mr. Keith already mentioned that 
there is a distinct change in the management approach now, 
that's going_ to ·be taken. 

Brihging together some of the things that we've 
already done; the outcomes of the Clean Water Enforcement Act, 
which will be started on Wednesday. What can we reasonably 
expect from that? The outcome of Senator Dalton's legislation, 
the pollution reduction legislation. What _can be reasonably 
expected of that? And say that on March 17, 1991 we will have 
come up with the following facilities to deal with this portion 
of our problem in the following manner: 20% -- whatever percent 

of the amount of sludge that is still being produced will, 
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in fact, by a date certain, be placed in a composting mode to 
be utilized for that purpose. Another 10% we found can be 
effectively dealt with through the process of gasification. 
I'm throwing out numbers; they don't-- Another "X" percent 
will be utilized by doing something else, and the remaining, 
unfortunately, we will be trying to negotiate contracts for 
out-of-state disposal -- landfill disposal. By a certain date, 
we will have dewatered all of it to the point where we can do 
that. But, you know, real livable, workable targets, so that 
we're not just filing reports that say that we are doing 
something, and creating cost factors that aren't really 
accomplishing the things that we hope to do, but we're really 
meeting· realistic targets. We really can go out and quantify 
our _result, and say, "This is what we've done; this is what 
we've accomplished. This is the legislation that we've put in 
place to do that. These are the codes and the regulations that 
we've put into place to do that. This is the - technical 
assistance we have to raise money for and give to you to meet 
your targets so you don't have to lay all the weight on the 
ratepayer." That kind of an approach, I think, we can 
accomplish. 

I think we have the capability in this State of doing 
that. It's not going to be easy. There is going to_ be a lot 
of screaming and shouting, but I'd rather be in a room 
scream_ing ·and ~houting about something that we' re going to t~y . . 
to reso 1 ve, than screaming and shouting about something where 
we' re only going to be back five ~onths later screaming and 
shouting about. As Senator Dalton said several times, you 
know, we keep revisiting the same thing. So what I hope to be 
able to accomplish with this, is to not revisit the same thing. 

I will generate a letter to all of you who have been 
here today asking for your time constraints, what they may or 
may not be -- what k'inds of times that may be available to 

100 



you. We'll begin the process as quickly as possible 
hopefully we' 11 start within the next two weeks -- and then 
we'll worry about deadlines. 

I appreciate all of you coming. If I didn't get to 
someone, I'm sorry. Please submit your remarks. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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Testimony on behalf of the Clean Sludge Coalition 
before the Senate Environmental Quality Committee 
at the Public Hearing on Sludge Management in New 

Jersey: Meeting the Deadline·to Cease Ocean 
Dumping •••• Monday, May 21, 1990 

Thank you'Mr. Chairman for holding this hearing and allowing 
us to provide the Committee with an overview of sludge 
issues. My name is Cindy Zipf, Coordinator of Clean Ocean 
Action, and member of the Clean Sludge Coalition (CSC). 

What has brought us here is a 20 year battle to end ocean 
disposal of sewage sludge. By the end of this day, over 
26,000 tons of sludge will be dumped at the 106 mile sludge 
dump located off Cape ·May., NJ. New York and New Jersey now 
dump 9. 5 million tonsLpf sludge in this environmentally 
sensitive, economically important marine. ecosystem. (See 
attached· for a quick review of sludge dumping). Citizens 
and legislators have _fought to end ocean dumping, and at 
long last, a New Jersey and federal ban will end ocean 
dumping by New Jersey on March 17, 1991. The question is, 
will New Jersey meet the deadline, and what will they do 
with their sl~dge?. 

•I 

In early. 1989 a CC',re· group includi-ng local, state, ·regional, 
national and inte~:national organizations (those listed 
above) formed a coaliti~n to insure that NJ and NY would 
meet the deadlines to stop ocean dumping and that the 
dumpers would i~plement sound environmental alternatives. 
In other word~~sui:.hat the clean up of our ocean, not result 
in the contamination of our air or land. The Clean Sludge 
Coalition meets· monthly to discuss and review alternatives, 
and briefs interested officials.on the issues.· The csc held 
an alternatives conference, and participated in the EPA's 
Sludge Round Table (EPA's national sludge workshop on 
alternatives). The csc has met with Constantine Sidamon-
Eristoff, EPA Region II Administrator, with encouraging 
support. 

N.J. dumps 34% of all sludge dumped. It is 50 % of all 
sludge generated in NJ. The six New Jesery sludge dumpers 
are: B~rgen County Utilities Authority, Joint Meeting of 
Essex and Union, Linden-Roselle Sewerage Authority, 
Middlesex County Utilities Authority, and Rahway Valley 
Sewerage Authority. New Jersey is now facing the same 
challenge met by cities such as , Philadelphia, Camden, 
Boston, and many others, what to do with their sludges. 
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After careful consideration, the Clean Sludge Coalition is 
convinced that the most viable alternative for all ocean 
dumpers is to implement beneficial reuse, not incinertion. 

As a result of the NJ le~islation banning the ocean dumping 
of sludge, the New Jersey Department of Environmental 
Protection issued a report which described, specifically, 
what the ocean dumpers were planning to do to cease ocean 
dumping. NJ ocean dumpers have a two phase plan. The Short 
Term, in order to meet the March 17th deadline, and the Long 
Term, what they ultimately will do in state with the 
sludges. 

The csc finds the DEP report to be short-sighted and 
unacceptable. NJ's waste management hierarchy identifies 
incineration as a last resort, however the Long Term plans 
(for the most part) call for incineration. It is the CSC's 
opinion that a serious examination into beneficial reuse 
options was not undertaken by NJ sludge dumpers, and it 
seems the NJDEP did not require it. If the proposed plans . ~ 
are implemented,. the end of ocean dumping will result in 
contamination of our air. This is unacceptable. There are 
.alternatives. 

It would be useful to briefly review the six ocean dumpers 
plans. For the Short Term, again to meet the March 17th 
deadline, all but two will rely 01\Jout-of-state landfilling. 
Middlesex County and Rahway Valley:~mplementing beneficial 
reuse options (Chem-fix and Enviro-Gro, respectfully). 
Passaic Valley, Bergen, Linden-Roselle, and Joint Meeting 
will depend on·out-of-state -landfilling~ To depend on· 
finding a host state is risky business. It is 10 months 
until March 17th, ~one of these dumpers lt'ave yet found a 
willing state. It is possible that they won't find a host 
state, and there are no backup plans. 

As.for the Long Term all ~ut Middlesex County plan to. 
incinerate their waste. This option is a grave mistake both 
economically, and environmentally. Be assured that because 
of the adverse environmental impacts, incinera~ion will be 
fought by environmental concerns.· The City of .Newark 
already authorized $1 million to fight the incinerator 
proposed by Passaic Valley • 

The best long term alternative is to implement beneficial 
reuse. New York City is well on their way to implementing 
reuse options. All of the ocean dumpers can do it. 
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. our panel here today brings you the best in sludge, 
·everything you wanted to know about sludge, but were afraid 
to ask. There is nothing scary about sludge. It is a 
wonderful organic material.that is used beneficially in many 
ways and it is cheaper than incineration. What makes sludge 
management difficult is the industrial components dumped by 
industry into the sludges. Better implementation of the 
pretreatment program by the dumpers would clean up sludge 
quickly, and the sludge would meet beneficial reuse quality. 

The panel will discuss the concerns of incineration and the 
merits of beneficial reuse in detail. 

Dr. Rod Fujita, of the Environmental Defense Fund, will 
discuss the concerns of incineration. Dr. Barry commoner 
may also speak on this topic. 
Nina sankovitch, attorney with Natural Resources Defence 
council, will discuss beneficial sludge alternatives used 
in other cities and what New York has done; the economic 
merits of its use, and market strategies for this region. 
Dr. Melvin Finstein, Professor at Rutqers University, is an 
.expert on sludge and will discuss the viability and merits 
,Qf composting. 
And Don Cla~k, President of the cornucopia Network will 
discuss the demand and many uses for .sludge composting·on 
lands. · 

The Clean Sludge Coalition is dedicated to environmentally 
sound land based alternatives-- meaning an end to ocean 
disposal and the implementation of .beneficial reuse. Our 
message, sludge can be great. We call orl the legisl~ture to 
help insure that cleaning up the ocean, doesn't mean 
contaminating the air. Sludge dumpers can clean up the 
sludge and implement alternatives. 

Specif ical1y we ask the Committee to: 

1) Pass .legislation to stop sl~dge incinerators until a 
thorough review of beneficial reuse ·options ·are explored 
(similar to the one done by New York· City). 

2) Require NJDEP to re-do its report to the legislature 
because it relies on incineration and did not include a 
thorough, meaningful exploration of beneficial reuse 
options • 

Thank you for this opportunity for the panel to speak. 
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BACKGROUND ON SLUDGE DUMPING 

Responding to a massive Fish Kill off the New Jersey/New 
York coasts, federal legislation was passed banning ocean 
dumping of sewage sludge by 1981. Ocean dumping was 
reduced; Philadelphia, Camden and other stopped ocean 
dumping. New York and New Jersey fought for, and won the 
right to continue ocean dumping. NJ and NY continued to 
dump 8 million tons of sludge at the 12 mile sewage sludge 
dumpsite off Sea Bright, NJ; a site known to fishermen as 
the "dead sea". A reprieve for these inshore waters came 
when in 1985 EPA ruled that the 12 mile Site was severely 
impacted by dumping and moved the sludge dumping activity to. .·, 
the 106 mile Site off Cape May, NJ. 

A total of 9.5 millions is now dumped annually; 34% NJ; 66% 
: NY. 

The 106 mile Site is an environmentally and economically_ 
important. over 200 fish eggs.and larvae have been 
identified in the waters effected by sludge. Whales, sea 
turtles and birds frequent this habitat off the continental 
shelf. Lobsters, tile fish., winter flounder, fluke, and 
big game fish are all commer~ially harvested in the area. 

Ocean dumping began in these deep waters in· the early 
1960's. Over 100 industrial dumpers disposed of waste 
there. DuPont Chemical, the last ocean dumper, stopped 
dumping in July 1988. 

No background data was ever collected. These waters are 
very complex and the area of potential iig.pact is vast. Due 
to the magnitude of the problem and the lack of data it is 
doubtful that science will have the ability to determine the 
impact of sludge dumping in these waters • 
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Table 1 

SUMMARY OF EXISTING SLUDGE PROOUCT ION BY MANAGEMENT MOOES (dry lbs/day) 
as of July 1989 

Short Term Long Term Incineration Incineration Land Ocean County Nllllber of 
On-Site On-Site cas customer) (owner) Application Disposal Out-of-State Undetermined Total Plants 

Atlantic 0 0 4,034 30,478 720 0 76 116 35,424 13 
Bergen 0 0 11,539 14,450 0 52,591 4,206 94 82,880 19 
Burlington 0 1,414 2,026 0 23,699 0 33,105 1,352 61,596 52 
Camden 0 1,066 16,040 7,923 16,234 0 51,412 97 92,772 28 
Cape May 0 0 92 0 14,847 0 3,534 258 18,731 21 
CLIM>erland 0 0 488 0 16,519 0 ·r,865 1,066 25,938 7 
Essex 0 303 22,250 0 0 496,565 0 0 519,118 6 
Gloucester 0 0 2,877 0 0 0 29,982 433 33,292 10 
Hudson 0 202 26,014 0 0 0 70,824 2 97,042 18 
Hunterdon 0 28 1,078 0 2,299 0 5,422 128 8,955 30 
Mercer 0 0 20,521 0 0 0 25,049 28,261 73,831 20 
Middlesex 0 9 2,228 0 0 222,707 23,612 2, 735 251,291 21 
Monmouth 0 412 43,673 15,608 14.379 0 17,368 1,143 92,583 32 
Morris 0 416 35,492 35,796 8,119 0 809 387 81,619 68 
Ocean 0 0 0 0 12& 0 31,509 558 32,195 15 
Passaic 0 0 7,238 17, 123 0 0 1,640 204 26,205 30 
Salem 0 0 0 0 2,866 0 1,007 1,143 5,016 15 
Somerset 0 0 8, 127 18,000 2, 141 0 0 153 28,421 39 
Sussex 0 0 1,877 7 3,411 0 261 113 5,669 31 
Union 0 0 3, 106 0 0 89,761 0 0 92,867 6 
Warren 0 0 9.672 0 346 0 0 1.450 _ _U.468_ _1.! 

0 3,850 218,372 139,385 106,308 861,624 307,681 39,693 1,676,913 502 

XTOTAL o.oox 0.23X 13.02% 8.31% 6.34% 51. 38X 18.35% 2.37"-' 100X 

Note: 1980 N.J population = 7,364,823 therefore existing sludge production per capita equals 
1,864,995 divided by 7,364,823 or.253 pounds per capita per day. 

~ This per capita figure will increase as the primary treatment plants are upgraded to meet more stringent treatment requirements. 
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TABLE 2 
NJDEP APPROVED SLUDGE MANAGEMENT FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS 

County 

Atlantic 

Bergen 

Burlington 

Camden 

Cape May 

Cumberland 

Essex 

Facility 

Atlantic County SA 
Buena Boro MUA 

Northwest Bergen SA 

Type of 
Operation 

Incineration 
Land Application 

Incineration 

Specific 
Process 

Incineration 
Composting 

Incineration 

Dail ya 
Capacity 
(dry lb/d) 

32,000 
1,000 

28,800 

Applied Land Sciences Land Application Land Application 
Storage & Lime 
Stabilization 
Land Application 
Land Application 
Land App~ication 
Storage & Lime 
Stabilization 
Reed Beds 

7,310 

Applied Land Sciences Land Application 
Pemberton Twp. MUA Land Application 
Mack McKenzie Inc. Land Application 

Beverly City SA 
Johnstone Training 

Center 
Mount Holly SA 

Camden Co. MUA MOA 
to Philadelphia 

Camden Co MUA 

Gloucester Twp. MUA 
Ancora State Psych 

Hospital 

Caprioni's Sewerage 
Service 

Cape May County MUA 

Woodbine Dev't. Ctr. 

Cumberland County MUA 
Cumberland County MUA 
Millville SA 

Landis SA 

Longterm on-site 
Longterm on-site Reed Beds 

Volume Reduction/ Wet Air Oxidation 
Stabilization 

Land Application -Composting 

Land Application 

Incineration 
Longterm on-site 

Land Application 

Land Application 

Longterm on-site 

Land Application 
Land Application 
Stabilization 
Only 
Land Application 

In-Vessel 
Composting. 
Incineration 
Reed Beds-

Land Application 
& Lime Stab 
In-Vessel 
Composting 
Reed Beds 

Land Application 
Land Application 
Wet Air Oxidation 

Land Application 
& Stor~ge 

2,270 
3,250 
5' 313-

826 
111 

29,000 

18,333 

100,000 

6,800 
378 

'907 

- 40, ooob 

224 

4,284 
3,430 
7,000 

9-, 4 75 

Passaic Valley SC 

Essex Co. Hospital 
Center STP 

Volume Reduction/ Wet Air Oxid. 
Stabilization 

1,152,000 

Longterm on-site Reed Beds 303 

Gloucester Gloucester County UA Incineration Incineration 72,000 

Hudson US Military Ocean Longterm on-site Reed Beds 
Terminal at Bayonne 

Spectraserv 
Spectraserv 

Transfer Station Mobile Dewatering 
Transfer Station Dewatering and 

Transfer Station 

.77X 
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Hunterdon 

Mercer 

Middlesex 

Monmouth 

Morris 

Ocean 

Passaic 

Salem 

Somerset 

Sussex 

Union 

Warren 

Lambertville SA 
Readington-Lebanon 

SA 
Russell Reid 
Salvation Army Camp 

Tecumseh 

Stony Brook RSA 
Mercer County IA 

Old Bridge Bd of Ed. 
Jamesburg Training 

School 

Middletown Twp. SA 
Bayshore Regional SA 
Marlboro Psych 

Hospital 

Pequannock, Lincoln 
Park, Fairfield SA 

Parsippany-Troy Hills 
Washington Twp.-

Schooley's Mtn 
Musconetcong SA 

Ocean County UA 

Wayne Twp. DPW 

Pennsville SA 

Bernards Twp SA 
Somerset Raritan 

Valley SA 

Sussex County MUA 

None 

AgOrganic 

Warren County-
Pequest River RSA 

Land Application 
Land Application 

Transfer Station 
Longterm on-site 

Incineration 
Land Application 

Longterm on-site 
Land Application 

Land Application 
Incineration 
Longterm on-site 

Incineration 

Incineration 
Longterm on-site 

Land Application 

Land Application 

Incineration 

Land Application 

Land Application 
Incineration 

Land Application 

Land Application 

Land Application 

Land Application 
Land Application 

Transfer Station 
Reed Beds 

Incineration 
Oil-Immersion 
Dehydration 

Reed Beds 
Land Application 

Com~ostin9 
Incineration 
Reed Beds 

Incineration 

Incineration 
Reed Beds 

In-Vessel 
Composting 

Oil-Emersion 
Dehydration 

Incineration 

Composting 

Land Application 
Incineration 

Compo-sting 

Land Application 
Storage & Lime 
Stabilization 

Composting 

2,720 
350 

24 

144,000 
222,000 

9 
1,688 

10,000 
19,200 

412 

72,000 

104,000 
416 

8,000 

128,000 

40,000 

2,000 

2,141 
105,600 

24,000 

3,730 

920 



a - Daily capacities are based on existing permit limits. 
b - Phase 2 of Cape May County Compost Operation will accommodate 

60,000 dry lbs/day. 



Table 3 

~ 
0 
4X 

SUMMARY OF OCEAN DUMPERS' LAND BASED SLUDGE MANAGEMENT PLANS 

CURRENT 
SLUDGE SLUDGE 
OCEAN PRODUCTION INTERIM PLAN LONG-TERM PLAN 
DUMPERS (Dry T/D) 

Bergen Co. DEWAT~RING, STAB- THERMAL REDUCTION 
Utilities 30.6 ILIZATION, OUT-OF- ON-SITE WITH 
Authority STATE LANDFILLING RESOURCE RECOVERY 

Joint Mtg. DEWATERING, STAB- THERMAL REDUCTION 
of Essex 20.6 ILIZATION, OUT-OF- ON-SITE WITH 
& Union Co STATE LANDFILLING RESOURCE RECOVERY 

Linden- PLAN TO CUSTOMER THERMAL REDUCTION 
Roselle 8.3 INCINERATE ABAND- ON-SITE WITH 
Sew. Auth. ONED. OUT TO BID. RESOURCE RECOVERY 

Middlesex DEWATERING AND CHEMICAL STABILIZATION 
County Ut. 106.5 FOR USE AS DAILY AND INTERMEDIATE 
Authority LANDFILL COVER MATERIAL 

Passaic DEWATERING, STAB- THERMAL REDUCTION 
Valley Sew 473.0 ILIZATION, OUT-OF- ON-SITE WITH 
Commission STATE LANDFILLING RESOURCE RECOVERY 

Rahway OEWATERING, OUT-OF THERMAL REDUCTION 
Valley Sew 16.5 STATE CONTRACT LF,. AS CUSTOMER OF 
Authority COMPOSTING or REUSE JMEU 

I 



Table 4 

EVALUATION OF OCEAN DUMPER'S ABILITY TO COMPOST 

CURRENT EQUIVALENT 
SLUDGE SLUDGE COMPOST 
OCEAN PRODUCTION PRODUCTIO~ 
DUMPERS (Dry T/D) (D:i;-y T/D) 

Bergen Co. 
Util. Auth 30.6 22.95 

~ 
Essex-Un. 
Jt. Mtg. 20.6 .15. 45 

---....... Linden-
Roselle SA 8.3 6.23 x Middlesex 
Co. UA 106.5 79.90 

Passaic 
Valley SC 473.0 354.75 

Rahway 
Valley SA 16.5 l;.2. 38 

NA - Not available at time of writing. 
1 - Estimated from first column. . 

LAND REQUIREMENTS2 
TOTAL FOR COMPOST 
EXISTING PROCESSING 
PLANT -

SIZE IN-VESSEL STATIC PILE 
.(acres) (acres) (acres) 

1004 3.2 10.5 

NA 2.1 7.1 

28 0.85 2.8 

165 11.0 36.5 

155 48.7 162.2 

35 1. 7 5.7 

Total Acreage/Year Requirements ~ 

LAND3 
REQUIREMENTS 
FOR COMPOST 
DISTRIBUTION 

(Acres/Year) 

153 

51 

26 

529 

1241 

44 

2044 acres 

2 - Estimated using figures derived from attached Table "Size of Existing Composting Facilities" which 
yields avera9e static pile processing site requirement of 0.343 acres/dry ton, and average in-vessel 
processing site requirement of 0.103 acres/dry ton. 

3 - All values represent one-time acreage usage (acreage is exhausted after this quantity of loading) 
and assumes sludge quality has been improved to meet Class B criteria or better (see attached 
Table 2-1 taken from the New Jersey Statewide Sludge Management Plan). 

4 - Most of this acreage is in wetlands. 



SIZE OF EXISTING COMPOSTING OPERATIONS 

QUANTITY SITE 
FACILITY TYPE (dt/d) ACREAGE 

Sussex Co. Hybrid 
MUA Static 12 2 

Static 
Philadelphia Pile 160 78 

Middletown Static 
SA Pile 4 1.5 

SITE 
FACILITY. TYPE QUANTITY ACREAGE 

Cape May In 
County Vessel 20 3 

Camden Co. In 
MUA Vessel 50 2.8 



Table 2-1: 

SLUDGE QUALITY CRITERIA FOR LAND APPLICATION (1) 

METALS (ppm, dry weight basis) 

Class A Class B 

Cadmium (2) 20 40 
Copper (2) 600 1200 
Lead (2) 2400 4800 
Nickel (2) 625 1250 
Zinc (2) 1200 2400 
Chromium (3) 1000 1000 
Mercury (3) 10 10 
Arsenic (3) 10 10 

PESTICIDES AND PCB'S (ppm, dry weight basis) (4) 

Aldrin 
Chl.ordane 
Dieldrin 
Endrin 
Beptachlor 
Bepta~hlor epoxide 
Lindane ,,-
Methoxychlor 
Mir ex 
p,p'-TDE (ODD) 
p,p'-DDT 
p,p'-DDE 
Toxaphene 
Polychl.orinated 
biphenyls (total PCB's) 

Class ! 
0.10 
0.10 
0.10 
0.10 
0.10 
0.10 . 
0.10 
0~2~ 
0.25 
0.25 
0.25 
0.25 
l.O o.s 

Class ! 
0.10 
0.10 
0.10 

. 0.10 
0.10 
0.10 
0.10 

. 0.25 
0.25 
0.25 
0.25 
0.25 
l.O 
0.5 

Class C (6) 

Class £ (6) 

MISCELLANEOUS Class A 
22 

3 

Class ! 
22 

Class £. 
Phenols (ppm,.total) (5) 
Oil and 91"•ase (percent) (5) 3 

(1) Sludge must be treated with a •process to Siqnificantly 
Reduce Pathoqens•, or a •process to Further Reduce 
Pathoqens• as per 40 CPll 257. 

(2) See B 1. b.· •Basis Por Land Appliable Criteria•. 
(3) From EPA 430/9-'17•004, 1977. Municipal Sludga·Manac;ement:-

Environm.ental Factors. Controlled Municipal Sl~dc;e. 
(4) ~commended levels for·saAll parameters.· Currant regulations 

are bainq revised and these values may chanqa. · 
(5) New.Jersey Median Sludqa Quality from Singh, A., Chase, 

H.P., and Morris, M.L., 1983. 
(6) Class C sludges contain contaminants in excess of Class B 

criteria, but below Hazardous Criteria as per Federal 
regulations. 

2-8 

. . 



Table 5 

EXISTING NEW JERSEY SLUDGE INCINERATORS 

Facility 

Bayshore Regional SA 

Peguannock, Lincoln Park, 
Fairfield SA 

Stony Brook Regional SA 

Somerset Raritan Valley SA 

Parsippany Troy Hills SA 

Northwest Bergen SA 

Wayne Township SA 

Atlantic County SA 

Gloucester Township MUA 

Gloucester County UA 

Incinerator Existing 
Operational Capacity 

(dry lbs/day) 

19,200 

88,800 

144,000 

18,720 

36,000 

28,800 

43,200 

32,000 

6,800 

28,080 



Figure 1 

Location and Service Areas of New Jersey Ocean Dumpers 
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Figure 2 
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Bergen County Utilities Authority 
Trends in Heavy Metals Contamination 

(Average Concentrations for Months Shown, 
Last Arsenic Value of 64.7 represents 

laboratory detection: limit~) 
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1"igure J 
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Joint Meeting of Essex and Union Counties 
Trends In Heavy Metals Contamination 

(Average ·Concentrations for Months Shown) 
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Figure 4 
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Linden-Roaelle Sewerage Authority 
Trends in Heavy Metals Contamination 

(Average Concentrations for Months Shown) 
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Figure 5 

Middlesex County Utilities Authority 
Trends in Heavy Metals Contamination 

(Average Concentrations for Months Shown) 

~ 
~ 

CHROMIUM CONCENTRATION, MG/KG 

IOO 

11U 
A ---

tOO 

0 
.,........,.. 8J81-.4/M .,.._..,,,., 8181 ... /81 llH-4/89 

:=I t=1: = = ANNUAL RE~ YEAR . 

MERCURY CONCENTRATION, MG/KG 

10 

r: 
u 

• .,.....,.. .,.....,.. .,....,,,., .,.,....,.. .,......,.. 
Gt.Ml A UNIT• t0 MUCG ANNUAL REPORT YEAR 
OUN I LIMIT •to...,_ 

ARSENIC CONCENTl1ATION, MG/KG 

M 
G 

10 

8 

I 8 
IC 
G .. 

I 

0 • . 
., ...... ,.. .,.....,.. 1188-4111 1197-4181 ., ....... , .. 

CLASI A LIMIT • 10 MGll<O ANNUAL REPORT"YEAR 
Cl.All I LIMIT• to M611<0 

COPPER CONCENTRATION, MG/KG 

4800 

M 3800 G . 
I 
K 
G 

1114-81811 111811-4188 111ee-4/8r 8187·4/88 11188-4181 

~: t::~: J: == ANNUAL REPOR~ YEAR 

120 

100 

~ 80 
I 
~ 80 

40 

ao 

NICKEL CONCENTRATION, MG/KG 

0 . 
., ...... ,.. 8186-4188 8/8....ul7 .,.,...,.. .,......,.. 

ANNUAL REPORT YEAR 
CLASS A Ll,Mll • Ill Men<G 
CLASS II LIMIT· • 1210 MGltCG 

CADMIUM CONCENTRATION, MG/KG 

200 

160 
M 
G 
I 120 
K 
Q 

80 

40 

1184-e/81 .,.....,.. .,......,., 8187-4181 8188-4189 

:::: : t:~:~: !: == . ANNUAL REPOff! YEAR 

LEAD CONCENTRATION, MG/KG 

aooo 
1800 

M G ae>00 
I 
~ 1100 

8/84-4/88 8, ..... , .. .,......,., 8187 ... /88 8/88-4/89 
CLASI A LIMIT • 1400 MUC:O ANNUAL REPORT YEAR. 
CLMI I LIMIT • UOO MG/KA 

M 
G 
I 
K 
G 

14000 

12000 

10000 

8000 

8000 

4000 

2000 

0 

ZINC CONCENTRATION, MG/KG 

t/84-f/ll 1/88-4118 8/H-4187 8187•4/88 1188-4/89 
ANNUAL REPORT YEAR 

c::u.aa A LIMIT • l200 MGIKCI 
Cl.ASS II LIMIT • UOO MCI/KG 



Figure 6 

Passaic Valley Sewerage Commissioners 
Trends in Heavy Metals Contamination 

(Average Concentrations for Months Shown) 
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Rahway Valley Sewerage Authority 
Trends in Heavy Metals Contamination 

(Average Concentrations for Months Shown, 
Arsenic Value of 18.2 represents 
laboratory detections limits) 
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Good morning. My name is Bruce Kiselica. I am the Chief of 

the Ocean Programs Section within Region 2 of the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Our Region includes the 

States of New Jersey and New York, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin 

lsl.~nds. I am pleased to be here today and thank the Com_mittee for 

this opportunity to discuss EPA's implementation of the Ocean 

Dumping Ban Act of 1988 (ODBA). 

The ODBA states that an ocean dumper, the State in which it is 

located, and EPA shall enter into a compliance or an enforcement 

agreement as a condition of iss~ing a permit for the ocean dumping 

of sewage sludge. Section 104B(c)(2) of the ODBA requires a 

compliance agreement to include a negotiated plan for an ocean 

dumper to terminate its ocean dumping by December 31, 1991 

through the design, construction, and full implementation of an 

alternative system for management of the waste or sludge. If an 

ocean dumper does not propose to implement long-term -land-based 

..f2x 
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sludge management by December 31, 1991, the parties must enter 

into an enforcement agreement. 

The nine existing New Jersey and New York municipal sewage 

sludge generators submitted complete permit applications for the 

ocean transport and disposal of municipal sewage sludge. EPA 

drafted permits containing numerous new conditions to minimize 

adverse environmental impacts and to ensure a more controlled 

dumping operation. The nine permits were issued on August 4, 1989 

and became effective on August 14, 1989. A judicial· consent decree 

and enforcement agreement (Agreement) was successfully negotiated · 

with each ocean dumper. All of the Agreements_ wer~ signed on or 

before August 4, 1989. 

Regarding the specific in~erim schedules for ceasing ocean 

disposal, the ocean dumpers have developed the following plans as 

part of their Agreements. The six New Jersey authorities plan to 

cease ocean disposal by March 17, 1991 in accordance with State 

law. The Nassau County Department of Public Works and the 

Westchester County Department of Environmental Facilities plan to 

complet"IY cease ocean disposal by December 31, 1991 (Nassau 
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County will phase-out 50% by June 30, 1991). The New York City 

Department of Environmental Protection plans to completely phase-

out ocean disposal by June 30, 1992 with initial phase-out of 20% by 

December 31, 1991. The City will be assessed a penalty of $600/dry 

ton of sludge ocean dumped during 1992. The dumpers also have 

schedules for implementin·g long-term sludge management 

alternatives between 1991 and 1998. The ocean dumpers contend 

that these are tight schedules; EPA and the States agree. 

The New Jersey ocean dumpers have already selected interim 

and long-term land-based sludge management alternatives and 

conducted. public hearings on their alternatives. The Middlesex 

County Utilities Authority has decided to chemically fix its dewatered 

sludge and use the resultant product as daily landfill-cover mat~rial; 

the other New Jersey ocean dumpers have selected in~ineration for 

their long-term plans. The New York ocean dumpers are each 

evaluating the feasibility and environmental acceptability of the entire 

range of sludge management options. In support of the dumpers 

efforts, EPA has been encouraging the respective States to assist the 

ocean dumpers In seeking Interim sludge management opportunities. 

EPA and the respective State are working to ensure that the ocean 
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dumpers meet their implementation schedules and that the land-

based alternatives to ocean dumping will consistently meet the 

Agency's regulations, standards, and policies. 

I will now discuss the Agreement milestone accomplishments of 

the New York ocean- dumpers in greater detail. Nassau County 

initiated planning activities late in 1987. Nassau and Westchester 

Counties jointly issued a request for proposals {RFP) for privatized 

land-based disposal options. Four joint responses, six Nassau-only 

responses, and eight Westchester-only responses were received. In 

reporting on its RFP responses, Nassau County requested an 

Agreement modification and extension for pursuing potential off· 

island dewatering with two of the private vendors instead of 

constructing dewatering facilities at one of its wastewater_ treatment 

plants (WWTPs) in addition to the existing dewatering. capacity under 

modification at its Cedar Creek WWTP. EPA and the New York State 

Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) objected, 

primarily because this reliance· upon vendors to obtain approvals for 

off-site dewatering would not ensure timely achievement of 

milestones, and did not, by avoidance of critical siting conditions, 

represent sou·nd environmental management. 
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Nassau County pursued this matter in court by entering a 

modification motion. The court expeditiously issued its decision in 

light of Nassau's tight timeframe for implementing its interim 

alternative. The court denied the motion, citing concerns about how 

Nassau County would meet its consent decree milestones and the 

statutory deadline for ceasing ocean dumping. 

Nassau County is currently proceeding with its schedule for 

constructing the additional dewatering fa~ility itself. Nassau has 

proposed to construct this facility at its Bay Park WWTP and issued 

its. draft environmental impact statements on its interim and long-term 

plans for public comment. Nassau County has completed final 

design and recently received bids fo·r constructing its dewatering 

facility. 

Nassau County has requested an Agreement modification to 

extend its analysis. of its long-term plan by seven months. EPA and 

NYSDEC have requested justification for the proposed delay and 

documentation that it would not impact later milestones. 
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New York City initiated planning activities in late 1988. Several 

reports concerning transportation, existing conditions, and sludge 

quality are being prepared. Design of eight dewatering facilities is 

being completed; a number of construction contacts have been bid. 

The City's centrifuge dewatering equipment order is being filled. Site 

work is underway at one of its largest dewatering facilities. New York 

City is using a two-staged RFP process for privatized land-based 

disposal options. Thirty-nine initial proposals were received; most 

respondents wer• asked to participate in the second, more detailed 

stage; the City is reviewing the 1 O final RFP technical ~nd cost 

responses. The public review of New York City's interim plans will 

take place this summer. 

Westchester County initiated planning activities in January 1989. 

It has prepared a series of reports that address data collection and 

analysis, and alternatives development and screening. Westchester 

completed the final design of and advertised for the dewatering 

equipment. A nearby homeowners' association filed a lawsuit in the 

State Supreme Court challenging Westchester County's decision to 

select its Yonkers WWTP for Installation of dewatering equipment 

without ~reparing a full environmental impact study. The suit has 
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been removed to Federal Court; it's review is pending. Westchester 

will decide whether to select a private vendor from the RFP issued 

jointly with Nassau County or to proceed with an interim alternative 

on its own. 

I 
EPA has been funding various types of sludge treatment, use, 

and disposal research ·and experimental projects for many years. All 

of the resulting documents are part of the public domain, readily 

accessible by each of the ocean dumpers. EPA is currently 

sponsoring a technical assessment of chemical fixation, a technology 

selected by the Middlesex County Utilities Authority and under-

consideration by some of the other ocean dumpers. 

As stated in EPA's national municipal sludge management 

policy, EPA supports the safe, beneficial use of sludge; however, 

local communities are responsible for selecting and implementing 

their own sludge management methods. EPA has contributed 

technology transfer materials to the ocean dumpers' public 

participation programs and will continue to provide support in this 

area. In particular, EPA convened a roundtable workshop for the 

dumpers and others to discuss development and implementation 
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concerns associated with land-based sludge management alternatives 

in November 1989. At the workshop, the ocean dumpers reiterated a 

firm commitment to meeting their deadlines and successfully 

terminating ocean dumping. EPA is currently planning a conference 

to promote beneficial use later this year. 
i 

EPA has for years strongly and actively supported the recovery 

and beneficial utilization of sewage sludge wherever feasible. In June 

1984, the Agency issued a Policy on Municipal Sludge Management 

articulating our support for the beneficial use of sludge. That policy 

says in part: 

EPA will actively pr!Jmote those municipal sludge 

management practices that provide for the beneficial use of 

sludge while maintaining or improving environmental quality and 

protecting public health. To implement this policy, EPA will 

continue to issue regulations that protect public health and 

other environmental values. The Agency will require States to 

establish and maintain programs to ensure that local 

governments utilize sludge management techniques that are 

consistent with Federal and State regulatic ·1s and guidelines. 
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The policy on beneficial uses of sludge is implemented through 

guidance, training and assistance to local communities. In addition, 

our concerted effort over the past six years to strengthen Federal, 

State, and local pretreatment controls for industrial dischargers to 

municipal treatment works has been aimed, in large part, at "cleaning-
1 I 

up" sewage sludges so that they could be safely reused. The Agency 

is now turning its attention to pollution prevention as another means 

of stopping pollution nearer its source. This will further enhance the 

potential for beneficial reuse of sewage sludge by further reducing 

the amount of pollutants entering municipal treatment works from 

industrial sources. 

Once the ocean dumpers begin to implement land-based sludge 

management, they will be subject to the requirements of Section 405 

of the Clean Water Act. Although the Agency's preference is for local 

communities to beneficially use their sewage sludge, an important 

statutory limitation in Section 405 explicitly prohibits EPA from 

mandating local choice of sludge management practices. Section 

405( e) states: 
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The determination of the manner of disposal or use of 

sludge is a local determination, except that it shall be unlawful 

for any person to dispose of sludge from a publicly owned 

treatment works or any other treatment works treating domestic 

sewage for any use for which regulations have been established 

pursuant to Section 405(d) except in accordance with such 

regulations. 

Therefore, EPA is unable to ba~ any particular_ use or disposal 

practice but can establish standards for each practice that will assure 

protection of public health and the er-vironment. 

Under this authority, on February 6, 1989, the Agency proposed 

standards for five sewage sludge management practices to protect 

public health and the enviroAment. In tl:le proposed Section 405 

regulations, EPA identified those toxic pollutants which can be 

present in sewage sludge at levels which adversely affect public 

health or the environment. The regulations will establish numerical 

limitations and management practices for each sludge use or 

. disposal practice. These Section 405 regulations will reinforce the 

Agency's efforts to improv~ municipal sludge quality by helping to 
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strengthen local pretreatment programs. EPA currently projects final 

promulgation of this first round of regulation in October 1991 . These 

standards will be implemented primarily through National Pollutant 

Discharge Elimination System {NPDES) permits. 

In addition to State-required public participation opportunities 

for selecting sludge management alternatives, EPA distributes a 

report to all interested parties on a semiannual basis on the status of 

consent decree implementation and related ocean dumping matters. 

The first issue of this, the "ODBA Advocate," was distributed in April 

1990. EPA announced the formation· of the mailing list for· the 110DBA 

_Advocate" and the establishment of a public file on the dumpers' 

efforts toward complying with their Agreements in the Federal 

Register in January 1990. 

EPA has recently published the following Reports to Congress in . . . 

conjunction with the implementation of the ODBA: 

the 1989 Report to Congress on Progress in Stopping 

Ocean Dumping, 

the Report to Congress on Surveillance and Enforcement 

of Sewage-Sludge Dumping, and 
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the Report to Congress on Sludge Recycling Alternatives. 

The availability of these reports was announced in the April 1990 

"ODBA Advocate." 

This concludes my presentation. Thank you for your attention 

and the opportunity to be here today. I would be happy to respond 

to any questions you may have. 
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Thank you, 1...,1r. Chairnan. ,·ly narae is Sheldon Lipke, ::)u~'erintendcnt 

of Plant Up er at ions for t i1 e Pass a i c Va 11 e y Sew e rage Comm is s ion e r- s . I 
would like to thank you on behalf of the Commissioners for t111s 

opportunity to share their views on tnis ihl~ortant subject. 

'l'he Passaic Valley Sewera<]e Commissioners are constructing sludge 
dew a t e r i n g and load i n g t a c i l i t i es to me e t the i11 a r c ti l 7 , 1 'J 9 l dead l i n e 
for nalting ocean dunping contained in the Ucean Ounping Elimination 
Act of l::H~d. PVSC is not !11.~re to protest the ending of ocean dumpinq. 
~Je are prepared to meet all of tt1e requirements of tl1e Act. ~Je are 
constructing $S9 million worth of facilities that will be abandoneu 
when the Long-Term Alternative begins operation in 1996. 0f tnis 
amount, approximately $14 million is for expediting the project to 
meet the ,larch 17 date. 

It is the period between °March 17, 1991 and Uecember 31, l'.:191 
wnicn concerns us today. The Jate of ~·larch 17, 1991 containeo in th2 
.-\ct was set at the end of the five year term of 106 nil8 disposal 
site. Ti1e c!10ice of tnis date does not coinciue with any 
oceanoyrapnic event, but was an-arbitrary choice made for symbolic 
reasons. Because New York can continue dumping until 1')92, PVSC's 
taxpayers will be faced with huge in~reases in their sewer bills wt1ile 
reducing the amount dumped at tne site by only 15%. The City of 
~ewark's bill will increase by over $14 million, Jersey City's by over 
~4 million, Paterson's by $4 million, and Passaic's by $1.4 million. 
~ie ask if it is fair for the poorest cities in New Jersey to pay for a 
symbolic gesture. ~Jhy are our taxpayers being discriminated against 
when New York continues using the site well into 1992? 

Scientists have expressed concern about the negative impact on 
the ocean environment due to the poorly understood long term effects 
of ocean·disposal. PVSC is not advocating a long term continuation of 
ocean disposal but only the short term relief our taxpayers .. wuld 
receive if we were being treated the same as New York. 

I would be happy to answe·r an·y questions you have about .i?VSC 's 
Interim or Long Term Alternatives. ~Je are continuing the process of 
trying to find the best environmental system to implement for tne Long 
'ferro Alternative. Once again, 1 'd like to thank the Committee for the 
opportunity to express the Commissioners views on this inportant 
subject. 
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PASSAIC VALLEY SEWERAGE COMMISSIONERS 
Increase in Annual Billing 

with Interim Land Based Alternative 
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PASSAIC VALLEY SBVBIAGE COMKISSIOIElS 
I!ClEASE IN !NIU!L BILLIIG 

WITH IITEIIM LAID BASED ALTEIKATIVE 

Hauling and Disposal 
I Sl60 per ton 

!UIICIP!LI!Y mo 1991 1991 1992 - 1996 
BILL PROJECTED AllUlL PROJECTED INCREASE PROJECTED AHUAL 

BILL BILL 

BELLEVILLE TOVISBIP Sl, 080, 163 Sl, 591, 571 $511, 408 SL 917. 555 
BLOOIPI!LD TOVISBIP $1, 259, 864 Sl.835,560 sm.m S2.211.518 
CITY OP CLIPTOI $4,380,072 $7.025,936 $2,645,864 SS.464.983 
EAST IEUll $157,170 $226,955 $69.185 sm.m 
EAST 111TBERPOID Sl36,470 $305,316 Sl68, 846 $367,851 

BL!IOOD Plll $2,942,770 $6,912,252 SJ,969,m SS,328,014 
Plil LAD $119,061 Sl, 294, 119 $475,121 Sl.559 .264 
GllFIBLD $6,004,311 $13,549,215 $7, 544, 904 m.m,m 
GLD IIDGB $219 ,233 $319,641 s100,m sm.m 
GLD IOCI $256,531 $381, 254 $124, 723 $459.342 

BlLBDOI $461,217 s114·,m $316.201 $945,090 
BllllSOI · $1, 021,023 Sl,571,942 ssso, 919 . $1. 902. 340 
BOIOUGI OP BllTBOllB. S5U,510 $759' 990 $245,UO $915 ,650 
IBHIY $1,256,120 $1, 943, 104 $616,914 SUH,090 
LITTLB PlLLS $446,502 $613,059 $166,557 ms.m 
LODI S729, 963 Sl,131,320 $408,357 Sl. 371, 470 
LYIDBUIST $650,009 $1,015,135 ms.m si.m,m 
!OITCL1II TOVISBIP Sl.266,332 Sl,861,309 $601,977 sa,m,m 
IDlll $23,259,0U $37, 527, 535 SU, 2_61, 521 $45.213,897 
101!1 llLIIGTOI $372,017 S53S,3n $163,210 S6H,m 

BOIOUGI OP 10. BlLBDOI $121,755 · Slll,925 $53,110 $219,187 
IUTLIT TODSIIP $1,321,015 S1, 979, 547 $651,532 $2,384,996 
OURI $1,193,601 Sl,751,721 $551,120 Sa.'110,508 
PlSSlIC $2,904,913 $4,315,142 $1,410,229 ss,m,m 
PlTDSOI $7 ,119,146 m, 065, 210 $3,946,124 $13,331,650 

PiOSPBCT PHI S6o,m S93,9U S32,m $113, 210 
IUTIDFOU $154,117. $233,251 $71,364 $281,025 
SlDDLI HOOi $329,696 $414,535 $154,139 $583,771 
JDSBY CITY SI, 711, 752 Sll,139,574 $4,35l,122 $15,830,812 
IOIOUGI or TOTOll $557,255 $975,0JI $417, 713 $1,174,145 

llLLIIGTOI $493,166 $713,515 $219,649 $943,994 
BOIOUGI or I. PlTBISOI $390,147 $531,675 $147 ,129 $649 ,D07 

TOTlLI $70, 613, 193 $116, 741,991 $46,065,791 s140,661,m 
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I've been asked to comment on the need for the nutrients and 
organic matter in sludge and on the land application of sludge 
and derivitives. 

I'm the Executive Secretary of the Cornucopia Network of New 
Jersey. Our purpose is improving the quality, quantity and safety 
of food . O n e o f o u r p r i or i t i e s h a s b e e n th e f o s t er i n g o f 
composting because it is consistent with our purpose and is the 
means for recovering (for growing purposes) over 50% of the 
resources contained in our "garbage" 1and even more in sludge. 

It is our contention. based on the extensive literature, 
that everything organic can be composted - leaves, grass, paper, 
food wastes from home and processor, sewage sludge - safely, 
relatively cheaply and responsibly. 

Composting requires very little outside energy for the 
process besides that needed for piling it intelligently, turning 
it or blowing air into it (for aerobic processes) and transport-
ing it. Nature's own microorganism's do the job from the inside 
of the windrows that Dr. Finstein researches and the backyard 
compost piles that we demonstrate. Volume is reduced by factors 
from_ 3 - 7 . The f in i sh e d prod u c t i s v a 1 u ab 1 e a n d rn u ch need e d by Ne w 
Jersey farm land and open spaces, as well as our yards. The 
organic matter content of New Jersey farmland is only 1 1/2- 2 %, 
after 200 years of agriculture and fairly high erosion rates. Our 
soils would be far better if they contained 4-6 % or even more of 
organic matter. It takes about ten tons of organic matter/acre to 
raise- it 1%. Over 3 million acres of land including 850,000 acres 
of farmland could benefit from it besides our backyards and 
flower pots. Some organic farmers put on 30-40 tons of compost/-
acre, year after year, with spectacular growing plants resulting. 
It just disappears. The micro-organisms in the compost help 
dissolve the inorganic minerals to make them available to the 
growing plants. The healthy soil grows strong plants that do a 
better job of resisting pests. The organic matter helps the soil 
retain moisture making it more drought resistant & efficient in 
using moisture. The nutrient value of compost and sludge is 
sizable. The need for chemical fertilizers drops dramatically. 
Organic or sustainable farmers depend heavily on compost. 

Oklahoma City sludge, stabilized with lime, is land applied 
to 12,000 acres of farmland in a five mile radius of the plant 
servinmg 600,000 residents. Farmers save more than $80/acre over 
the cost of the sludge in avoided fertilizer costs a~one and 
report yields up significantly. 

University of Washington research has shown that trees grow 
twice as fast when they are fed sludge. A tree that would normal-
ly be cut down after 60 years could be cut down after 30 years. 
Tree planting is a major objective in addressing global warming. 

The need for compost of all types, corning from all kinds of 
organic matter, with or without sludge mixed in as well as com-
.posted sludge, processed sludge, pelletized sludge and lime 
stabilized sludge is endless, even though all of it may not be as 
high quality as we would like, initially. 

The National Association of Conservation Districts recently 
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announced a resolution urging the Soil Conservation Service to 
adopt "beneficial compost and sludge application" as a soil 
conservation measure and add it to the National Handbook of 
Conservation Practices. I suppose it's "better late than never". 

The EPA besides sponsoring the Roundtable mentioned by Nina, 
is now sponsoring a Beneficial Use of Sludge Awards Program with 
awards for operating projects, technology developments and 
activities for greater public acceptance of sludge use, etc .. 

Properly finished sludge compost or sludge containing com-
post is, in our view, a natural resource needed for growing which 
need not and should not be considered a "waste" needing DEP 
involvement in its application and use. We believe sludge compost 
to be a concern of the Department of Agriculture because they 
have expertise in soil and water conservation and have extension 
services and inspectors that are involved on a daily basis with 
helping growers of all types (flowerpot to agribusiness).· 
Besides, there are laws on the books with respect to the right to 
farm and on-farm composting has been commonplace for 200 years. 

We are not advocating that DEP be uninvolved in regulating 
sludge and some garbage composting facilities. We do believe that 
all other composting belongs in the perview of the Department of 
Agriculture and needs little regulation. 

We wish that there was a way to.obtain a technological/~ 
social/economic/whole system assessment of "waste"/resource pro-
posals. Engineers make money by recommending the complex and 
expensive technologies and by over-engineering lower technolo-
gies, maki~g it nearly impossible to obtain appropriate technolo-
gy, beneficial use, safe facilities. We get the DEP pushing 
counties and commissions into high technology incinerators 
requiring ever more complex enginee~ing and regulations, even 
when the EPA seems eager to help·in the selection of safer, more 
appropriate technologies. After attending the EPA sponsored Round 
Tab le on Land-Based 51 udge Management last November, we cannot 
understand why DEP is not aiding in the selection and implementa-
tion of any alternative but incineration which is the least 
acceptable. An incineration plan may well cost over 400% more in 
actual outlays than what is best, not including the social/health 
costs and other externalities. 

This pariel from the Clean Sludge Coalition, respectfully 
requests that you reject the DEP Report under consideration, 
direct the DEP to comprehensively explore the beneficial use 
alternatives and come back with a plan that utilizes them. 
Further that you draft legislation mandating adherence to the EPA 
and DEP policies supporting beneficial reuse and ruling out t~e 
use of incinerators. Thank you. 
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Comments of DONALD B. CLARK 
Convenor of Network for Environmental and Economic Responsibility 
of the United Church of Christ; member Steering Committee of the 
Eco-Justice Working Group of the National Council of Churche~ of 
Christ; member Planning Committee for Environmntal Sabbath of the 
United Nations Environmental Programme; member Board of Directors 
of Metropolitan Ecumenical Ministry; Co-Chair Agricultural Task 
Force of Rural Coalition; member Executive Committee of New 
Jersey Citizen Action; Executice Secretary, Cornucopia Network of 
N.J.; pharmacist; former faculty member of Univ. of Buffalo 
School of Pharmacy; retired professional services and community 
affairs executive of Hoffmann-La Roche; homeowner in Nutley. 

I was part of a briefing by Congresswoman Claudine Schneider 
and participated in a workshop by her and Worldwatch Institute 
staff on the over 200 page Global Warming Prevention Act. We 
heard dramatic and convincing evidence documenting the necessity 
of rapid and substantial reductions in green house gases. We 
viewed chart after chart, saw photos of and heard about many win-
win applications of least-cost energy planning where global 
greenhouse gases are being_reduced while reducing energy costs· at 
the same time. We learned about gas turbine technology developed 
by the Navy which is claimed to be 50% more efficient, half as 
costly to build and a fraction as polluting as existing power 
plants. We heard about major tree planting projects and the 
saving in air conditioning costs by planting just three trees 
beside a home. We saw cars that get over 90 mpg, appliances that 
use 1/3 less energy, incandescent replacement bulbs that it pays 
utilities to give away (@ $6 each) even when they are paying only 
1/3 of the "real" "total" (exter_nalities included) costs of their 
operations. -

The Congresswoman's bill, with over 100 co-sponsors, 
establishes a comprehensive least-cost energy planning process 
throughout the federal. government, in~lciding all foreign aid 
programs. It was referred to eleven committees. She claims that· 
the bill could as well be called the "global competitiveness and 
U.S. productivity enhancement act" because it should help 
Americans "save several hundred billion dollars per year on their 
energy bills, create high-efficiency energy-consuming devices for 
export, reduce.foreign oil imports and the trade deficit, and 
reduce a range of .other environmental pollutants in addition to 
greenhouse gases." 

Earth Day 1990 involved more than 200 million people in some 
14 0 of the 17 7 nations of the world. The theme was "Think 
Globally, Act Locally." Several books, charts and articles are 
now published giving all of us many ideas on how we can help save 
the earth. A copy of two publications that I've been involved 

with are presented with this testimony: "101 Ways to Help Save 
the Earth" and Only One Earth. 

The Worldwatch Institute and many others feel that we need a 
major mobilization, like we did in World War Two, like Nicaraqua 



did in achieving literacy, to address our environmental crises. 
Faith groups the world over have or are adopting priorities 
lifting up the theological bases for caring for mother earth. The 
World Council of Churches has adopted the priority of Justice, 
Peace and the integrity of creation and many faith groups are 
doing likewise. 

We are being asked to be attentive to a sick mother earth, 
to try to ease her pain, to help restore her, i.e. to live in 
harmony with nature as best we can, to be as sustainable as 
possible, to conserve and preserve resources, to reuse, to res-
tore, to recycle, to compost, to adopt appropriate technologies, 
to use and not abuse what God has given us, to be stewards rather 
than exploiters, etc. 

We are called to reorient our thinking, to be as creative as 
we can, to work in community, to get everyone invo 1 ved in solving 
our problems, to think globally and act locally but ·also to 
insure that we are not a party to toxic terrorism and garbage 
imper ia li sm anywhere .. in Africa, or Louisiana, or Pennsylvania ! 

Burning sludge is the antithesis of what we should be about; 
the symbol of technology gone awry, of a pathetic missed opportu-
nity to be creatiye, job generating, environmentally sound, com-
munity sensitive, resource capturing and responsible. It is the 
symptom of an edifice complex, a Neanderthal mentality, elitist 
tendenci~s, ·and gullibility for or in bedness with rather 
unscrupulous promoters of highly profitable but failed 
technologies. It was very ·disappointing to see the proposals of 
the sewerage treatment permit holders that selected incineration 
which is unresponsive to public desiresr so unimaginative, so out 
of ste~, so behind the curve, so seemingly immoral and unjust. 

I have noted that the behavior of Helen Pettit ·of· the 
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) has fostered, if not 
ne~essitated, the selection of the sludge incineration option. It 
seems to me, the DEP should be doing everything in their power to 
help the utilities avoid employing the worst option, incinera-
tion. Both the DEP and EPA espouse a policy of favoring benefi-
cial reuse of sludge on land over incineration. I read, in~tead, 
about DEP's revolving door and hear-~bout political rather than 
scientific decision making, from renowned scientists. I'm even 
more disappointed with the DEP. -

I don't. know what the sewerage treaters think their mission 
is, or the business they think they are in, but it should be the 
capture and efficient use of one of this states major resources. 
It's sewage. Another is its compostable garbage. Making use of 
this rich organic matter mixed with scarce water is their job, in 
my view. Making sure that the sludge is substantially free of 
heavy metals and toxic materials is their challenge for optimi-
zing its utility. And they have made great progress. 

The DEP"s job is to facilitate the best decisions and then 
to help the sewerage treaters carry them out, not to promote 
business for the incinerator builders. Requiring long' .:rm se-
cured guarantees appear to rule out the use of appropriate tech-
nologies in most instances. Few if any composting facility can 
obtain a secure market for its product for many years as reuse 
technologies are still in development and markets must be 
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developed. The DEP's legalistic, beaurocratic approaches are 
thwarting the sound solutions and favoring those we can ill 
afford. 

Only one of the severage treaters has a guaranteed long term 
use for less than agricultural grade sludge. All could employ any 
one of several alternatives that are far better than incineration 
but they are more uncertain (not guaranteeable); take more and 
varied management expertise; require more than engineers to 
accomplish; and use less of the capital intensive and highly 
profitable technologies sold by, good campaign givers and past 
cohorts. 

Resorting to incineration of sludge is not only the most 
expensive way to go but stil 1 leaves lots of residual waste for 
disposal and is environmentally unsound, unnecessary, unsafe and 
unconscionable. Dumping in the ocean was an easy way out for 
sewage authorities but socially and environmentally unacceptablee 
Incineration is more repulsive. 

I've reproduced an article from an issue of World-Watch 
entitled DOWN THE TUBES by Marcia D. Lowe and include-it as part 
of my testimony. It notes that the EPA estimates that just the 
sludge of modern.sewage treatment processes has the nutrient 
content equivalent to 10% of the chemical fertilizers farmers 
purchase- or a value of over $1.billion per year. Treating sludge 
as a pollutant rather than a resource is very expensive indeed. 

The article goes Dn to point out the incentives and dis-
incentives to recycling the nutri'ents in sewage and points out 
that recycling human wastes in many municipalities now outweighs 
the drawbacks. It certainly does in New Jersey. 

Wastewater irrigation is employed around the world with even 
Chandler, Arizona irrigating 6900 acres and Oklahoma City land 
applying sludge to over 12,000 acres. Fish farming using 
"nightsoil" has been employed for thousands of years in China. 
Th e Un it e d stat es a 1 re ad y rec ye 1 es 4 2 % o f i ·t s s 1 u d g e. The tech -
nologies to handle sewage safely and effectively are in existance 
and many communities are employing them successfully. There are 
well over 100 composting facilities in operation in this country, 

·many. using the "Beltsville" system of a static, aerated pile. 
Some recent ones are "in-vessel" systems with advantages in some 
situations. There are several proven systems and many equipment 
sellers. Some appear to be grossly overpriced but all are far 
cheaper initially and·a fraction as costly, over time, as incine-
rators, even without including the externalities of burning. 

I would urge you· to call upon the DEP to reject the plans 
for the building of incinerators and to vigorously help the 
sewerage treaters·to bol~ly explore the many alternatives open to 
them, (they, hopefully, are more than regulators), to prepare and 
share what is best and possible (even though the treater~s legal 
authority/mandate is exceeded) and to enter into public dialogue 
on the alternatives which I would think would include involve-
ments· >iy many segments of society. You need to impress upon the 
DEP and utilities that they need to work at this with great 
intensity and with the eye that they must find other alternatives 
than incineration and landfilling for one of our most valuable 
resources. 

Thank you. 7:Zx 
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